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NOTICE OF MOTION

IN THE HIGH COURT OF DELH! AT NEW DELHI |
NO.

SHRI —
Advocate ?

IN THE MATTER OF:

Common Cause ...Petitionar
Versus o
- . f
Shri Subhash Jain, Ex- Councillor & Ors. ...Respondients
Sir,

The enclosed application in the aforesaid matter as being filed on behalf

of the Petitioner and is likely to be listed on or any date,

thereafter. Please take notice accordingly.
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To,
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Sir,

Will be you kindly treat this accompanying Writ Petition as an
urgent one in accordance with the High Court rules and Orders:
1. The grounds of urgency are mentioned in the accompanying Writ

Petition.

Thanking You
Yours faithfully,

(MAHESH AGARWALY)/ (RISHI AGRAWALA)/
(NEEHA NAGPAL)

ADVOCATES FOR THE PETITIONER
FOR AGARWAL LAW ASSOCIATES

19, BABAR ROAD, BENGALI MARKET,
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The Present Petitioner is a public interest organization of long standing,

5/NOPSIS

)]

which has been campaigning for the establishment of a credible

institutional frawdvork for combating corruption in public life. The
Petitioner has been at the forefront of civil society campaigyis for
increased transparency in public administration and has dften had the
occasion to bring matters of public interest to this Hon'ble Court and the
Hon’bie Supreme Court leading to issuance of directions‘té‘;) the Hon'ble
Court that have had the effect of strengthening institutional responses to
corruption and maladministration in furtherance of the constitutional

guarantees to citizens under Part Il of the Constitution of India.

The Present Petition seeks to draw the attention of this Hon'ble Court to
the manner in which the institution of the Lokayukja, established under
the Delhi Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act, 1995‘_(hereinafter, ‘the Act’),
has been effectively undermined on account of disregard by the
Competent Authority of the considered recommendations made by the

Hon'ble Lokayukta in various cases involving egregious acts of

corruption by elected public functionaries.

A.sting operation conducted by the news media contained clear
evidence that certain elected public officials had agreed to accept illegal
gratification in order to facilitate existing or contemplated irregularities in
buildings being constructed and also to make the necessary
arrangements to ensure that other the state officials concerned also

turned a blind eye to the illegalities. The raw footage as well as the
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transcripts of the sting operalion femain undisputed by the concerned
officials. The Hon'ble Lokayukta took éuo motu cognizance of the said
Issue and submitted a report containing a prima facie conclusion that
offences under t;w'Prevention of Corfuptioh Act were made out in these
cases. Despite fhi‘s. and the fact that a further Special Report and
‘Substance of Cases' as contemplated in Section 12 of the Act came to

be issued by the Hon'ble Lokayukta expressing dissatisfaction with the

official inaction in respect of his recommendations, no -¢onsequential

action has been taken by the Competent Authority (Lieutenant Governor

of Delhi) under the Act to initiate prosecution against the individuals

involved.

The continued inaction on the part of the Competent Authority amounts
to a grave and continuing violation of Aricles 14 and 21, Which have
been interpreted by the Hon'ble Apex Court aé guaranteeing to all
citizens the right to transparency, fairness and non-arbitrariness in the

actions of all state functionaries as well as the right to a corruption free

society.

Hence the present Petition.

{

1
]




H

07.12.2011 | Newspaper ‘Nav Bharat Times’' published a riews

LIST OF DATES

report titled “Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshadon mein

Mfdha Hadkamp'. The report contained the findings of

a sting operation carried out and subsequently telecast
by the news channel IBN-7 bringing to light the
involvement of Municipal Coungillors _.in Delhi in
negotiations for facilitating illegal and !avﬁauthcri.‘:ec;i
constructions for illegal gratification.

L

07.12.2011 | Suo motu cognizance of the above reports taken by the

Hon'ble Lokayukta, notice issued to the concerned

Municipal Councillors

[
[ 27.08.2012 | Orders passed by the Hon'ble Lokayukta

20.06.2012 | recommending various sanctions against the
10.07.2012 | Respondent 1-8 Municipal Councillors respectively
03.08.2012 |implicated in the sting operation and further
25.05.2012 | recommending that evidence recorded in the deemed
22.03.2012 | judicial proceedings be forwarded to .the appropriate
26.03.2012 Investigating Agency (Commissioner of Police) for
consideration as to whether it constitutes an offence

under the PCA and/or provisions of the MCD Act

attracting penal sanction.

18.01.2013 | Various orders passed by the Competent Authority in

09.11.2012 | the cases of the Respondent 1-8 Municipal Councillors

’26.10.2012 respectively under the Delhi Lokayukta and
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24.12.2012 | Upalokayukta Act being the Lieutenant Governor

18.07.2012 | rejecting the recommendations issued by the Hon'ble
11.07.2012 | Lokayukta.

26.06.2012 W’

01.03.2013 | ‘Substance of cases’ of ex-Municipal Councillors Shri.
26.03.2013 | Subhash Jain, Ms. Anita Koli, Ms. Shateshwari .Joshi,

09.08.2013 | Ms. Manju Gupta, Ms. Beena Thakuria, Ms, Jaishree

18.07.2012 | Panwar, Mr. Ravi Prakash Sharma and MT- Ajif Tokas

made public by the Hon'bie Lokayukta.
L

‘i

07.05.2013 | Hence the present writ petition.
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11, POLICE COMMISSIONER, DELHI

P.O. '17’yfepo,
NEWDELHI RESPONDENTS

A_WRIT_PETITION IN PUBLIC INTEREST UNDER
ARTICLE 226 OF THE CONSTITUTION OF INDIA
REQUESTING_ THAT THE _ORDERS _OF_ THE
LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR IN THE CASE OF ALL THE
EIGHT RESPONDENT COUNCILLORS BE SET ASIDE

TO,
THE HON'BLE THE CHIEF JUSTICE OF THE HIGH COURT OF

DELHI AND HIS COMPANION JUSTICES OF THE HIGH
COURT

THE HUMBLE PETITION OF THE
PETITIONER ABOVE NAMED

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH:-

1. The present Writ Petitioner has no personal interest in the
litigation and the present Petition is not guided by self-gain or
for gain of any other person/institution/body and there is no
motive other than of public interest in filing the Writ Petition.

2. The source of knowledge of the facts alleged in the Writ
Petition is documentation available in the public ddmain
as well as documents obtained through the Right to
Information Act from the office of the Hon'ble Lokayukta.
The Orders of the Lieutenant Governor as weu.as the
Special Reports of the Hon'ble Lokayukta annexed to the

present Petition were obtained through an application
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under the RTI Act, while the Orders of the Hon'ble

Lokayukta and the 'Substaince of Cases' issued by the

Hon'ble Lokayukta were obtained from the website of.the:i.'

LWéyukta where they were uploaded and made freelyi
available.
The present Petition is for the benefit of all citizens of India
since it aims to improve mechanisms for rooting out corruption
in public administration through the statuto;?;" body of ithe
Lokayukta
The persons/institutions/bodies likely to be affected by the
orders sought in the Writ Petition are the .ex-councilllors whosé

conduct is sought to be impugned, the Lieutenant Governor of

Delhi and the Commissioner of Police, New Delhi, ali of whom

ha{ve been impleaded as Respondents:to the present petition.
To the knowledge of the Petitioner, no  other
persons/institutions/bodies are likely trlu be affected by the
orders soyght in the wr'it petition.

The Present Petitioner is a public interest organization of long
standing, which has been campaigning fér the establishment of
a credible institutional framework for combating corruption in
public life. It is represented in the present P'etition by ifs
Director, Mr. Kamal Jaswal, S/o Sh. Ambika Prasad Jasvaul,
resident of B-34, Ground Floor, Geetanjali Enclave, New Dethi.
The Petitioner has been at the forefront of civil society

campaigns for increased transparency in public administration

.and has often had the occasion to'bring matters of public

v
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interest to this Hon'ble Court and the Hon'ble Supreme Court
leading to issuance of directions by the Hon’ble Court that have
had the effect of strengthening institutional responses to:i'
c_orruptifwl‘- and maladministré:tion in furtherance of the: |
constitutional guarantees to citizens under Part Il of the
Constitution of India. In 1995, the present Petitioner filed a PIiL
in thé Supfeme Court, urging for the establishment of an
independent Lokpal at the central level and the %nfofcemerﬁ vof
the institution of Lokayukta at the state level. Although the PIL
has yet to be finally disposed of it has had significant
outcomes, commencing with the unprecedented imposition of a
penalty of Rs. 50 lakh on the former Petroleum Minister, Capt.
Satish Sharma, for the abuse of his discretionary powers, In
August 2008, at the instance of the Bench, the petitioner
society filed an additional affidavit, delineating the essential
features of the institutions of Lokpal and Lokayukta. Two years
later, this blueprint formed the basis of the first draft of the Jan

Lokpal Bill, which served as the rallying point for India’ s

biggest popular mobilization for combating corruption. The
Petitioner organization has the means to pay the costs, if any,
imposed by the Court and undertakes to do so if directed by the
Hon'ble Court

6.  The Petitioner has not had occasion to file any representations
on the said iséue, since the necessary action in this regard has

already been taken by the Hon'ble Lokayukta by way of issuing
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orders, Special Reports and ‘Substance of Cases’, despite

which no action has been taken by the Competent Authority or

the legislature.

7. The Petition organization has been active since 1980 in
agitating for citizens rights before various forums, including
before this Hon'ble Court. Some of the recent Petitions in Public

- f
Interest filed by the Petitioner are as follows:

(i)  Writ Petition No 866 of 2010- Common Cause v
Union of India (on the issue of Post-Retirement
Activities of Former Supreme Court Judges). The

matter is pending before this Hon'ble Court.

(i) Writ Petition No 8363 of 2010- Common Cause v
Union of india (on the issue of Misuse of BSP
reserved symbol). The matter is pending before this

Hon'ble Court.

(iiy ~ Writ Petition No 16779 of 2006- Common Cause v
Govt of NCT & Anr (on the issue of Working
Condition of Private School Teachers). The matter

is pending before this Hon’ble Court.

8.  Given its continued commitment to the cause of probity in

ublic administration and the need for a sustained effort on all
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fronts to eradicate the evil of corruption from Indian society, the
Present Petitioner is constrained to file the present Petition in
Public Interest. The Present Petition seeks to draw thé'
attenticw‘of this Hon'ble Court to the manner in which thé |
institution of the Lokayukta, established under the Delhi
Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act, 1995 (hereinafter, ‘the Act’),
has been effectively undermined on account of disregard by the
Competent Authority of the considered recomrh'gndations n'{ade
by the Hon'ble Lokayukta in various cases involving egregious
acts 'of corruption by elected public functionaries. Despite the
fact that the reports submitted by the Hon'ble Lokayukta
contained prima facie findings of viclations of the criminal
statutes, including the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1888, no
consequential action has been taken by the Competent
Authority under the Act to initiate prosecution against the
individuals involved. The continued inaction on the part of the
Competent Authority amounts to a grave and continuing
violation of Articles 14 and 21, which have been interpreted by

the Hon'ble Apex Court as guaranteeing to all citizens the right

. to transparency, fairness and non-arbitrariness in the actions of

all state functionaries as well as the right to a corruption free

society.

The present Petitioner is therefore constrained to approach this
Hon'ble Court in exercise of its jurisdiction under Article 226 of

the Constitution by way of the present Petition in Public interest

o e
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11.
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seeking appropriate relief to reme:ly the continuing violation of

the Part Il rights of the citizens.

On 7.12.2011, the newspaper ‘Nav Bharat Times' published a[‘ .
news rg;ort titted “Sting Operation KeBaad Parshadonme in
Macha Hadkamp”. The report contained the findings of a sting
operation carried out and subsequently telecast by the news
channe! IBN-7 bringing to light the involvement of Municipal
Councillors in Delhi in negotiations for fadilitating illegal and
unauthorized constructions for illegal gratification, As part of the

sting operation, news reporters and journalists posed as

builders who had erected or intended to erect buildings in
contravention of applicable rules and regulations.The
conversations were captured on video. Transcripts of the

conversations were also made.

In the garb of builders, the media persons approached the
municipal councillors under whose juriédiction the buildings had
or were to be erected fell. During the course of their
conversations with the municipal counciliors, the journalists
offered the elected public officials illegal gratification in the form
of monetary consideration to overlook the existing or
contemplated irregularities in construction and also to make the
necessary arrangements to ensure that the state officials
concerned, such as Junior Engineers and Assistant Engineers,

were also taken into confidence and bribed so as to not

.highlight or oppose the proposed irregularity.
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13.

14,

It is submitted that the Municipal Councillors arrayed as

Respondents in the present Public interest Litigation are public.
functionaries as defined in Section 2(m) of the Act and as such;‘ ,
their comiuct in the course of discharge of their public duties
admittedly can be made subject to the provisions of the Act and

the jurisdiction of the office of the Hon'ble Lokayukta

established under the auspices of the said Act. J

Suo motu cognizance was taken by the Hon'ble Lokatyukta on
7.12.2011 of the abovementioned newspaper article as well as
the telecast on news channel IBN-7. Notices were issued to the
Municipal Councillors concerned, the Editor and City

Corréspondent of ‘Nav Bharat Times' as well as the Managing

‘Director and Correspondent of {BN-7. The reporters of Cobra

Post, who had been deputed by the channel to carry out the
sting operation were directed to produce the original
footage/recording of the sting operation.

[ ]

In the proceeding before the Hon'ble Lokayukta, all the parties

- to whom notice was issued were represented by Legal counsel,

The statements of the reporters who had carried out the sting
operation were recorded on oath and their identities were kept
confidentiél in accordance with Section 14 of the Delhi
Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act, 1985. A DVD containing the
raw original footage of the sting operation was élso obtained

from the channel and made available to the Hon'ble Lokayukta.

o
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Transcripts of the recorded conversation of the meetings and
negotiations with the Municipal Councillors were also tendered.
The Hon'ble Lokayukta also saw fit to appoint an amicus curiaé'
to ass*ﬂ"‘ him in the matter. The cases of the Municipal
Councillors were segregated as separate complaint cases were

registered and dealt with by way of separate orders.

15. The procedure to be adopted in hearing dhe cases was
determined by consensus after hearing all concerned parties. it
was agreed that an agreed transcript of the raw footage would
be drawn from the footage and that parties would not question
the authenticity of the footage or the transcript. Accordingly, the
footage was viewed in the proceedings by the Hon'ble
Lokayukta with parties being given the opportunity during the

viewings to give inputs on the same.

16. It is the admitted position that the proceedings before the
Hon'ble Lokayukta were held in full compliance with the
principles of natural justice and keeping in view the letter and
spirii of Section 10 of the Act. At no stage of the proceedings
did any of the Respondent Municipal Councillors contend that
they were in any sense deprived of their right to a full and fair
hearing or that they were in any way constrained from
presenting their defence in full. Further, as is apparent from the
procedure outlined above, all material necessary and relevant
to arriving at a conclusion in respect of whether actionable

_offences. had been committed by the Respondent Municipal

A
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Councillors was scrutinized in detail by the Hon'ble Lokayukta,

with inputs from all parties as well as the learned Amicus

Curiage, s

17.  Upon J&g:sideration of the material on record as well as the
submissions made by the parties, the Hon'ble Lokayukta
addressed the question of whether the impugned conduct fell
within the scope of Section 2(b) of the Act. Ifi, this .context, it
may be noted that the term "“allegation” in Section 2(b} in

relation to a public functionary means by affirmation that such

public functionary in capacity as such:

i.  has failed to act in accordance with the norms of integrity
and conduct which ought to be followed by the public
functionaries or the class to which he belongs; '

ii. has abused or misused his position to obtain any gain or
favour to himself or to any other person or to cause loss
or undue harm or hardship to any other person;,

jii. ~was actuated in the discharge of his functions as such
public functionary by improper or corrupt motives or

personal interest;
iv. s or has at any time during the period of his office been

in possession of pecuniary resources or property
disproportionate to his known resources of income
whether such pecuniary resources or property are held by
the public functionénx personally or by any member of his
family or by some other person on his behalf;

18. It is submitted that in each of these cases, the inquiry fell within

a narrow compass. The facts in issue were largely admitted as

between the parties. In all cases, the Municipal Councillors

-l
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admitted that the conversation portrayed in the raw focotage and
transcripts had in fact taken place and'only disagreed as to the
context in which the impugned conduct had taken place as well

as tthlications, circumstances and motivations behind the

same.

19, After conduct of the inquiry in the manner contemplated in the
Act, the Hon'ble Lokayukta, having satisfied-+himself that the
allegations were established, issued separate Reports in the
cases of each of the Respondent Municipal Councillors under
Section 12(1) of the Act, communicating his findings and

| recommendations to the Competent Authofity (being the
Lieutenant Governor of th.e NCT of Delhi). The Report(s) of
the Hon'ble Lokayukta under Section 12(1) of the Act pertaining
to Sh Subhash Jain (Respondent No 1), Smt Anita Kol
(Respondent No 2), Smt Sateshwari Joshi (Respondent No 3),
.Smt Manju Gupta (Respondent No 4), Smt Bina Thakuriya
(Respondent No 5), Smt Jaishree Panwar (Respondent No 6), |
‘Sh Ravi Prakash Sharma (Respondent No 7) and Sh Ajit Singh

Tokas (Respondent No 8) are annexed to the present petition

and marked ANNEXURE — P1 to P8, respectively.

20. Aside from finding that the allegations in respect of the
impugned conduct of the Municipal Councillors were
established upon consideration of the material on rééord, the

Hon'ble Lokayukta also came to the unegquivocal conclusion

__..that the said material also disclosed the commission of penal
- -fﬂ‘i&-ﬂ“ﬁw . ) |




21.

22,

13

offences under relevant provisions of tihe Prevenfioa of
Corruption Act as 'weil as the Municipal Corporation of Delhi
Act. In the majority of the cases, the finding of the Hon'bl:ié
Lokaytyta was that the Municipal Councillors had been eage'e:r'
and willing participants in contemplating blatant violation of the
law and in accepting illegal gratification for circumventing and
violating legal provisions. Additionally, some of the Respondent
Municipal Councillors aiso demonstrated a willzzéneés to aécept
illegal gratification with a view to disbursing the same to other
officials involved in perpetuating the said illegalities, thus

effectively acting as a conduit for further illegal activity.

Since the evidence collected by the Hon'ble Lokayukta in
accordance with the Act amounts to legal evidence recorded in
deemed judicial proceedings, it was further concluded that the
matlerial on record should be forwarded to the appropriate

investigating agency for further action in this regard.

Consideration by the Lieutenant Governor of the Report
submitted by the Hon'ble Lokayukta under Section 12(1) is

dealt with in Section 12(2) of the Act, which provides that:

“The competent authority shall examine the report
forwarded to it under sub-section (1) and intimate, within
three months of the date of receipt of the report, the
Lokayukta or, as the case may be, the Upalokayukta, the
action taken or proposed to be taken on the basis of the

report’
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23. In considering the various reports submitted by the Hon'ble
Lokayukta, the Lieutenant Governor as the Competent
Authority under the Act adopted a procedure altogether alien to;L'
the stWory scheme and effectively conducted a de novo..
hearing of each of these cases. In each individual case, notice
was issued to the Respondent Municipal Councillors, a further
personal hearing was granted and submissions were recorded.
This procedure of granting a fresh hearing follo'!\’z;itng féceipt Iof a
report by the Hon'ble Lokayukta under Section 12(1) is nowhere
contemplated in the Act. The language of the relevant statutory
provision, Section 12(2) in fact militates against adoption of
such a procedure by specifying that the action taken or
proposed to be taken by the Lieutenant Governor was to be “on

the basis of the report" submitted by the Hon'ble Lokayukta

under Section 12(1).

24, }The procedure adopted by the Lieutenant Governor effectively
supplanted the procedure prescribed in the Act for the
functioning of the institution of the Lokatyukta and the sanctity
to be given to the institution of the independent ombudsman as
envisaged in the Act. This is apparent from the fact that the
fresh hearing afforded to each of the -Municipél‘ Councillors
served as the basis of the Lieutenant Governor'sﬁx rejection of
the course of action proposed by the Hon'ble Lokayukta in each
of these cases. Despite finding no legal infirmity in the

procedure adopted by the Hon'ble Lokayukta in conducting the
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i

proceedings «r disturbing the factual basis on which the
conclusion of the Hon'ble Lokavukta were premised, the
Lieutenant Governor as the Competent Authority saw fit tc;j'
disregiad the recommendations of the Hon'ble Lokayukta and
observe that no action was required to be taken against any of
the Respondent Municipal Councillors. The orders passed by

the Lieutenant Governor in the cases of Sh.Subhash Jain

1) .

(Respondent No 1), Smt Anita Koli (Respondent No 2), ,Smt
Sateshwari Joshi (Respondent No 3), Smt Manju Gupta
(Respondent No 4), Smt Bina Thakuriya (Respondent No 5),
Smt Jaishree Panwar (Respondent No 8), Sh Ravi Prakash
Sharma (Respondent No 7) and Sh Ajit Singh Tokas

(Respondent No 8) are annexed hereto and marked as

‘ANNEXURE P-9 to P-16’, respectively..

The various reasons assigned by the Lieutenant Governor for

rejection of the Reports in the individual cases of the
Respondent Municipal Councillors can broadly be summarised

as follows:

i.  That the person in question had already been disgraced

~

publicly

ii. . That the persons in question had subsequeﬁtly been
denied a ticket to contest the Municipal Elections again

iiil.  That the Municipal Councillor had “spoken very little”
during the course of the interaction with the journalists
posing as builders

PR
e




26.

iv. That the person in question was no longer a Municipal
Councillor and therefore there was no need/purpose
served in sending the transcript and footage of the stir{g

f;p'eration to the appropriate investigating agency for

further action

The Petitioners submit that the orders passed by the Lieutenant
Governor rejecting the recommendations .of the Hon'ble
Lokayukta are tliable to be set aside as being wholly
unreasonable, vitiated by arbitrariness and bearing no rétional
nexus with the gravity and seriousness of the criminal offences
that the Hon'ble Lokayukta has found to be prima facie made
out. Particularly with reference to the conclusion arrived at by
the Hon'ble Lokayukta that the impugned conduct of the
Respondent Municipal Councillors prima facie discloses the
commission of offences attracting penal sanction, it is not open
to the Lieutenant Governor, without disturbing the factual or
legal basis of the said conclusion to nevertheless set aside the
said recommendation. It is well settled that criminal culpability
survives the removal of the person from the post or office held
during the commission of the criminal act or omission. Further,
the state in such instances is required under law to take
necessary action to initiate appropriate proceedings against the
perpetrators of criminal activity. Expression of regret and
perceived extra-legal sanctions, such as public disgrace/

shaming, cannot in a system governed by the rule of law serve




27.

28.

to grant remission from the rigours of the criminal justice

system.

1

The Petlitioner submits that the reasons specified by the .
Lieutemﬁt Governor for rejecting the recommendations of the
Hon'ble Lokayukta upon scrutiny prima facie betray complete
lack of application of mind by the Lieutenant Governor. The
conclusions of the Hon'ble Lokayukta were tlﬁé outcome of a
quasi-judicial proceeding during which all relevant material was
duly considered and the Respondent Municipal Councillors

were afforded a full hearing. As such, these findings are to be

accorded the deference due to a reasoned finding of a statutory
authority tasked with ensuring probity and transparency in

public administration.

The Hon'ble Apex Court has repeatedly held that the rights
guaranteed to citizens under Part Ill of the Constitution require
that any action of the state or its instrumentalities be just, fair,
reasonable and exercised for a bona fide purpose. Further, it
has been reiterated that Article 21 serves as a constitutional
guarantee of a corruption free government and all state action
must be directed towards achieving this outcome. The action of

any state functionary that fails to serve this objective is thus

uitra vires the Constitution of India.

Upon receipt of the various orders passed by the Lieutenant

Governor in the cases of the Respondent Municipal Councillors,




Y.
the Hon'ble Lokayukta, not being satisfied with the non-
acceptance of the recommendations made by him, took
recourse to the procedure stfpulated in Section 12(3) of the Act.:;'
In acco{_dence with the same, separate Special Reports wasi |
made to the Lieutenant Governor seeking reconsideration of
the decision of the Competent Authority and pointing out the
legal position and excerpts from the recorded conversations

that had possibly escaped the attention of‘lﬁfhe Lieutenant

Governor.

For the convenience of the Hon'ble Court and in the interests of

30.

brevity, the Petitioner herein submits a chart summarising the
factual position in respect of each of the Respondent Municipal
Councillors, indicating the nature of the transgression identified
by the Hon'ble Lokayukta, the consequential recommendation
by the Hon'ble Lokayukta, the reasons recorded by the
Lieutenant Governor in rejecting such recommendations and
the further action taken by the Hon'ble Lokayukta:

Sr. | Name of | Finding of | Offence Action taken | Further  action
No. | the Public | the HMon'ble | cited by the | by and Order | by the Hon'ble
| Authority | Lokayukta Hon'ble of the | Lokayukta

/ as to nature | Lokayukta Competent
of Authority(LG)
Transgressi
on
1. | Shri /The As per | Held  further | The  Lokayukta
Subhash Councilor of | Lokayukta proceedings by | has vide letter
Jain, his own | report granting dated  February
volition offence personal 28, 2013

’ Ex-

18
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Councilor | expressly and | under section | hearings. No[submitted the
willingly 8 & 9 of PCA | action taken as | Special Report
agreed to | prima  facie | censure | under section 12
help the | committed. uncalled for. | (8) of the .Acg.'

’ reporters Accordingly it | Vide | order | praying to the LG

ra]!é was ordered | dated  january | to reconsider his
unauthorized | that the | 18, 2013, the | decision of not
construction | evidence LG stated, “the | acting on the
without recorded in | sting operation recommendétions,
sanction of | the deemed | has already | failing which he
plans by | judicial brought | has requested
assuring to | proceedings | disgrace to the J‘that the Sbecia!
personally be forwarded | Respondent Report with
sort the | to the | Councillor and explanatory
matter  with | appropriate that he was | memorandum be
the Jr. | Investigating | subsequently laid before the
Engineer. Agency not given the Legislativé

(Commission | ticket to contest | Assembly as per

er of Police) | the  Municipal | the statute, |

for Elections again.

consideration

as to whether

it constitutes

an  offence

under the

PCA.

2. Ms. Anita | The As per | Held further | The Lokayukta
Koli, Councilor and | Lokayukta proceedings by | has vide letter
Ex- her husband | report the | granting dated  February
Councilor | were facts personal 28, 2013

interested in | emerging in | hearings.  No | submitted the
taking money | the transcript | action taken as | Special Report
and getting | may  prima | censure uﬁder section 12
unauthorized | facie amount | uncalled for. | (6) of the Act,
construction | to an offence | Vide order | praying to the LG
done by | under PCA. | dated to reconsider his
paying part of | Accordingly it | November 9, | decision of not
ilegal was ordered | 2012, the LG |acting on the
L gratification | that the | stated  “...the recommendation;.J
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to Jr.

Engineer.

evideﬁce
recorded in
the deemed
judicial
proceedings
be forwarded
to the
appropriate
Investigating
Agency
(Commission
er of Police)
for
consideration
as to whether

it constitutes

sting operation
was carried out
with
intentions to

malafide

defame her and
ruin her
career.....she

had
very little during

the

spoken

entire

episode and on ;.

no
had sought any
illegal

gratification for

herself or

occasion

T failing which he

requested
the Special
with.

has
that
Report
explanatory
memorandum be
laid the
Legislative
Assembly as per

before

the statute.

J

already brought
public disgrace

an offence | anybody eise.”
‘ under the
i PCA.
13, The Recommend | Held  further | The  Lokayukta
Shateshwa'| Councillor ed censure. | proceedings by | has vide letter
was As per | granting dated  February
demanding Lokayukta personal 28, 2013
Councillor | Rs, 7.00 | report dated | hearings. No | submitted the
lakhs instead | June 29, | action taken as | Special Report
of Rs. 5.00|2012 offence | censure under section 12
lakhs being | under section | uncalled for, | () of the Act,
offered and|7, 8 & 9 of | Vide order | praying to the LG
agreed to talk | PCA dated October | to reconsider his
to the Jr.| committed, 26, 2012 the | decision of not
Engineer to | LG held: “..at|acting on the
get the illegal no occasion | recommendations,
construction she had asked | failing which he
done. for any | has requested
gratification. that the Special
The sting | Report with
operation has | explanatory

memorandum be

laid before the
.
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To the |
Cutneillor.
Therefcre, after
careful
consideration of
the report and
alt aspects of
the case, | hold |
that the issue of
“Censure” is not
called for in thisjl

case.”

Legislative
fssembly as per

the statute.

4. Ms. Manju | The As per | Held further | The Lokayukia
Gupta, Councillor Lokayukta proceedings by | has vide letter
Ex- showed her | report dated | granting dated March 8,
Councillor | willingness to | July 10, 2012 personal 2013  submitted

support  the | the facts | hearings. No | the Special Report
raising of | emerging in | action taken as under section 12
iflegal the transcript | censure (6) of the Act,
construction | may uncalled for. | praying to the LG
and providing | constitute Vide order | to reconsider his
protection offence dated decision of not
from MCD | under the | December 24, | acting on the
officials. The | PCA and | 2012 the LG | recommendations,
Councilior iPC. The | held: “ .that | failing which he
and her | evidence be | she had spoken | has requested
husband forwarded to | very little during | that the Special
assured the the entire | Report with
protection appropriate episode and at | explanatory
against investigating | no occasion | memorandum be
gratification agency for | had the | laid before the
and consideration | Respondent egislative
discussed the | as to whether | Councillor Assembly as per
amount  as |t constitutes | sought any | the statute,
well. offences illegal

under the | gratification for

PCA&IPC, herseif or

warranting anybody else. |,

any furtheri therefore, hoidJ

21
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action

duty bound to

and | that the issue of

this Forum is.’ *Censure” is not

called for in this

a financial

reward for

providing her
help

assistance,

and

She showed
eagerness for
the
gratification in

illegal

lieu of her
help in doing
such act by
exercising

her influence
with the Jr.
Engineer

whose official
duty is to stop
unauthorized

construction.

the transcript

prima facie
disclose an
offence

under section
8 2&13 (d)
(iy of PCA.
the above
evidence
being legal
evidence
recorded in
deemed
judicial
proceedings
be
forwarded to
the
appropriate

should

investigating

agency  for
consideration
as to whether
it constitutes
offences

| under the i
PCA

provided for in

the statute. No
action taken as
censure

uncalled for. in

this case also

the Competent
Authority  held
that “Censure”
was not called
for. The
Competent

Authority

observed that
the sting
operation had

already served
intended
and

its
purpose
had . brought
disgrace to the
Councillor.
Further,

had not
given a

she
been
ticket

for  contesting

and | Municipal

warrants anyJ Elections,

praying to fhe LG
to reconsider his
not
the

decision of
acting on
recommendations,

faiing which he

has requested
that the Special
Report with
explanatory

memorandum be
laid before the
Legislative

Assembly as per
the statute,

do the same. | case.” ‘

Ms. The As per [ Held  further | The Lokayul'{taJ
BeenaTha ﬂ'uncillor Lokayukta proceedings by | has vide Ietter
kuria, Ex-|showed acute | report dated grantihg dated March 13,
Councillor | interest  for | August 3, | personal 2013  submitted
raising illegal | 2012 “...the | hearings, which | the Special Report
construction | facts according to | under section 12

and expected | emerging in | Lokayukta no'tm_(-B) ~of the Act,

|
|

B e




further action | Therefore, |
’ and this | issue of %
i Forum is | “Censure” was
legally bound | not called for. '-I-
‘ to do the | :
T‘d sama. |t is
ordered
| accordingly.”

6. |Ms. 1 The As per | Held  further [The Lokayukta
JaishreeP | Counciliorwa | Lokayuktarep proceedings submitted the
anwar. Ex- | s more than  ort dated | by granting‘\‘Spec_ial Report
Councillor | eager and | May 25, 2012 | personal "“vdatéd Augusf 8,

willing to | the hearings.  No 2012, under section
facilitate the | ingredients of | action taken as [12 (6) of the Act,
unauthorized | Section 7, 8, | censure praying to the LG
h construction | & 9 of the PC | uncalled for. to reconsider his
through a | Act are | Vide order [decision of not
willing Jr. | substantially | dated July 18, jacting on  the
Engineer. Her | made out in 2012 the LG recommendations,
willingness to | the case. held: “..No failing which he
speak  and action called for has requested that
contact  the as she is no the Special Report
concerned Jr. longer with  explanatory
Engineer at Municipal memorandum  be
the opportune Councillor. ...no flaid  before the
time, coupled offence is made [Legisiative
with her self- out under PCA, |[Assembly as per
professed and therefore Lthe statute.
closeness to no need of
the builders, forwarding the
shows transcript/foota
misconduct ge of the Sting
and breach of QOperation to
norms of the appropriate
integrity  on ¢criminal
her part. investigating
agency.”
| 7. Shri  Ravi | Knowingly Construction | The LG | The Lokayukta
Prakash offered to act | of a building | observed: has vide letiter
23
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21,

contravention

of the MCD
Act, he
agreed to a
‘reasonable’
deal with the
builders

against a

consideratian
to be agreed
upon later.

e in offering
to act as a
facilitator for
constructiond
without
sanctioned
plan " would
be

contravention

in

of the above
provision and
in violation of
conduct
required to
be observed
by Municipal
Councillors
under

Section 2 (b}

| () of the Act.

Sharma, asafacilitatoﬂwitho'ut Tssuing of such | dated July 19,

Ex to carry out sanctioned reprimand at ' 2012  submitted

Councillor | unauthorized |plan s in present would | the Special Report
construction | contravention be under - section 12
and give his [ of Section linconsequential | (6)- of the A':ct.‘
Mp by | 332 and s since the | praying to the LG
assufing that | punishable respondent is no | to reconsi&er his
he would | under longer a | decision of not
‘handle’ the | Section 461 Municipal' 'acting on the
Jr. Engineer | read with Councillor.” recommendations,
of MCD. | Scheduie Xl - | failing which he
Being in the | of the Delhi “ has  requested
know that | Municipal that the . Special
construction | Corporation Report with
of a building | Act 1957. explanatory
without a | The action of memorandum be
sanction plan | a public laid before the
was in | representativ Legislative

Assembly as per
the statute.

i
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[8. ]smiAjit I The The The LG]The  Lokayukta
. Singh Councillor, | Lokayukta nbserved: ‘has vide letter
|  Tokas. Ex- | being aware | therefore [ "Issuing of such | dated July 19,
' Councillor | that the | recommende | Advisory at | 2012 submitt’ed’
proposed d to the LG | present would | the Specia! Repl:')rt_
| Mstruction (CA) to issue | be under section 12
was an advisory | inconsequential | {6) of the Act,
unauthorized | to the | since the | praying to the LG
and without a | Councilor, defaulting to reconsider his
sanction plan, | cautioning Public Official is decision of not
discussed in|him not to|no longer a|acting on - the
detail the | entertain  or | Municipal I recommendations,
evaluation of | offer help | Councillor.” failing which he
the proposed | regarding has requested
project  and | unauthorized that the Special
its construction Report with
profitability. as it was explanatory
However, against his memorandum be
there was no | public duty to laid before the
demand for | encourage Legislative
illegal unauthorized Assembly as per
B gratification. [ construction. the statute.
31. Despite the fact that the Special Reports in the cases of some

of the Respondent Municipal Counciliors were made as far

back as July 2012, action on the same on the part of the

Lieutenant Governor is still not forthcoming. While the various

Special Reports have been laid on the table of the State

Assembly, neither the executive nor the legislature has deemed

it necessary to take any action on the same.

The procedure adopted by the Lieutenant Governor in

considering the recommendations of the Hon'ble Lokayukta and

the reasons based on which the said recommendations have
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33.

been disregarded have effectively rendered the statutory
provisions establishing the Lokayukta otiose. The object and
purpose for which the said legislation was enacted, ie.
establifﬁment of an independent ombudsman whosé
recommendations were to be given due credence and serve as
the basis for further appropriate action - stands defeated by the
abovementioned approach adopted by ‘the Lieutenant

it

Governor.

Faced with the continued failure of the Competent Authority to
take the necessary action to give effect to his
recommendations, the Hon'ble Lokayukta has been
constrained, in accordance with Section 12(7) of the Act, to
issue ‘Substance of cases’ detailing the recommendations
made by him in the cases of the'Respondent Municipal
Councillors as well as critiquing the legal basis of the rejection
of the said recommenf:!ations by the Competent Authority. The
‘Substance of Case' issued by the Hon'ble Lokayukta pertaining
to Sh Subhash Jain (Respondent No 1), Smt Anita Koli
(Respondent No 2) and Smt Sateshwari Joshi (Respondent No

3) is annexed hereto and marked as 'ANNEXURE P-17’, the

‘Substance of Case' issued by the Hon'ble Lokayukta pertaining

to’ Smt Manju Gupta (Respondent No 4), Smt Bina Thakuria

. (Respondent No 5) is annexed hereto and marked as

'‘ANNEXURE P-18', the ‘Substance of Case' issued by the

Hon'ble Lokayukta pertaining to Smt Jaishree Panwar
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(Respondent No 8) is annexed hereto and marked as

‘ANNEXURE P-19', the 'Substance of Case' issued by the

Hon'ble Lokayukta pertaining to Sh Ravi Prakash Sharma:
(Respc?aﬂent No 7) and Sh Ajit Singh Tokas {(Respondent No 8')

is annexed hereto and marked as ‘ANNEXURE P-20’

As part of the said 'Substance of cases’, the Hon'ble Lokayukta
has also had occasion to opine on the proée'guré adopteg by
the Competent Authority as well as the reasons cited in favour
of rejection of the recommendations made by the ombudsman.
For the convenience of the Hon'ble Court, the position taken by
the Hon'ble Lokayukta in the ‘Substances of cases’ relating to
the Respondent Municipal Councillors may be-summarised as
follows:

i.  The inquiry was conducted giving full opportunity to the
Respondent Municipal Councillors to have their say and
lead evidence. There is no contention on the part of any
of these individuals that there was a failure to comply with
natural justice by the Hon'ble Lokayukta

ii. The raw footage and transcript of conversations drawn
from such footage that formed the factual Basis for the
conclusions arrived at by the Hon'ble Lokayukta was
admitted as between thé parties and is such is
unimpeachable. Nor have the Respondent Municipal
Councillors sought to deny the contents of the same or

question the veracity of the raw footage.




if,

vi,

vil.

3
The Act nowhere prévides for nor contempgztes further
hearing by the Competent Authority and in face requires
that the latter take a decision “on the basis of' the repof,t
i&-the Hon'ble Lokayukta. The grant of such furtheif
hearing is not in accordance with the Act, which position
is fortified by a written opinion of a former Attorney
General for India
In any event, the legally flawed approacﬁ.adobted b)’/ the
Competent Authority was further vitiated by the failure to
issue notice to the Amicus Curiae appointed by the
Hon'ble Lokayukta, who should have been given notice to
bring to the attention of the Liéutenant Governor the
relevant facts, the incriminating parts of the conversations
and salient aspects justifying the recommendations of the
Hon'ble Lokayukta.
The difference in interpretation of the Acts by the Hon'ble
Lokayukta and the Competent Authority was a matter that
ultimately required judicial resolution and deterrﬁination
No disagreement was expressed by the Competent
Authority with the findings or conclusions reached by the
Hon'ble Lokayukta in any of these cases
Simply because someone has ceased to hold public
office is no ground .to absolve him or her of any
punishment or penalty, particularly in view of the fact that |

such persons may be aspirants for other higher public

~office..
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viii. ~ Similarly, expression of regret does not serve to efface
the offence committed. particularly when the same is in

the context of a criminal law statute ‘

ix,v IFEach of the cases in which criminal offences under thé |
PC Act and MCD Act have been found to be prima facie
established, the individual in guestion was shown in the
foofage to be a willing participant in the_ illegal activities
contemplated and, either actively, or pas’”s'ii;aély," or thréﬁgh

a conduit, sought and bargained over the illegal
gratification payable. In many cases, the individuals in
question also offered their services for passing on-illegal

- gratification to other public officials.

35, The Petitioner submits that allowing admitted criminal
misconduct on the part of elected representatives to escape
unpunished despite the clear ffndings of the Lokayukta in this
regard not only erodes the public faith in the institution of the

independent ombudsman but is also vltra vires Articles 14 and

21 of the Constitution of India.

‘36. The Petitioner as a concerned and responsible civil sobiety
organisation committed to the cause of probity and
transparency in public administration.is.therefore constrained to
file the present Petition séeking appropriate action by the
Hon'ble Court to give effect to the letter and spirit of the Act and

direct that the recommendations of the Hon'ble Lokayukta be

_-given effect to in full, including by q’Uéshing the orders passed

i
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by the Competent Authority being the Lieutenant Governor of

Delhi in the cases of Shri Subhash Jain (dated January 18,

2013), Ms. Anita Koli (dated November 9, 2012 ), Ms,

ShateWari Joshi(dated October 26, 2012), Ms. Manju |
Gupta(dated December 24, 2012), Ms. Beena Thakuria (March
4, 2013) Ms. Jaishree Panwar (dated July 18, 2012) Shri Ajit

Singh Tokas (dated June 26, 2012) & Shri Ravi Sharma (dated

July 11, 2012) on the following:
GROUNDS:

A.  The Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of St. of Gujarat
v. R. A Mehta(2013) 3 SCC 1 has unequivocally held that
maladministration and corruption are destructive of the
rule of law and the constitutional guarantees under
Articles 14 and 21. The Hon'ble Apex Court observed:

“Corruption in a civilised society is a disease like
cancer which if not detected in time is sure to
spread its malignance among the polity of the
country leading to disastrous consequences...
Corruption is opposed to democracy and social
order, as being not only anti-people but also due to
the fact that it affects the economy of the country
and destroys its cultural heritage. It poses a threat
fo the concept of constitutional governance and
shakes the very foundations of democracy and the
rule of law. It threatens the security of the societies
undermining the ethical values and justice
Jeopardising sustainable development. Corruption
devalues human rights, chokes development and

corrodes the moral fabric of society. It causes

A | e
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considerable damage to the national economy,

national interest and the image of the country...

!'d Corruption in a society is required to be detected

and eradicated at the earliest as it shakes "the
socio-economic-political system in an otherwise
heaithy, wealthy, effective and vibrating (sic)
society’. Liberty cannot last long ynless the State is
able to eradicate corruption from public life.
Corruption is a bigger threat than external threat to
the civil society as it corrodes the vitals of our polity
and society. Corruption is instrumental in not proper
implementation and enforcement of policies
adopted by the Government. Thus, it is not merely
a fringe issue but a matter of grave concern and
requires to be decisively dealt with”
It i$ thus submitted that the well established position of
law is that the constitutional guarantee requires that a
policy of zero-tolerance be adopted towards any
corruption in public administration and that necessary
action be taken to prosecution and punish the same.
Failure to do so would have the deleterious effects
highlighted by the Hon'ble Supreme Court and would, ex
hypothesi, be ultra vires the Constitution of India.
That the Hon’bie Apex Court in the abovementioned case

sought to emphasise the central role of the office of the

Lokayukta in providing a mechanism through which

maladministration can be checked. !t was been held that
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"’In a state where scciety suffers from moral denigration

and simultaneously from rampant corruption, there must

be an effective forum to check the same. Thus th%"
Lﬂ(ayukta Act may be termed a pro-people Act’. It wa; |
further emphasised that keeping in mind the scope and
object of the Act, the provisions of the same were to be
interpreted in a purposive manner so as fo best serve the
objective of empowering the Lokayukta to eradicate the
evil of corruption an'_d ensure realisation of the
constitutional guarantee bf a corruption free society. It is
humbly submitted that the said purposive approach must
also be adopted by this Hon'ble Court in interpreting the

provisions of the Dethi Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act,

1995,

That on a purposive interpretation of the Act, it is
apparent that the recommendations of the Hon'ble

Lokayukta are to be acted upon by the Competent

Authority absent a finding that the same are vitiated by
mala fides or are arbitrary, wholly unreasonable or were
arrived at without adherence to principles of natural
justice.

That the procedure adopted by the Competent Authority
effectively amounted to a de novo hearing of each of the
cases of the Respondent Municipal Councillors. This

procedure of granting a fresh hearing following receipt of

32
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a report by the Hoh'ble Lokayukta under Se;:tfon 12(1) is
nowhere contemplated in the Act. The language of the
relevant statutory provision, viz. Section 12(2), in faci;'
Wates against the adoption of such a procedure by
specifying that the action taken or proposed to be taken
by the Lieutenant Governor was to be “on the basis of the
report” submitted by the Hon'ble Lokayuk}a- under Section
12(1). The Competent Authority haé”*“ihué acted in
contravention of the provisions of the act and effectively

supplanted the procedure clearly indicated in the statute

itself

Thé't in the cases of each of the Respondent Municipal
Councillors, it is the admitted position that the principles
of natural justice have been fully complied with. The
concerned individuals were at all times represented by
legal counsel and were given the opportunity to lead
submissions on fact and law before the Hon'ble
Lokayukta. Admittedly, the procedure followed by the
Hon'ble Lokayukta does not suffer from any procedural
infirmity. In such circumstances, in considering the
recommendations of the Hon'ble Lokayukta, it is not open
to the Competent Authority to put in place a procedure
not contemplated in the Act merely with a view to

affording a basis for rejection of the said

recommendations.
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" That the procedure adopted by the Competent Authority

not only renders the provisions for hearing before the

Hon'ble Lokayukta otiose, but also has the effect o“fl

rg;dering the very institution of the Lokayukta redundant.

If in every case the Competent Authority were to rehear
the matter in its entirety and arrive at contrary findings
based on such hearing, the role of the H.gn‘b!e Lokayukta
would become untenable and the statutory function

clearly ascribed to the ombudsman in the Act would be

devalued.

That the Competent Authority cannot arrogate itself to the
position of a Court of first instance on matters of fact as
well as law as has been done in the instant case. Rather,
Section 12(2) of the Act and the central role of the
Lokayukta under the Act in identifying and initiating
proceedings against corrupt public functionaries suggests
that the recommendations of the Hon'ble Lokayukta are
ordinarily to be implemented in full uniess vitiated by a
legal infirmity,"rn'the process of decision-making, or the
decision itself ié sO unreasonable that it could not have
been arrived at by any reasonable person, .or the

Lokayukta has considered some irrelevant material or

has failed to consider the relevant material. Admittedly,

none of these infirmities are present in the Reports issued

.. by the Hon'ble Lokayukta in the present case.
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That there was no legal basis for the rejection by the
Competent Authority of the recommendations of the
Hon'ble Lokayukta since the primary evidence in the

Lfdezsent case, i.e., the raw footage of the sting operation

as well as the transcripts of the conversations so
recorded was admitted as between the parties. The
Respondent Municipal Councillors also ,a:;),,no point sought
to challenge the veracity of the raw footage. Hence, no
factual dispute existed in the present case. Further, in no
case has the Competent Authority expressed any
disagreement with the findings or qonclusions reached by
the Hon'ble Lokayukta. As such, the recommendations
have been set aside on the basis of orders that are for all
intent and purposes non-speaking in so far as' the

substantive legal questions in issue are concerned.

That when the recommendations contained in the report
of the Hon'ble Lokayukta brima facie indicate the
commission of an offence under a penal statute, it is not
open to the Competent Authority to reject the
recommendation of the Hon'ble Lokayukta to place all
relevant material before the appropriate investigative

authority to determine the further course of action to be

taken
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That the reasons advanced by of the Competent
Authority for rejecting the recommendations of the
Hon'ble Lokayukta, i.e., expression of regret by th:ga‘
?ﬁ‘spondent Municipal Councillors: public disgrace, anid
or a passive/muted participation in a criminal activity,
cannot have the effect of effacing an admitted criminal
activity and earning a remission from thg full rigour of the
criminal justice system. In fact, the sai"c"f'reas'ons dcin'not

even amount to a substantive defence in criminal

proceedings.

That the reasoning based on which the Competent
Authority has rejected the recommendations of the
Hon'ble Lokayukta prima facie demonstrates a lack of

application of mind and a failure to consider the relevant

material.

That the fact that a person has demitted public office
does not efface his/her criminal culpability arising out of

acts or'omissions carried out while holding such office.

That it is not open to the Competent Authority to condone
criminal conduct on the specious ground thét taking of
action would be ‘inconsequential’ in a given case. Such a
decision can only be taken at the instance of the
competent [nvestigating Officer and such decision is

subject to chailenge in accordance with the provisioné of
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the Criminal Procedure Code and other applicable penal
statutes. By declining even to send the relevant evidence
to the appropriate authority under law, the Competent:

Whority has altogether bypassed the applicable lega‘i! :
provisions and deprived concerned members of the

public their right to take part in and assist in the

prosecution of criminal conduct.

P .
That when criminal conduct or omissions on the part of a
public functionary are brought to the attention of a
responsible state organ, the latter is obligated as a matter
of law to refer the same to the appropriate investigative
agency for further appropriate action, including
prosecution in accordance with law. No discretion vests in
the Competent Authority to.subét'itute its opinion for that
of the investigating agency or to pre-emptively c¢lose such

investigation at its own sweet will. Such a procedure is

_alien to the Criminal Procedure Code and other

applicable penal statutes

in view of the constitutional guarantee u.nder Articles 14
and 21, there is a positive obligation on all state
functionaries to act in a manner consistent with the
achievement of this constitutional guarantee. The conduct
of the Competent Authority has the effect of shielding

brazen acts of corruption by elected representatives as

.established by a statutory authority instituted for this
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purpose, i.e., the Lokayukta and is, therefore, uitra vires

Part lil of the Constitution of India.

P. That the conduct of the Competent Authority is

déstructive of the rule of law, which is part of the basic

structure of the Constitution and does violence to the
constitutional guarantees of transparency and probity in

governance and public administration.

37. That the Petitioner submits no similar petition has been
filed. by the Petitioner challenging the said orders, either before
any other Court, including this Hon'ble Court or the Hon'ble
Supreme Court,

PRAYER

In the circumstances, it is therefore most respectfully prayed that this

Hon'ble Court may graciously be pleased to:-

a) issue an appropriate Writ, direction or deciaration, to the effect
that the orders passed by His Excellency, the Lieutenant
Governor of Delhi in the cases of Shri Subhash Jain (dated
January 18, 2013), Ms, Anita Koli (dated November 9, 2012},
Ms. Shateshwari Joshi (dated October'26, 2012), Ms. Manju
Gupta(dated December 24, 2012), Ms. Beena Thakuria(March
4, 2013 ) Ms. Jaishree Panwar (dated July 18, 2012) Shri Ajit
Singh Tokas (dated June 26, 2012) & SHri Ravi Prakash
Sharma (dated July 11, 2012)rejecting the recommendations

contained in the reports of the Hon'ble Lokayukta dated of Shri

... Subhash Jain (dated August 27, 2012), Ms. Anita Koli (dated

,ﬂigw"?‘- N ocl) i
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June 29, 2012), Ms. Shateshwe;ri Joshi (dated June 29, 2012),
Ms. Manju Gupta (dated July 10, 2012), Ms. Beena Thakuria
(August 3, 2013 ) Ms. Jaishree Panwar (dated May 25, 20121);‘
Shri A;_#Singh Tokas (dated March 26, 2012) & Shri Rav;
Prakash Sharma (dated March 22, 2012)are illegal, null, void

and witra vires the Constitution of India

direct that the entire record pertaining to the cases of the

Respondent Municipal Councillors be forwarded to the

Commissioner of Police for c¢onsideration, evaluation and

further action in accordance with law

grant any further relief that this Hon'ble Court may deem

appropriate in the facts and circumstances of the case

pass such other and further orders as this Hon'ble Court may

deem fit and proper in the circumstances of the case.
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! INTHE HIGH COURT OFDELHI AT NEW DELH!

N THE MATTER OF A PUBLIC INTEREST LITIGATION
'EXTRAORDINARY WRIT JURISDICTION
*RWPEH“ONKHNQ OF 2013

IN THE MATTER QF:’

COMMON CAUSE...PETITIONER
' VERSUS

SHRI SUBHASH JAIN AND ORS. ...RESPONQENT(S)

AFFIDAVIT
I, Kamal Kant Jaswal, aged about 88 years, S/o Sh.Ambica Prasad Jasvaul,
resident of B-34, Ground Floor, Geetanjali Enclave, New Deihi, do hereby
solemnly affirm and declare as under:

1. That | am the Authorized Representative of the Petitioner above
hamed. fhe Petitioner is a“Registered Society haviﬁg its office at
Common Cause House, 5 Institutional Area, Nelson‘MandeIa Road,
VasantKunj, New Delhi - 110070 and | am authorised te institute and
sign this petition by the Rules of the Petitioner Society’s Rules &
Regulations duly by its Governing Council

2. That | have filed the present petitiﬁn as a Public Interest Litigation.

. 3. That | have gone through the.Delhi High Court *(Public Interest
Llitigation) Rules, 2010 and do hereby affirm that the present Public
Interest Litigation is in conformity thereof.

4. That'the Petitioﬁer has no personal interest in the litigation and neither
myself nor anybody in whom the petitioner is.interested would in any

manner benefit from the relief sought in the present litigation save as a
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member of the General Public. This petition is not guided by self-gain

or gain of any person, institution, body and there is no motive other

!

than of public interest in filing this petition.
5. That | ha\is‘done whatsosver inquiry/ investigation which was in my : \

bower to dé:l..to collect ail data/ material which was available and which '

was relevant for this court tolenrertaln the present petition. | further

confirm that | have not concealed in the pre'sent 'petition any data/

material/ information which r';xay have enabled this court to ‘fqrm an

| '

opinion whether to entertain this petition or not and/or whether to grant

any relief or not. ' | /-Q

° . DEPONENT
E ' D 4
. VERIFICATION: T o
Nelsom idatd o oo v hynt
I the above named Deponent, do hereby verify that the S6AtER Ui
'above affidavit are true and correct t the best of my knowledge and belief, no
‘part of it is false and nothing material has been concealed therefrom.
Verified at New Delhi on this |___ day of , 2013
DEPONENT
Kamal Xaut tagwad
Dirstina. 100 - 70 1 AUSE
.::._! Pt i, )
Nelson M2z b0 o, Yasaor Kubjs

*  New Delb-11v 078
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1.( BEFORE THE HON'BLE LOKAYUKTA
Justice Manmohan Sarin

Compiain{ Nu. .C-1150/ Lol/2011

Re- 1n the matter of u report titled *Sting Operation Ke:Baad Parshado.
Me Macha Hadkamp',  appearing in ‘Nav Bhardt Times' dated
7.12.2011

And

In Uve mauter of inguiry ws 7 read with 2{b) of the Delhi Lokayukta
and  Upalokayukia  Act, 1995 in respect of the conduer of
Sh.Subhash Jain, Municipat Councillor,

- REPORT

Coenizance and Issuanee of Notices

b, Svo mole ¢ogalzance was laken of a report uded “Siing
QOparatior. Ke laad  Parshadon  mein Mache  Hadkamp”,
appencing in “Wav Rharat Times™ dated 7-12.208 1, Vide Owder
dated 7-12-2011, notices swere issued to the Editor and- City
Correspondent of “Nav [Jharat Tinres” to praduce complete
recovds ol interview and other evidence in relation o the press

’ report. Notices were also directed to be issued o the Managing
Director and Correspondent of Channel H3N-7, whe had carried
ot the telecast of the sting operation showing nvalvement of
Municipal Councillors participating in . negotiations regarding
carrying out of illegat and unauthorized constructions Jor illegaul
gratification, 'f'he reporters of Cobra Post, who had been
deputed by the Chamnel IBN-7 10 carry out the sting operatian,
were directed to produce the original fuotagesrecords of the

sting operation.

Commencement of Procecdings

Pursgant 1o the nolices issued, the advocate of Mig, TV

)

Broadeast L, whicl owns Channel TBN-7, appeared with two

reparters of Cobra Post owned by Mg Shri Bhardway Medin

§ " —— e e
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Py, Lid, who had carried out the sting operation under an
arrangement  with Channe! [BN-7. The stwtements ol the
reporters who had carried out the sting operation were duly
recorded on oath as CW-1 and CW-2, The Deputy Gengral
Manager of H3N-7, Mre. Sachin Dev, CW-3, afso fendered the
original foolage contdined in the 12%Es, as Ex.CW. 3/, Ex,
CW3/2, Ex. CW3/3 and Fx. CW34, The DVD of the lelecist
programme was atso tendered as Ex, CW3/S, The uanseripts of
the recorded conversaiion of the mectings and negotiatiens with
Respondent Councillor and 7 other Councillors were also
tendered. Aller viewing the DVD recording of the conversation
of reporters with the Counciliors and perusal of the transeripts
ol the same, vide Creders dated 211222011, it was heldthat case
for ingquiry under See. 7 riw 2(b), (1), (i), (i1) & (iv) of the At
was made out and notice o the rvespondent and other
Councillors returnable on t6-01-2012, were dirccted to be
issued. The lite of cach Councillor was directed 10 be

segrepated and registered ws o separale complaint,

Considering the patine of the controversy and issues arising for
consideration, it was found cxpedient and in the interest of
justice 1o appoint an Amicus Cuoriae and Shri Abhifit Bal
Advocate, was so appointed vide Qrder dated 16" January,
2012, "T'he Respondent entered appearance through Shri N N,
Aggarwal Advocate, and filed his reply to the show cause

notice on $0-02-2012,

In view of the ensuing municipal e¢loctions, most of
Respondent Councillors made o fervent plea for expeditious
disposal of these inquiry proceedings so that if allegations are
not proved, they stands exonerated without delay, so as nél 10

affect their election prospects,

Procedure adopted for Inquiry

The Coumsel and parties were heard and their suggestions

consideved regarding adopiion ol the procedure in the inquiry
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50 as to conform to the principles of natoral justice, while

expediting the Inguiry, yet giving the fullest opportunity to the

parties 1o present their respective casc. A conscnsus amerped on

the procedre to be adopted which is re-prodaced below for

lacility of reference:-

——
—
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Al the Counsel and narties s}{:.*n?l’l:‘:'c:zciééx»'c.nx;' tc:
abide by the time piven for complelion of
pleadings. In tact the Respondents  acd  the
broadeaster have ali stated that they  would  take
ot more than ane 1o three weeks so - that the
entire pleadings can he completed within a month

at the maximum,

Regarding the authenticity and correciness of the:
recordings which have been praduced,-it has been

agreed that individual footage in ¢ach: of ‘thesé:

cases would ‘be played in court before e
Presiding QtTicer with hesvequipment.as available

with the Broadeaster to make e sound ¢lear and

discernable so that some of the gaps noticud i the-

transcripts i present are filled up and an avempt
is made for an agreed ronscript 1o emerge. It s
prayed by the Counsels that viewing should be
spread over one week and individust recordings be
viewed ond partics heard.

Wherever it is not possible 1o have an agreed
anseripy,  the Broadeaster and the  Respandent,
cach may give their version with regard w the
particular words  uttered. This forum would then
decide the  conwroversy, Accordingly, in case \hie

broadeaster und the Respondent arg at variance,

eiach would have the option 10 present. its version:

of the transcript.  Beyond the discrepancies.in the

transcript, Counsel and parties subinit thar  they

—— ety o R 12 = * T s — cmbewn * et s .
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Yd‘ are not questioning the anthansicity or demunding
any other reguirement with regard 10 the proof of

the recardings. Considering the nature of he
inquiry tefore the Lokavukia formal proof of
thease recordings is dispensed with,

{1} Parties arc agreed rhat based on the pleadings and
transeripts as finalized, the Lols;;-_yuku: would fix
the date of hearing in 1he individual ¢ases.

(iv) Parties arc agreed that any common {ssue.of law or
facts which arises for -consideration in their
inquiries would be deajt with logether by the
Lokayukia and while'the evidence anidl arguments
in relation to cach of the cases of transeripts will
be separately taicen up.

(v) It is also agreed that while the- athenticity of the
conversation and their  wanseripts. would  be
established in the above manner, paitics would be
al Jiberty 10 point out any personal animosity or
motive on the part of the reporters for  having,
carrieel oul the sling operation.”

None of the Counscl made any suggesiion or vequest for
alteration or modification in the abave procedure, which was accepiud
by all,

Finalization of Teangeripts of Recording ;-

5. The Olfice of the Lokayukia made arrangements lor viewing of
the DVIs containing copies of the original footage relerred 10
us the “raw footage™. ‘The raw footage us recorded in the DVDs
were plaved and re-plaved severnl times in the presence ol the
Respondent Councilfor and the Counsel for Respondent nnd

Amicus Curine and the Advacate for [3N-7 Channel,

6. During the plaving of the recording of the raw footage, the
Respondent, his Counsel as also the Counsel for-the Channel
and the Amicus Curiag gave their inputs. 10 reach.s consensus,

\‘W The Forum also placed on record the cooperation of the
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Counsel snd the efforts put in by the Amicus Curine in
completion of this exercise. The Registry was directed 1o
supply the corrected version of the transeripts, afler carrying out

the correction as noted by the Presiding olticer.

Completion of Pleadings

Pleadings were compleied. Copy of the Prcss".[é’qport ;__tppeu:‘iuls;l
in “Nay Bhuaeat Times” dated 7-12-2011 is annexed hercto as
Annexuresl, Copy ol Reply-Cum-Writlen Statement filed by
the Respondent on 10-2.2012 is annexed hercto as Annexures
11, fhe Respondent and his Counsel ax well as the Amicus
Curine and Counsel for iBN-7, all submitled that the matter be
proceeded with on the basis ol the transcript of the origingl
footnge as finalized aller viewing and no further evidence
needs to be led by thern or the Respondent. The said statement
was made by the Respondent’'s Counsel on the basis of
instructions by the Respondent. The Respandent’s Counsel only
wished 1o make oral submissions in support of pleas-taken in
reply cum writlen statement. The transcript of conversation as
finalized and agreed 10 between all parties and marked ‘CV?,
e, correcled version, subject 10 the ubove observations iy

annexed hereto as Annexure-1l1,

SUMMARY OF TRANSCRIPT

i would be appropriste at (bis stage, o summarize e
anserips as toalized which recorded the conversation betveeen

the Respondent and the eeporter/builder.

The reporters meet the Respondent §h, Subbash Juin at
his residence with o prior appoiniment,  One of the reporiers
introduces himsell” as Sanjecv Singh resident of Raj Nagay,
Ghaziabad.  He tells that he is 2 builder and the name of his
company 15 “Ashivinuyak™. He buys plots, raises construction
and then sefls thein, e tells that he has purchased a plot of 666

sif. yards in his aret. The Respondent enquices whether it talls




inan approved aren? The reporters tedl yes, icis in Jvot Napnr
as they work only i posh areas. The reporter savs that
construction is  uenerally illegal which the Respondent
acknewledges.  The reporter soys that they make a budgs
before starting any waork, They have directly approeches? him

and none else. The reporters say that they have also started

work 1 Malviva Nagar and Khirki Extensiona Reporters siate

that they have wnken work' for the first Uime in his arca and that
is why they have come Lo meet him face 1o face. The reporiers
give the number of plot as J-322 and explain its location.
Respondent  tells  the  Reporters  that  they  cannot  raise

commarcial construclion as srca is residential.

9, Respondont offcrs tea / water ele. and conversation

resumes.

The reporters say that they work according to their
budget. When ey had siarted work in Khirki Extension
persons started filing RTs and 2 Junior Engineer staried
harnssing. Reporters  say  that  once  they  have
t':ming.f'undcr.s‘im‘.ding with hiny there would be no need w©
ask envbady else. The Respondent says that he
svuniaing his standards and does not directly deal besides
he s o religious man, devoted 1o temples and doces not

wid lo earn a haed nme.

1, Repoctees mention Sh. Auna Hazare's campaign agaiost
carvupiion and asked whether it would afteet their work
expressing that i they weore to work legally they would
not be able to put a briek. The Reporter assures that Sh.
Anna Hazare's campign does. not alfect simall ime
leaders. He wants that our money should remain-in lodia,
It is not his aim 10 stop their work.  The Roporter says
that now a days in Dethi alt the buildings are constructed:
illegully, The Respondent expresses his views .and says

that eved in cnses where building plais-sre san¢tioried,




Yd: the actual plan ties as a wasie paper and the construction
carrted is itlegal, The Reporter then specifically usked
whether they could work withouwt a sanctioned plan to
which the Respondent assures that evervthing can be
done. The reporters expressed that they do not want to
waste Hime i getiing o plan sanctioned as it would take
aroumd one and o halt" montly and in lh'..}'(;,;,imc they could -
lay two linfels and that is why they have come o him: .
The Respondent in whispering response says that Junior
Engincer and Assistamt Engineer would have ta be paid

and 1aken ko conlidence.

1. The reporters parvoted  thenr experience  in Khirki
Ixtension, where the Juniar Engincer did come but it did
not cause a problem since there were fixed rates and they
'would Luke about one and a half lakhs per linte! before it
i faid, Regarding the Police, the Respondent ussures thas
they do not trouble, when Lﬁey are given (heir due and
they simply (il a form and send it to MCD.  He Tuither
states that Palice would have to be paid directly while
MCD harass you. The Respondent says that be witl have
to talk w Junior Engineer and Assistant Epgineer
personally and tells the reporters that they can stait their

work since they atready have aplot.

2. Respondent inquires as 1o how many- lintels would be
2id? Reportersfbuilders tell that:they would put 4 !ii;tcls
and take the height up to 16 meiers i.e one meter nbove
the limit for which they would need his help. Respendent
then tells that for a plot of 200 sq. yds. and for one lintél
the engineers had charged Rs. 80.000/-. He had asked
them 1w reduce it but does not know how much they

actunlly reduced.

———————
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During the conversation the Respondent also tell about

his  faniily’s  invélvament in real  estate . busifiess:
Respondent explains that the Juniar . Boginces s on
important person who takes money and protecis.and save
the buikler. The Junior 'Engineer/Assistant “Engineer
know hew 1o do it and what they put in. writing. is more
powerful than the work of a leader, w_l_'i,o, should have
stirength to control them. Y j
Reportersfouiidets say that-tor a plot of 200 sq. .yards
matter gets settled with Councillor and Junior Enginecr
between Rs. 8 1o Bs. 10 lakhs, and they enquired fro'ﬁj-
the Respondent the estimate how much. woulkl be needed
for their plot which is bigger. This they want'lo know to
make a budpet. The space 1o belelt ete. is discussed, The
Respondent tells them he has wold the estimate of 200 sq.
yds. and he would talk. 1o the JE afier calling him. ‘the
Respondent assures 1o settle with' the. JE; who woiild
coordinate with the Ex. Enéincc:xan& DE and futher
assures that -he vwm-lld see that they (reporters/builders)

have 1o pay minimum mongy.

ReponerTailder wants 10 pay through the Respondent
who says that he will take money only when rate is
settled. Me would cali the DC and AL and pay
conmnission up to the higher fevel and would ask the DC .
104 tb visit the gali’s-Ganes). The Rcspondcﬁt assures the
Reporter/Builders that he will he coordinating everyihing

even TV peopte and reporers would be tackied,

The: reading  of it enuire !)'nnSCI:i])l between  Lhe
Repavier/Builders und the Respondent with regard Lo the
anout {o be paid lor the unnuthorized constroction (o be
carried val show that a sum of Rs. 5 lakhs: was offered (o
and agreed to lor the Respondent while the tentativi

figures being discussed for the Junior Engineer anc
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othérs was in the range of Rs. 16 lakks. Furnther
undlerstanding that had been arrived on between the.
Reporter/Builders and the Respondent was that il the
Jatter could get the amount 100 be paid to the lunior
Engineer and others reduced then the said benefit would
come to him. This becomes evident from the following
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o

Response and Submissions of the Respondent,

17.The Respondent had filed reply in response 1o tie notice, under

Sec.7 r/w Sec. 2 (b)Y of the Act,

The Responden had (iled o reply to the Show Cause
Notice. He submitted that he has been dischdi§ing lifs duties a's
a Councillor in honest and transparent manner-to the best of his
abilities, doing social service and  was instrumental in
constriicting a Jain Temple in Jyoli Calony, Shahdara and was
heading tie soviety known as “Sheee Kalvan Shent Parishad™.
Fle has never misused his official position for any personal

Bains,

As regard the sting operation the responcant has stated

that the reporters have laid un claborate entrapment purswan (o
aweli thoupht v canspitacy by vertain vesied nrerest and i
was actumed by omatice nad dtlegal motive 1o defione the
Respondent. Tle has further stated that the entire aperation was
stepe manuped and was done af the behest of his poeliticat
pedversry pamely Mro Gulam Suwani who had lost e the
responcent in the previous cleation. 1t was further submiiied
that the reporiers had themselves approached, the respondent
wilthout any inducement what so ever from the respondent. 1L is
submitted that the iranseript would reflect that respondent was
very conscious about his reputation as w public figure. As a
public figure he s 1o deal with various kinds of people and it
is not always possible for him to throw ow any person even if
the subject of discussion is notapproved by him. lt is furthee
submitied that the whole sting operation revolved, around the
wleged cnnsiruczion of building and the answering respondent
bas no power or authority (o.sanction any such building
\Sb activity. No money was iaken or rcccivcd'byl.l:he respondént
from the reporters 1o misuse his official position. it was further

C submitted that the allegations which are mnde ageinst the




!d: respandent do not constitute any abuse or misuse of official
position to obinin any gains or faveur in discharge of hiy
function as a *Public Functionary' as envisaged under section 2
(b (i1, {1i1) v (iv) of Delhi Tokayukia and Upalokayuk!s Act,
1993

Fayalustion of the Conducet of Respondent as' Unravelied by
gt

the Transeript and Consideration of the Reply and Meas in

Response,
18. The subimissions ¢ ihe Fd. Counsel for the Respondem, the L,
Counsel for the Broadeaster and the Ld, Amicus Curiae were

heatrel,

The submissions of the Ld, Counsel [or Respondent Sh.
NUN. Aggarwal were conlined Lo the plea laken in the reply by
the Respondent while arguing on merits. But at the same time
the Ld. Counsel for Respondent submitted that Respondent had
no intension of involvement in any iHegal activity. The
reporteishave doctored the conversation’in :sugh:-gv manner.as.to
ke words. out of the mouth of .the Fespowdent, I was
submitted -that unwuthorized. construction s & part of lile in.
‘Delhi which has viiated the astmosphere. The.l.d. Counsel
submitled (hat despite the cntire sting operation being
manipulaled, doctored and words h:.wihg been extracted from
the Respondent in the conversation, the respoadent regrets from
core of his heart his getting involved in such a conversation and

also tenders an unconditional apology.

The Respondent has taken '1hc-;i|ch that the entire sting
operation was illegal, metivated and it is an incidem .of
entrapment.  This plea however, has no substance. 10 view of
the autharitative pronouncement by the Hon'ble Supreme - Court.
on the issue of “sting vperations” in the cuse of R.K Anand Vs,

‘\% Registrar, Delhi High Cowrt 2009 (8) SCC 106, The Supreme
‘ Court while dealing swith stings .and tclcecast of sting

programmes abserved in para 179 as under :-




? &fo "

’d'- °Looking at the mauer from a slightly different angle we ask
the simple question, what wauld Hiave been in gredter public
interest; 1o allow the atlempt to.subern 4. withdss; With, dbjeci to.
undermine a eriminal trial, fic quietly behind veil nf.-égcr:cy or
to bring ot the mischief in tull public gaze? To our mind, the
answer is obvious: The sting telecast by IS:'D"I'Vhwns indeed i

larger public interest and it served an importaog pablic cause.” |

19. The sting aperation in the present case was also for public good
to expose the menace of unauthorized construction and the
complicity of the City Fathers therein, who instead of wking
steps o curb this menace, mix up with builders and assure their
support for raising unauthorized canswuetion.  Any act which
exposes this unbely nexus of the representative of people and
unserepulous builders, is in the larger public interest. So the

sling operation serves an “impariant public cause.”

2

STherefore the argument that the sting operation was unethical,
ilegal and wus with malafide imention cannot be nceepicd.
The conversation which took place betweern the reporters aud
the Respondent mukes it amply clear that the Respondent not
only gave assurance to the reporters posing as builder w hetp
them in rarsing the construction but adso sought a gratification
fue such o help. The tone and tenor and conients of the
conversation  clearly  brings ouwt (hal the reponers  were
sugpesiing, raising  of illegnl construction for which they
recetved tacit consent and approval by the Respondent for

fioancial gams.

Jhe conversation between the reporters and the Respandent

2

—

clearly shows the interest of the Respondent in ramsing itlegal
and unauthorized conslructions expeeting a financial reward [or
praviding his help and assistance to them in daing such an act

by exercising his influence with the JI3, whose official duty itis

to stop unauthorized construction,

=




o ‘e

22 The entire  conversaiion between  the reporiers  and  the
’d‘- responcdint primarily  concerns  paising  tie  unauthorized
construction.  The resptndent was fully conscious about the
lact that the reporters  intending o raise uwnauthorized
coustruction. A reference 10 the certain portion of -the
conversation between the respondent and the reporlers would
confirmy that respondent was fully aware abolg'l:‘%ﬁ,t_hc purpose c)‘ll'
the visit ol the reporters. The Respondent nowhere has shown
any sign of reluclance while discussing the issue of raising of
unauwthorized construction,  The Respondent, rather c.;:piuin 10
the reporiers that the Junioe Engineer in the aren tokes care of
gverything and he also ke care of the senior officers that is the

- Al .f-\.C and DC of the zone.

-

FeJ
2

JThe veporiers had asked the respondent whether they can work
without the sanctioned plan as they do not want waste time in
getting the plan senctioned as that would take around one and 4
hall' month and in this duration they-can lay two.linicls. The'
respondent says that everything can be managed, 1he Junior
Engineer and Assis’mm Engineer are io be paid and taken into
confidence. The following excerpts (rom the transcript are

being reproduced on this point,

Reporter : kya naksha agar no banwaye kys kaam-chal jayega?
Responcient @ sab kapm.ho jata hai. |
Reporter : humiflegal kima chahte hat.

Reporcter T nakshe wakshe ka chukkar me time badh jayeaa,
aapka election nikal jayega 1o dikkat ho jayegi.

Reporter @ ek dedh mahing aap anvn, lijive naksha pans karaane
me.

Reporter 20 or jab tak hum do lintel daal denge. Haalaki aisa

nahi hai hum....uoa nashi Jekin sap thodit sa wo rakhenge 1o
‘/@ koi dikkat nahi aayegl. . .




Respondent : JE AE ko dena padega.

Reporter: JE ko kuchh.

Respondent : jyada dena padega..... kyvoki JE awr AL, .. mai
WO .0 wo ghunue rahie hab.io unko vishwas me Jana

padepy”,

‘This conversation indicates that the Resfionderit was weli
awuare  about the unauthorized consteuction  which  the
Reporter/Builder. wanted to raise. The respondent rather went

along with the suggestion building being raised without

sanctioned plan lor which and AL would have to be paid and

ke into confidence,

The entire conversation with the reperers shows tal the
Respondent of his own vohton offered his services to help the
reparters 1o raise unauthorized construction.  Some relevan

exverpts in the transcript are being produced.

“Respondent : mai thoda sa asal ine kya hai ki JE Al ko mujhe
bolna padeg, mai unse khud kahunga, (inaudible sound) aap

chwalu karo, jugah o sapne le i
Reporter | jee
Respondent @ bas, banuna hai

Reporier 22 bas shury kwna hal

‘

Respondoent @ lentid Kime daaine hai?

This  vconversation  shows  tie  willingness  of the
Hespondent wo use fis ollicial position to influence e JE and
the AL and thus help the reporters/builders in caising

unautharized construciion,

The understanding of the Respondent about the modus
operandi adopted for raising the canstruction unauthorisedly
with” the assistance and coniivance of Muricipal Staff -is

rcflected by the Tollowing conveérsation.:

o ah ot e

] ~~~“}'€5’#é :




Respundent 1 wo sub kKaroon hame Hi bata dega.
Repocter 20 jee haw, W5 ko snara pata hoga,

Respondent @ kabhi bhi nal J6 ka bachana b, aisa fean aur

hame hachoyepa.

Reporwr @ jeg. i

£ !
Respondent @ wo Kya kya Rihega ve aise lagn o ya aise lagn lo,

aup isme aisa karwi lo jab ki dekho jo paisa khayvega wo o

dekho puri hamdardi me rahega™
In the later part of conversation he lurther says:-

Respondent 1-sew=-s-esseeunki dekh rekh me hame banwana

L 1]

padega, lai ki nahi, wo 10 raksha karenge-eseeee-aa®,

This indicates the knowledge of the Respondent how the
unauthorized construction is vaised. The Respondent has been
willing and.cager 10 offer his services foithe reportérs.to-handle!

the IF in. the matter. This servige he. was offering for iltegal

-gratification is further cvident from the-dalef Part of the

conversaion where the Respondent agreed for the sum- ofRs.: 5
fulch in fiew of his services, The respondent had furthet said that
e would scitfe with the JE. The tentative amount discussed for
the JIE was Rs. 6 Jakhs, A further understanding was arrived
at that if the Respondent coukd get the amount ta be paid o the
JE und others reduced then the reduced amount would coine 1o
him.  This is clear from the excerpts of the conversation
reproduced under Para No. 16, The above conversation
berween the respondent and the.reporiers not only rellects greed
of the Respondent for illegal gratification bur also his concern
that the builders should also ¢arn prafit, ‘The relevani excerpls

i1t the wanseript are ;-

“Respandent : mai ye nahi chah raha mai chab raha hu ki napke

paas paisa, apni building banaye aue do paisa kama ke fe janye.

Reporier ¢ hikul saii kah rahe hai sir.
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Respondent @ mai i3 chiakikar me pahi hu ki khali paisa paisa

khana hai”

The Respondent has shown his positive response sod his
engernass o help the veporters in caising of unautaized
construction for illegal gratification. This act of the Respondent
ns u Councillor militates against his public duty.which iz o act

. N Lt L . ’
against any proposed ongoing or complé®d unauthorized

construction in the area, falling under bis jurisdiction.

24,1t is not the part of a public duty of the Respondent whao

represents thousands of persons in his jurisdiction o give
envouragement 1o unauthorized construction, by promisiog help
in such activities. Rather on'the contrary it was hig duty (o
bring to the nonce of the authoritivs concerned, any instance of
construction without sanctionud plan, The desive 1o appease to
constitients or furthering of so called clectoral prospects by
extending help in such activities, cannot over ride the norns of
conduct and integrity which a public funciionary is éxpected to

follaw,

The above ael and conduct display fatlure 1w et in
accordance with the norms ol integrity and conduct which
ought to be followed by pubbic funciionwies, Assurance o hetp
in - unauthorized  construction,  Lmtamount o dischacge 1o
fenctions being actuated by improper mative  for personal
interests, 1t alse constttes Jack of faithfilness w0 his
functioning 35 o Counvilior. This there is contravention ol

Sectron 2(LXi) 1o 1)

The Respondent had submited that the operation was
stage mannged wl the behest of his political adversary Sk,
Gulam Suwani, wha had {ost to the Respondent 1o the last
Municipal eloction, "The Respondent however has neither led
any evidence nor took this plea at the time of argument. It was
also submincd by the Respondent that he was very conscious of

his repwtation and this would be apparent from the excerpts of

.




R

the tuinseript and that being a public figure the Respontdant has
10 denl with vavious kinds of persons and he cannot throw them
oul even o the subject of discussion is not approved by him.
This submission however tack substence. A public figure being
the represemtative of the people owes a duty to its constituents.

fe bus 1o serve the interest ol his constituents with all honesty,

1

commitment, integeity and sincerity. 'l_‘he:,,_;q)}'csenimivc of"
peuple ts not expected 1o suppart any iltegal activity in the area
of his constituency simply on the ground that being @ public
ligure he has o deal with many persons and discuss things even
Mough he himself does not approve the same. Such an act
shows leck of faithfulness in the *Pablic Functionary' 1ovearcds

those constituents, wha abide by the law,

It was submitted by the Respendent that he had no
authority of power to sanction any building activity therefore
the allepation against him does not constinue any abuse or
misuse of official position under section 2:(b) (ii); (i) and (iv).
This submission is also devoid of any substance.  The
respondent may not be the concerned uuthority 1o sanction any
building activity but being the Councillor of the area he
undoubtedly exercise a great amount of clout upon  the
municipal officials.  The manner in which the Respondent
discussed tlic issue of raising unawthorized construction and the
manner in which he assared the reporters to exercise his
mfluence on the Junior Engineer for a consideration cicarly
bring his act within the four corners of Section 2 (b) (i) 10 (iv)
of the Delht Lokayukia and  Upalokavukia Aol 1993,
Moveover, the Ld. Counsel Tae the Respondent at the time of
argument, Wovgh dispoting the legalicy of the sting opaermtion,
teadered an unconditional apelogy on behalf of the Respondenl
and he also expressed the repret for being o parl of such a
conversation, The same can not however absalve him of the

grave miscondoct,

et e e et L e et et
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fn view of the Toreeoing discussion and the analysis, Giere is

no doubt that the Respondant has failad (o observe the nerms of

gooad conduct and integrity expected of & person of his class by
emerlaining, discussing and  indicating his  willingoess 1o
support  the reporiersbuilders  who  were 1o curry ol

unauthorized construction for illegal gratification,

The .. Amicus Curine, Mr, Abhijat Bal, has SBmitied that i
mlsconduct of the Respondent is grave and:calls for a "cengure”

in"the icast. Hle further submits that ‘the facts emerging in. the:

transcript prima facie amount to offences under the Prevention
ol Corruption Act. This Forum has considered the submissions

of the Ld. Amicus Curtae and bas gone through the relevant

pravisions of the Prevention of Corruption Act. Scetion & of

the Prevention of Corruption Act provides that whoever aceepts

or aliaing or agrees 0 accept any gratiticarion from another
person as o motive for inducing by corrupt or itlegal means any
public servani e do ar forbeae 1o do sny official act, would be

an oflence.

seetian 9 provides tha whoover accepts or oblains o
agrees 1o accept any gratification {rom any other person as s
motive ibz' inchucing by the excicise of personal infiugnce .:my
public seevant to do or farbear o da any official aci, would be

#n offence.

In the present case, the Respondent had agreed to
excreise his influence on the Junim{ Engineer; as.also bad
agreed 1o accept gratification from -the reportersfbuilders Jor
inducing by corrupt and iliegal means a public se:-vn:ﬁ 10
[wrbear o do his official act.  The Regpondent agreed o
influence the Junior Engineer for permiiting unauthorized
construction 10 come up. I need to be emphusized-that any
actual demand or actuat passing of coosiderition or illegal
gratification is not the sine qua non for the ‘_.o_fffe’:_)cc_s*uhqg.:r

section § and 9 0f the Prevention of Cofruption-Act.  A-ineré




'df promise of agrecment o accept and even a promise 1w pay in
A

future for an act w be done, would come within the ingrediems

of the offence under seciion 8 and 9 of the Prevention of

corruplion Act.

27, 1t is submitied by the Ld. Amicus Curiae that the evidence
recorded in the deemed  judicial  procewding  should  be
forwarded o the appropriate !nvcstigu{iﬁé z’-\[:',l.'l‘l{.‘)' oy
consideration as to whether it constitutes an offence under the
Prevention of Corruplion Act and warrams any Ruther action,
The Ld, Amicus Curiae subnuuted that this Forum is feaally
bowmd o do the smme. 1ois ordered accocdingly,  Phe
ranseripts andd other evidenes as cecurded before this Yorum be
forwarded o Conunissioner of Police Tor  consideration,

cvaluation und further action, as per [.aw,

28 This farunt hes alsa considered the agpect that the Councillor,
whose conduct was being inquired mto by the Lokayukia
following the sling operation was not provided. tickel by theiv
respective parties in the then forthcoming clections.  This
vesulted. in the Counciflor not contesting election and thus
ceasing 1o be a Councillor. It is also considered- whether. the
above -should make any difference on the recommendation of

*Censwre' lor them,

It is a well settled Jegal principle that niisconduct does not
cease with the office term coming .to an.end. Moreover, asg far
as political life, with all its vicissitudes, is concerned, a Public
Functionaty who does not fight a particular election does not
cease 10 be in active politics or in public fife. Qui experience
has shown that he imay aspire for and come for even higher
posilions. Maoreover, for maintaining probily in public life, it is
essential that the constitwenis are also made aware of the

L(lg misconduct of their respective representatives which s in
consommee with their right 1o receive information abow e

deeds of public representative.
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From the foregoing discussion, it is the view of this

1Y)
D

!‘d foram that the factum ¢l 3 Public Funclionary ceasing te hold
office should not come in the way of a reccommendation for his
“Censure' being made and the above is submitted for the kind
consideration of His Exceltency, the Hon'ble Lt Governor.

29.  The conduet of the: Respondent Councillor as evidenced from
ihe transeript of conversation marked “H" clearly amounts. to :

violation of norms of integrity and good conduct, abhiseé of

position to abtain gain for himself, being actuated in discharge
of his fimctions by improper motives and personal interest and

lick of fwithlufness, i wrns of Seo. 'l(b) (i), ), Gy & (iv)

read with Sec. 7 of the Delhi Lolkayukia & Upalokayulaa Act,

t99s. '
I1 i, theretore. recommended o Ths BExcclieney, the

Lieutenant Governor of Delli, that a “censure” be issued to thye

Respondent Councillor for his misconduct as lound above.

™

’

. Ouaiiloa [ Dl S LA
(Justice Manmohaa Sarin)

Lokayuktn

Datesd 224 August, 2042

Relthid Anju

e e e e, L
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BEFORLE THE HON’BLE LOKAYUKTA
Justice Manmohan Sarin

"d Complaint No. C-1116/Lok/2011

Re- Inthe matter of a report titled *Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshade
Me Macha Hadkamyp’, appearing in ‘Nav Bharat Times™ daied
7.12.2011

And
In the matter of inquiry u/s 7 read with 2(b} of the Dethi Lokuyﬁkta
and Upalokayukta Act, 1995 in respect of the conduct of Ms. Anita

Koli, Municipal Councillor.
Present:-

Y. Shri Sagar Dawar, Advocate, for Ms, Anita Koli, Respondent
Councillor,

Shri Sanjcev Mahajan, Amicus Curiae:

3, M, Mrinal Bhart, Advocale, Counsel Tor 13N 7

I

REPORT

Cognizance and Issuance of Notices

I, Suo moto cognizance was taken of a report titled “Sting
Operation Ke DBuaad Parshadon mein Macha Tadkamp?,
appearing in “Nav Bharat Tines” dated 7-12-201 1, Vide Order
dated 7-12-2011, notices were issued to the Editor and City
Correspondent of “Nav Bharat Times” to produce camplete
records of interview and other evidence in relation to the press
reporl. Notices were also direcied to be issued to the Managing
D'irector and Correspondent of Channel 1BN-7, who had carried
out the telecast of the sting operation showing involvement af
Municipal Councillors panticipating in negotiations regarding
carrying out of illegal and unauthorized constructions for illegal
gratification. The reporters of Cobra Post, who huad been
deputed by the Channel TIIN-7 to carry out the sting operation,
were directed 1o produce the original (oolagefrecords of the

stitg aperation,

g LT
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Commencement of Proceedings

Pursuant to the nptices issued, the advocate of M/s. TV1E
Broadupsl Ltd, which ownsg Channel [BN-7, appeared with two
repof s of Cobra Post owned by Mis. Shri Bhardwaj Media
Pyt Lad, who had carried out the sting operation under an
arrangement with Channel 1BN-7. The statements of the
reporters who had carried out the sting operation were duly

recorded on oath, The Deputy General Manager of IBN-7, M.

Sachin Dev, CW.3, also tendered the original faotage contained

in the DVDs, as Ex.CW-3/1, fix. CW3/2, Ex, CW3/3 and Ex.
CW3/4. The DVD of the telecast programme was also tendered
as x. CW3/5. The transeripts of the recorded conversation of
the meetings and negotiations with Respondent Councillor and
7 other Councillors were also tendered, After viewing the DVD
recarding of the conversatian of reporters with the Councillors
and perusal of the transeripts of the same, vide Orders datled 21-
F2-2001, it was heid that case for inquiry under Sec. 7 r/w
2(0) (1) (i), (1) & (iv) of the Act was made out and notice o
tle respondent and other Councitlors  returngble on 16-01-
2012, were directed to be issued. The file of each Councitlor

was direcled to be scgregated and registered as o separate

complaint.

Considering the nature of the controversy and issues arising for
consideration, it was found expedient and in the interest of
justice to appoint an Amicus Curiae and Shri Sanjeev Mahajan,
Advocate, was so appainted vide Order dated 10" January,
2012. The Respondent entered appearance through Shri Sagar

Dawar, Advocate, and filed her reply-cum-written stetement on

9-2.2012.

In view of the ensuing municipal elections, Respondent
Councilfor among others made a fervent plea for expeditious

disposal of these inquiry proceedings so that if zllegations are
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not proved, he / she stands exonerated without delay, so as not

to affect their election prospects.

Procedure Jii()ntcdrfor Inquiry

4. The Counsel and parties were heard and their suggestions

considered regarding adoption of the procedure in the inquiry

so as to conform (o -the principles of natural justice. while

expediting the inguiry, yet giving the fullest opportunity o the

parties to present their respective case, A consensus emergegd:on

the procedure to be adopled which is re-produced below [(or

facility of reference:-

()

(1i)

All the Counsel and parties shall endeavour to

abide by the time given for compietion of

pleadings. In fact the Respondents and the
broadeaster have all stated that they would  take
not more than one (o three weeks so  that the
entire pleadings can be completed within a month
at the maximum,
Regarding the authenticity and correciness of the
recordings which have been produced, it has been
agreed that individual footage in each of these
cases would be played in court before the
Presiding Officer with best equipment as available
with the Broadcaster to make the sound clear and
discernable so that some of the gaps noticed in the
transcripts  at present are fitled up and an attempt
is made for an agreed wanscript to emerge, It is
prayed by the Counsels that viewing should be
spread over one week and individual recordings be
viewed and parties heard,

Wherever it 1s not possible to have an agreed
transcript,  the Broadcaster and the  Respondent,

each may give their version with regard to the




(iv)

d L

panticular words  uttered. This forum would then
decide the  vontroversy. Accordingly, in case the
broadcaster and the Respondent are al variance,
each would have the option to present its version
of the transcript,  Bevond the discrepancies in the
transcript, Counscl and parties submit  that  they
are not questioning the authenticity or demanding
any otber requirement with regard to the proof of
the recordings. Considering the nature of "the
inquiry before the Lokayukta formal proof of
these recordings is dispensed with,

Parties are agreed that hased on the pleadings and
transeripts as finalized, the Lokayukta would fix
the date of hearing in the individual cases.

Parties are agreed that any common issue of law or
facts which arises for consideration in their
inquiries would be dealt with together by the
Lokayukta and while the evidence and arguments
in relation to each of the cases or transcripts will
be separately taken up.

It is also agreed that while the authenticity of the
conversation and their transcripts  woukl  be
established in the abave manner, partics would be
at liherty to point out any personal animosity or
motive on the part o the reporters  for  having

carried out the sting operation.”

None of the Counsel made any suggestion or request for

alteration or modilication in the above procedure, which was accepted

by all.

Finplization of Transcripts of Recording

5. The Office of the Lokayukta made arrangements for viewing of

the DVDs containing copies of the original footage referred to

as the “raw footage”. The raw footage as recorded in the DVDs

were played and re-played several times. in the presence of the
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Respondent Councillor and the Counsel for Respondent and

Amicus Curiae and the Advocate for 1IBN-7 Channel.

Durifxf.thc playing of the recording of the raw footage, the
Respondent, her Counsce! as also the Counsel for the Channcl
and the Amicus Curiae gave their inputs Lo reach a consensus.
The Forum also placed on record the cooperation of the
Counsel and the cfforts put in by the Amicus Cunige in
compiction of this exercise. The Regisiry was dirceted to
supply the carrected version, after carrying out the corrcc'l:'i'g;ﬁ as

noted by the Presiding ofiicer.

Completion of Pleadings

Pleadings were aiso completed. Copy of the Press Repont
appearing in “Nav Bharat Times” dated 7-12-2011 is annexed
hercto as Annexure-l. Copy of Reply-Cum-Written Statement
filcd by the Respondent on 9-2-2012 is annexed hereto as
Annexure-1l. The Respondent and her Counsel as well as the
Amicus Curiac and Counsel for IBN-7, all submitted that the
matter be procceded with on the basis of the transcript of the
original foolage as finalized after viewing and no further
evidence needs to be fed by them or the Respondent. The said
statement was made by the respondent’s Counsel on the basis
ol instructions by the respondent. The Respondent’s Counscl
only wished to make oral submissions in support of pleas taken
in reply cum written statemem. The transcript of conversation
as finalized and agreed 1o between all parties and marked ‘CV?,
i.e. corrccted version, subject to the above obscrvations is

annexcd hereto as Annextire-111.

SUMMARY O TRANSCRIPT

It wauld be appropriate at this stage, to suimmarize the
transeript as finalized which recorded the conversation between

the Respondent and the reporter/builder,
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The reporters posing as builders met the Respondent and
er husband, Tnitiatly they had general discussion not touching
the ctfw'-issuc. One of the reponers tells the Respondent that he
had thiked o her eardier. 100 which the Respondent questions
whelther she had wlk with him. Then the second reporter savs
that talks .wcrt: held with bim and his name is Sanjeev. Then the
respondent introduced her husband 1o the reporters. The
reporters further said that they have worked in Ghaziabad and
Noida as well as in Malviya Nagar and further cxpressed,?_;&heir
intention to start work in the constituency of the Respondent.
They said that the area where they would work has been handed
over to MCD, o which the Respondent replicd that it is still
under process. The reporters further said thai in a way the
constructions would be Hlegal, Then they referred to Sector-23
and 24 in the constituency of the Respondent being handed over
to the MCD. They further said that they had worked in
Mandawli area and had faced lot of difficullies, meaning
thereby, the JE had given lot of trouble who was asking for
gratification at cach stage of laying of lintel for each {loor. They

further said that then they met area Councillor who helped

them.

Thercafier the repaorters, the Respondent and  her
husband  tatked  about  staning  of  construction.  The
Respondent’s husband asked about the location and the
reporters told that they have Plot No. 176 and 177 in Sector-24,
The rteporters then said that there would be some illegal
construction and they would nced help from the Respondent 1o
which the Respondcni responded smitingly in affirmative. The
reporters then talk about their budget and want to ascertain the
share of JE, to which the husband of the Respondent responded
by saying that they would call the JE. Then the reporters and
the thusband of the Respondent had talked about the
construction and the encroachiment of the space by increasing

the length of lintel by couple of feet, The reporters then asked
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straight away what will be the tentative system and accordingly
they would start the project. The husband of the Respondent
said \ v they will tell Tater and said he will eall the IE to talk,
The husband of the Respondent then asks about the budget of
the reponers and also said that i governiment machinery and
they do not work together then problem starts, and he assires
the reparters that nobody would disturb them. As Lo the query
regarding the budget the reporters smd that they have a hudget
of Rs, 10,0 f.acs and asked them to take all the rcspon'ﬁfﬁlﬂil)f

and lurther asked them 1o take amount in [ump sum. The

husband of the Respondent assures that he will take care of

everything but asked the reporters to take carc of the police.
The reporters then said that the budger should not excced Rs.
10.00 L.acs. The hushand of the Respondent gave assurance that

they will talk to JE and give him his due.

Rest of the conversation between the reporters, the
Respondent and her husband is general but is hovering around
the main topic of construction for which the reporters nced the

help of the Respondent being the area Councillor,

Response and Submissians of the Respondent,

Respondent had filed reply in response to the notice, under
Sec.7 r/w Sec. 2(b) of the Act, which was served upon the
Respondent along with the Order dated 7-12-2011, the

transcript, the statement and the DVDs.

Ld. Counsel for the Respondent Shri Sagar Dawar at the
very outset submitted that the sting operation was motivated
with the intent to harass the Respondent. It was submitted
further that the sting operation shows the Respondent only for a
few minutes and there is no talk between the reporters and the
Respondent regarding any iliegal gl'.atiﬁcation. It is further
submitled that in the audible conversation there is only general

talk between the Respondent and the alieged reporters. The
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transeript is conspicuous by absence of any direct negotiation

between Respondent and the reporter/builders.

I‘dh is submitled that the whole sting operation has been
recorded iflegally by the channel. The Ld. Counsel lor the
Respondent while making submissions had stated that the
aileged reporters had a talk with the husband of the Respondent,
who himself is a builder and financial adviser, a day before the
said visit of the reporters for same building work. In sup"gcjart aof !
this submission, the visiting card and the biils etc. showing
supply of building material were filed. The visiting card of
Jagdamba Associafes bear name of Yogesh Kumar, husband ol
Respondent. Shri Yogesh Kumar also filed his affidavit stating
therein that he is a builder and financial adviser and doing his
business in the name and style of Iagdahba Associates. As
regards the conversation it was submitted that the transeript was
incomplete and incomprehensiblie due to significant gaps and
breaks therein. Thus, an element of doubt has crept in as to the
authenticity of the transcript. It was [urther submitted that in
the aileged sting operation, the alleged repoiters were talking
for construction on a Plot No,22 in Sector-24 which has not

been handed over by the DDA to MCD.

In nutshell, it was submirtted that the sting operation was
illegal, motivated and lake and it has not been proved as per
Inw.  Secondly, the transcript was incomplete and
incomprehensible. Thirdly, the Respondent was nol involved in
any conversation with the alleged reparters with regard to
raising of any illegal construction and of taking illegal
gratification. Fourthly, the area where the construction was
proposed by the alleged reporters was not falling in the
constituency of the Respondent, and lastly, the husband of the ‘
Respondent himsclf is a builder and financial adviser, who had
a talk with the alleged reparters a day before for some building

]
‘1\/ work which explains their presgnce with the husband of the
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Respondent and the Respondent on the date of the sting

operatior.

ﬁo the reply-cum-wrilten statement of the respondent,
objections were filed by the broadeasier iBN-7 emphasizing
that transmission of news by the channel is totally on objective
basis and no personal bias is either involved or reflected. It is
also stated that considering the nature of act, the undercover
coverage was the necessity. That the telecasts in questioq‘gﬂﬁvé
been made in good faith and for bonafide public good. I't' was

denied that report was selectively edited or doctored.

Evaluation of the Conduct of Respondent as Unravelled by

the Transcript and Consideration of the Reply and Pleas in

Response,

.d. Counsel for the Respondent has submitted that the sting
operation was illegal, fuke and motivated. In support of his
argument, where the l.d Counsel for the Respondent questions
the legality of the sting operation, reliance was placed on the
judgment in “The Caurt on its Qwn Motion V/s State”, 2008 (1)
JCC 193, However, this judgiment pertains to guidelines for the
TV channels who propose to telecast a sting operation, As to
the legality of the sting operation, reference may be imade to the
decision of Migh Court of Delhi in Anirudha Bahal V/s State
reported as 172 (2010) DLT 268, wherein an F.LLR. registered

against the sting operators under Scc. 12 and 13 of the
Prevention of Corruption Act was quashed. The Court held that
F.ILR wus registered after onc year with sting operators being
arraigned as prime accused. Court found the act of the sting
operators as bonafide who had acted as whistleblowers by
airing the tapes on TV channels and by deposing truthfully
before two Commitices of Parliament. Charging sueh people
with offences under the Prevention of Corruption Act would
amount 1o travesty ol justice and shall discourage people from

performing their duties enjoined upon them by law of the




country. The court held that the duties prescribed by the
Constitution of India for citizens of this country do permit
cil-izenr‘i acl as agent provocateurs o bring out and expose
and upr"oot corTuption. Special Leave Petition against the High

Court Order was also dismissed.

Reference is also invited to the judgment of the Supreme
Court in RK. ANAND V/§ REGISTRAR, DELH! HIGH
COURT, 2009 (8) SCC 106, i.c. the appeal against.the
judgment of Dethi High Court in Court on its own motioti Vs,
State and others. The Supreme Court wﬁilc dealing with stings

and telecast of sting programmes observed in Para-179 as

under:-

“lLooking at the matter from a stightly different angle we
ask the simple question, what would have been in greater
publie interest; to allow the attempt 1o subormn a witness,
with the object 1o undermine & crimminal trial, He quietly
+ behind veil of seereey or to bring out the mischief in full
public gaze? To our mind, the answer is obvious. The
sting telecast by NIDTV was indeed in farger public

interest and it served an imponant public cause.”

The sting operation in the present case was also [or
public good to expose the menace of unauthorized construction
and the complicity of the City Fathers therein, who instead of
taking steps to curh this menace, mix up with builders and
assure their support for raising unauthorized construction. Any
act which expose this unholy nexus of the representative of
people and unscrupulous builders, is in the larger public

interest. So the sting operation serves “an impottant public
cause”,

The submission of the Counsel for the Respondent that
the Respondent is a builder and financial adviser and the

alieged reporters had contacted him a day prior to the day of

sting operation, which cxplains the presence of the reporters
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with the Respondent and her husband. The said plea does not
inspire confidence and lacks conviction. The entire
convcr]ﬁm hetween.the reporter/builders, Respondent and her

does not support the theory ol construction heing
carried out by the Respondent’s hushand. The husband of the
Respondent may be a builder or a financial advisor. [He may
pursue his independent business or profession ol o builder and
(inancer, irrespective of the fact that his wife is & Municipal
Councillor. However, the matter of concern in the present casc
is that the reporters and the Respondent and her husband are
discussing raising of construction, which is admittedly ilicgal
and also involves encroachiment. The Respondent being a
Municipat Councillor has no business to discuss modalities of
unauthorized and iflegal construction work with the builders.
The law has not conferred any power on the Municipal
Councillor 10 sanction any construction in his /her constituency
nor it confers any poiver to sponsor such a construction. The
Councillor despite lgof having sny power (o grant or sponsor
any sanction plan forconstruction but being the Councillor of
the area, he orshe has to oversce the implementation of humber
of civic programmes and apart from that being representative of
the rcsidents also enjoys considerable clout and influence,
which transcends all areas. The summary of transeript (Mark
“E-1") would show that although the husband of the
Respondent was doing most of the talking but the Respondent
nowhere showed any-i"ndifi’erence to the said conversation. The
Respondent being the representative. of the people. of her
constituency has the responsibility to sec that the civic
programmes are implemented as per.needs and demands of the
people of the constituency. The Respondent on the other hand is
becoming a paity to the conversation, where the issue of illegal
gratification for raising illegal construction is being discussed.
The tone and tenor of‘: the conversation clearly brings out that

the reporters were suggesting raising of illegal construction for

ilat., - e
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which they received tacit consent and approval by the
I{espond;nl for financial gains. The husband of the Respondent
as'surc-;ﬂh'e'i‘épox‘ters that they will not be troubled by anybedy
and he would talk to-the JE about latter's dues but he washes
his liands off from the responsibility to take care of the police.
When the respondent’s husband asked about the budget of the

reporters, the response to query clearly indicates as to what

“budgel” he was talking about. -
’ RS

The reproduction of the conversation on this aspect leaves

nothing to imagination. The conversation between reporters and

the husband of Respondent goes as under:-

“Anita Koli’s husband - Aap ka kya budget hai,
mujhe bata do zara.

Reparter - Hum 10 Lakh mein hai,

Saare logo ko aap sara
Jimmedari le lijiye. Usme
JI ka bhi hai. aapka apna
hai aur bhi jo aapka ho,

usme hamein haan'.

Later on Respondent's husband slso soys:-

“Palice walon ko aap dekh lijive — ho jayega aapka koam -

--JE sc hum baat kar lenge---- J1% ko denge jo denge usme

se. Jo JE ka banta hai vo JE ko milega™.

The Ld. Counsel for the Respondent had submitted that
there is no direct ncgotiafion between the Respondent and the
reporters and there is no negotiation or demand by Respondent.
This submission, however, will not stand in view of the
conversation reflecting in the transeript (Mark E-1). The entire
conversation concerns the raising of construction apart from
general issues. The hushand of the Respondent is asking about
the budget and assures the reporters that he will take care of the

JE. The Respondent hersel[ bas nowhere rebuked the reporters.
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She being a Councillor cannot be oblivious of the menace of the
illegal construction and the Respendent’s response 1o a request
by 'ﬂ reporters o use her position to help in raising the

construction which is:illegal, leaves no room for doubt that she

offercd her good offices to help raising construction which was

to be illegal. Thus, this is a misconduct. misuse and abuse of

her power being a Councillor. This act of the Respondent is,

thus, not in accordance with the norms of integrity and conduct

which ought ta be followed by the *public functionary® The

willingness to encourage and facilitate unauthorized and illegal

construclion is writ large o' record.

The above act” and conduct display failure td act in
accordance with the norms of integrity and conduet which
ought to be followed by public functionaries. Besides, it is also
abuse and misuse of position as it nanifests conduct to gain
favour tor hersell in as much as the amount to be Respondent’s
share was to be decided later. Assurance to help in unauthorized
construction tantamaunts to discharge of functions being
actuated by improper motive for personal interests, ]t also
constitutes lack of faithfulness 1o her functioning as a

Councilior. Thus, there is contravention of Sec. 2(b) (i} to (iv)

of the Act.

The menace of unauthorized construction has pervaded the
metropolis of Dethi. It is not confined to a superficial level or
the surface, It has entered the very blood stream of Delhi. There
are various reasons for the same, gallopfng population, rising
demand for accommodation, non-availability ol the same,
which tempts the residents to expand vertically and horizontally
in contravention of the permissible limits. Complex laws and
unresponsive  system have also aggravated the problem,
Uﬁabnled growth of unauthorized construction also emanates
from lack of enforcement and implementation of the municipal
laws. The situation gets further aggravated on account of

complicity of the municipal staft, city fathers, local politicians
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and the police. In dn attempt to contain the role of public
functionaries and Councillors in this menace, this Forum had on
con’ﬁint from one Councillor initiated action in 61 cases
against the legislators and Councillors for unauthorized
construction and irvegularities in their propertics. 1t was a
matter of satisfaction that in majority of these cascs, the public

representatives  have either voluntarily demolished or got

regularized the violations. )
_ gt
In view of the foregoing discussion and the analysis, there is na

doubt that the Respondent has failed to observe the norms of
good conduct and integrity expected of a person of her class by
entertaining, discussing and indicating her willingness 10
support the reporter/builders  whe  were to carry  out

unauthaorized construction,

The L.d. Amicus Curiae, Mr. Sanjeev Mahajan, has submiited
that the misconduct of the Respondent is grave and calls for a
“censure” in the least. He further submits that the facts
emerging in the transcript may even amount to an offence under
the Prevention of Corruption Act. e submits that the above
evidence being legal evidence recorded in deemed judicial
proceedings  should  be  forwarded to  the appropriate
investigating agency Jor consideration as to whether it
canstitutes an olfence under the Prevention of Corruption Act

and warrants any further action and this Forum is legatty bound

to do the same. It is ordered accordingly. The transeripis and

other evidence as recorded before the Forum be forwarded to

Commissioner of Police for consideration and evaluation,

The conduct of the Respondent Councillor as evidenced [rom
the transcript of conversation marked “):-1" clcvarly amounts 1o
vialation of norms of integrity and good conduct, abuse of
position to obtain gain for herself, being actuated in discharge
of her functions hy improper motives and personal interest and

lack of faithfulness, in terms of Sec. 2(b) (i), (ii), (i) & (iv)
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rcad with Sce. 7 of the Defhi Lokayukta & Upalokayukta Act,
1995,

!Ildis. thercfore, recommended to His Excellency. the
Licutenant Governor of Delhi, that a “censure” be issued to the

Respondent Councillor for her misconduct as found above.

'

( ; \aLJ-U.L.‘}oq‘M
(.l{ls[?ﬁt)?\hnmohan Sarin)
[Lekayukta -

4,87
5t

Dutc:a'a H& June, 2012
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BEFORE THE HON'BLE LOKAYUKTA
JUSTICE MANMOHAN SARIN
COMPLAINT NO. C-1149/Lok/201 1

In the matter of Suo Motoe Cognizance of a Press Report Titled “Sting
Operation Ke Baad Parshadon ‘Mein Macha Hadkamp™ appearing in

“Nav Bharat Times” Dated 07-12-2011

AND .
In the matter of Inquiry Under Sec. 7 read with Sec. 2(b) of The Delki
Lokayukta & Upalokayukta Act, 1995, in respect of Conduct of

Shrimati Sateshwari Joshi, Municipal Councillor, Respondent herein.

1, Shri Sanjiv Sharma Advocate, Amicus Curiae.
2. Shri §.N Sharma and Mr D.D Joshi, Advocates, for Shrimati
Sateshwari Joshi, Municipal Councillor, Respondent.

3. Mr. Mrinal Bharti, Advocate, Counsel for IBN 7.

REPORT

Cognizance and lssuance of Notices

1. Suo moto cognizance was taken of a report titled “Sting
Operation Ke Baad Parshadon mein Macha Hadkamp”,
appearing in “Nav Bharat Times” dated 7-12-2011. Vide Order
dated.7-12-2011, notices were directed to be issued to the
Editor and City Correspondent of “Nav Bharat Times” to
produce complete records of interview and other evidence in
rclation to the press report. Notices were also directed to be
tssued to the Managing Director and Correspondent of Channel
IBN-7, who had carried out the telecast of the sting operation
showing involvement of Municipal Councillors pasticipating in
negotiations regarding carrying out of ilfegal and unauthorized
constructions for illegal gratification. The reporters of Cobra
Post, who had been deputed by the Channel IBN-7 1o carry out
the sting operation, were directed to produce the original

footage/records of the sting operation.

e i
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Commencement of Proceedings

Pursuant to the notices issued, the advocate of M/s. TVI8

Bmadcas’-‘hd, which owns Channe! IBN-7, appeared with two

reporters of Cobra Post owned by M/s. Shri Bhardwaj Media

Pvt. Ltd, who had carried out the sting operation under an
arrangement with Channel 1BN-7. The statements of the
reporters who had carried out the sting operation were duly
recorded on oath, The Deputy General Manager of IBN-7, Mr.
Sachin Dev, CW-3, also tendered the original footage containoﬁ |
in the DVDs, as Ex.CW-3/1, Ex. CW3/2, Ex, CW3/3 and Ex.
CW3/4. The DVD of the telecast programme was also tendered
as Ex. CW3/5. The transcripts of the recorded conversation of
the meetings and negotiations with Respondent Councillor and
7 other Councillors were also tendered. After viewing the DVD
recording of the conversation of reporters with the Councillors
and perusal of the transcripts of the same, vide Orders dated 21-
12:2011, it was held that case for inquiry under Sec. 7 riw
2(b), (1), (iD), (ith) & (iv) of the Act was made out and notice to
the respondent and other Councillors returnable on 16-01-
2012, were directed to be issued. The file of each Councillor

was directed to be segregated and registered as a separate

complaint.

The Respondent entered appearance through Shri S.N. Shartna
and Shri D.D. Joshi, Advocates, Counsel for the Respondent
sought two weeks to file reply-cum-written statement,
Considering the nature of the controversy and issues arising for

consideration, it was found expedient and in the interest of

justice to appoint an Amicus Curiac and Shri Sanjiv Sharma,

Advocate, was so appointed, vide QOrder dated 16" January,

2012,

In view of the ensuing municipal clections, Respondent

Councillors made a fervent plea for expeditious disposal of

these inguiry proceedings so that if allegations are not proved,
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he / she stands exonerated without defay, so as not to affect

their election prospects.

Procedure addopted for Inquiry

4. The Counsel and parties were heard and their suggestions

cansidered regarding adoption of the procedure in the inguiry

so as to conform to the principles of natural justice, while

expediting the inquiry, yet giving the fullest opportunity to the

(1}

)

(i}

parties to present their respective case. A consensus emerged o8
the procedure to be adopted which is re-produced below for

facility of reference:-

All the Counsel and parties shall endeavour to
abide by the time given for completion of
pleadings. In fact the Respondents and the
broadcaster have all stated that they would take
not more than one to three weeks so  that the
entire pleadings can be completed within a month
at the maximum.
Regarding the authenticity and correctness of the
rccordings which have been produced, it has been
agreed that individual footage in each.of these
cases would be plaved in court befpre the
Presiding Officer with best equipment as available
with the Broadeaster to make the sound clear and
discernable so that some of the gaps noticed in the
transcripts  at present are filled up and an attenpt
is made for an agreed Iranscript to emerge. It is
prayed by the Counscls that viewing should be
spread over one week and individual recordings be
viewed and parties heard.

Wherever it is not possible to have an agreed
transcript,  the Broadcaster and the  Respondent,

each may give their version with regard to the
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particular words  uttered, This forum would then h
decide the controversy. Accordingly, in case the

Y\d‘ broadcaster and the Respondent are at variance,
each would have the option to present its version
of the transcript.  Beyond the discrepancies in the
transcript, Counsel and parties submit that  they
are not questioning the authenticity or demanding
any other requirement with regard to the proof of
the recordings. Considering the naturé of theé
inquiry before the Lokayukta fonmal prool of
these recordings is dispensed with.

(iii} Parties arc agreed that based on the pleadings and
transcripts as finalized, the lokayukta would fix

‘ the date of hearing in the individual cases,

(iv) Parties are agreed that any commaon issuc of law or
fact which arises for consideration in their
inquiries would be dealt with together by the
Lokayukta and while the evidence and arguments
in relation to each of the cases or transcripts will
be separately taken up.

(v} TItis also agreed that while the suthenticity of the
conversation and their transcripts would be
established in the above manner, parties would be
at liberty to point out any personal animosity or
motive on the part of the reporters for having
carried out the sting operation.”

None of the Counse! made any suggestion or request for

alteration or modification in the above procedure, which was accepted

by all.

Finulization of Transcripts of Recording

5.  The Ld Counsel for IBN 7 Channel handed over copies of
\j@ transcript of recording which were given to the Amicus Curiae

as well as the Counsel for the Respondent.
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This Forum made arrangements for viewing of the DVDs
containing copies of the ariginal footage referred to as the “raw
footagc"s "he raw footage as recorded in the DVDs was plaved
in the presence of the Respondent Councillor and the Counsel

for Respandent and Awmicus Curiac and the Advocale tor IBN-7

Channel.

During the playing of the recording of the raw footage it was
noticed that the transcript had gaps at about 5 places. Mr. Bha‘l‘_ti:
stated that the original footage was not transcribed in tﬁi
transcript as it was irrelevant to the subject matter. This Forum
directed him 10 place on record the complete footage with
advance copies of transcripts to the Respondent’s Counsel as
well the Amicus Curiae. ['he Forum advised the Respondent to
play the footage and compare with the transcript and point out
any discrepancy, failing which, copy supplied by Channel to be

taken as correct version.

The Ld. Counscl for the Respondent pointed out an error in the
eighth line of the transcript at Page-27. The DVD was played
and the correction was made to read “Kabhi Do Rupaiya be liya

hoga". The transcript was corrccted and for purpose of

identification Marked “[>-2".

Caompletion of Pleadings

9.

-

o

b
-p-"? U U P S
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Pleadings were also completed. Copy of the Press Repoit
appearing in “Nav Bharat Times" dated 7-12-2011 is annexed
hereto as Annexure-I. Copy of Reply-Cum-Written Statement
filed by the Respondent is annexed hercto as Annexure-Il.
Respondent's Counsel was given opportunity to file outline of
submissions together with list of authorities and photocopies
thereof., Ld. Counsel for Respondent submitted numerous
testimonials and appreciation letters for her good and religious
work in the constituency. He was askcd to demonstrate the
relevance of the same during argumenis. Mark "D-2" is

annexed hereto as Annexure-1l].

e
i




SUMMARY OF TRANSCRIPT 78

It would be appropriate at this stage to summarize the transcript
as ﬂnaﬂgd which recorded the conversation between the
Respondent and the reporter/builders. While summarizing, the
exchange of courtesies, pleasantries and general small talks,
which s not relevant to the inquiry has not been included. The

reporter/builders met the Councillor through ‘Chotu’ (anya), .‘

who introduced thém to her., He introduced one reporter ,:}5,;_' '

Sanjiv Yad.nv, who was a friend of one Raja known to him and
was now their friend also, She enquired the name of the ather
reporter/builder who introduced himself as Karan Rastogi. This
was followed by exchange of courtesics and preliminary talks.
She enquired if they stayed in Mandawli and wanted to
construct in A-Block. The reporters/builders stated that they
had a small project and had come for her blessings as they
understand there is a lot of harassment and difficulty and
wanted to start in Biock-D. Chotu tells the Councillor that the
reporter/builders want lier to handic the MCD, This is followed
by a discussion on what the reporier/builders proposed 1o build.
Reporters say that they wouid bhe constructing for re-sale.
Furiher that they have been working in Ghaziabad and Loni and
do nat have any idea aboui the conditions here. Councillor tells
them to associate Chotu und buy construction material {rom
him. Councillor also praiscs Chotu and his children and says
that though he is from Congress, while she is from BJP, he is
like her brother. Councillor also describes her approach as
being nice and polite to people. She describes the virtues of
geting work done with affection and love. Chotu tells her to
handle and control the JE and ensure that he does not pose any
threst. There is a discussion on the difficulties faced by
différent builders, when JE and other officers are not handled.
Buildings get scaled and sale deeds and registries get stuck.
Good relations should be properly built. Councillor engquires

whether work has started on which the reporter informs that




work is yet to commence. The reporter/builders mention that
they were scared as they were told by their close one, who had
made cg ruction that he faced lot of difficulties and
harassment, after JE someone else would come. Reference is
made to one Rajesh. There is then a prolonged discussion
regarding the location of the plot and its whereabouts. The
reporters say they certainly do not wish to face any obstacles.

Councillor tells them not to worry and Chotu was there lo take

care. Chotu tells them to go ahead and construct and thefet’

would be no difficulties. Reporters say they cannot start without
her biessings. The Concillor then assures that she would call the
JE and talk to him. The reporters desire that she should frankly
ask the JE, and in practical terms, tell them the amount to be
given or either tell Chotu to do the needful. Reporters say that
even though a contractor had told them that he had links, but
they preferred to talk directly. Councillor was curious to know
which contractor had mentioned to them. A discussion then
ensued as to the naine of the contractor. Reporters then say that
they have met Chotu and her and they should give an idea, The
Councillor then suggests that they should build on 100-100 Sq
Yd plots. Reporters then mention that they do not mind if
instead of ‘fifty’, ‘one’ is spent but they do not want to face
harassment and there should be nobody to stop the construction
work and it should be ensured that nobody would come to the
site. Councillor then says that if an RTl is moved then she
cannot help it, otherwise it will be possible to handle and they
should not worry for the Ji-': or for that matter of Ex. Engineer or
anyone from MCD. Reporters wanted to know how much they
will have 10 give and it was better to talk frankly. Reporters
insist on being given an idea in broad terms. The Councillor
says that she would tell them toimorrow and she herself does not
want that they come ten times. The reporters indicate that they
would start construction within a week. Councillor states that

she would also speak to JE as soon as they start. Chotu then
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Reporters further say that they would not bother about Rs, Ten-
Twenty Thousand, but do nol want to be harassed, The
reporterg y that the police is also to be handled as PCRs can
comeé, ’1"1":@ Counciller comments that police also does not take
100-200, but has started demanding Rs. 20,000/- or so. Chotu
informs that in Shakarpur Schoo! Blcck, police and MCD
personnel take Rs. 1.00 Lac. Ultimately, the reporter/builders

mentlon Rs.. 50,000/-, when the Councillor enquires Rs. -

50,000/~ for how much and Chotu clarifies “one floor, fifty"

thousand". Councillor shakes her head _in disapproval.
Coungillor then says that she would call the JE and she would
link up JE and introduce Chotu to hiin. Reporters insist on
knowing the estimated amount. Councillor does not indicate the
estimated amount. The reporter then proposes that they could
consider Rs.75,000/- and then raise it to “one”. The Councilior
then says 1.5 Lacs. Chotu then expresses that 1.5 was rather
high. Chotu tells them L make four floors and for which 4.00
Lacs would be needed. At one stage Chotu says for [ive storeys
it would be 5.00 Lacs, The rcporter offers a car. Councillor says
she does not want a car. Reparters {inally say that they would
keep five for her. The Councillor by her gesture indicates
‘seven’, Reporters plead for the amount to be reduced, invoking
Chaoti’s interference, Chotu says that they are new builders and
pleads for them saying that they do not know anyone else in the
area. Councilior then emphasizes on good construction being
done and good material being used. The reporters say that they
would keep her fully updated on how it was being built. The
Councillor then says so much const:uciion was going on but
she does not take money and mentions that she is having the
same ho;.xse, which she earlier had. Reporters aiso later on tell
that they would have the money sent, Finally, the reporters tell
the Councilior that they would settle for ‘five’ and plead with
her to say ‘Yes'. The second reporter then tells her to settle at

‘seven’, Later on Chotu tells that she gives him a lot of regards.




_—_—

| 8 /
Reporter says that they could sense it since she says she does

not want anything for herself and it was also because of him

and wha’dﬁ be better than this.

REPLY AND SUBMISSION OF RESPONDENT

11, Respondent Councillor averréd that there is no viofation of any
of the provision of Delhi Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act,
1995 and there is no act committed by her, which warranted an
inquiry or issuance of nolice. [t should therefore be withdrawis”
She pleeds that the allegations would be shown to be faise and
malafide in the inguiry. The transcript does not reveal any
misconduct on her part. The Respondent Councillor ¢laims that
she [vas been discharging her duties with dedication and her
career 1s an open book. Ier worl has been appreciated by the
members of her constituency. She hersell has raised the issue
of unauthorized constructions in the assembly and her conduct

in the last tive years as a Counciilor has been biemish less and

her integrity above board.

12, Respondent contends that the sting operation carried out was
violative of guidelines passed by the High Court of Delhi in
the case titled as “Court on its own motion Vs, State, WP (Crl.)
No. 1175/2007. She as a local Councillor had a duty to ensure
that the residents and businessmen in the constituency do not
suffer from official red-tapism. The residents in the above

context were facing problems by official red-tapism in spite of

their having necessary sanctions.

3. Respondent claims that without being any demand from her
side the reporter/builders started speaking of giving money,
There is no demand directly or indirectly. She had not received
any gain or assured any clearance without sanctions. She
claims to have stated that if they ‘want to build a preject, the
local officials, for any reason, will not disturb them ifithey have

sanction. It Is also significant that after l'ecord'ing these. tapes in




10 @

-
different context, they were not telecast immediately. The
condition of their preservation or sceurity is not known so as'to
avoid a"t&mpermg, The broadcaster who claims to be
pursuing investigative journalism ought to know the legal
requirement of safety of the said data. It is contended that this
was 2 case of blackmailing intended to samehow increase the
Television Rating Points (TRPs). They did not record the
statement of any of the victim of her atleged behaviour, Tt was ‘
compartmentalized to tarnish her image. The respondé'ﬁ’f .
contends that on account of elections that were due in the near
future, this act has been done by the reporters in association
with persons inimical to her or those wanting to represent the

constituency, alt conspired together and manipulated the sting

operation violating ethical norms, She denied the allegations of
failing to observe the norms of integrity or conduct. She has
never been complained against. Her work has been appreciated
resulting in appreciation letters. She reiterates her commitment
to serve people. Nothing against her has been found in the last
five years, wherein she has maintained high standards of
integrity. She denies misuse or abuse of power in terms of
Section 2 (b) (ii} claiming to have discharged her duty with
sincerity. Similarly, it is urged that sub clause (iii) of Section-2
{b) was not applicablc to her actions. She was cominitted to
provide the best of service to the people. She denies any
improper or corrupt motive. Her conversation was manipulated
by interested parties. Certainly it is not the case she has been in
possession of pecuniary resources or propeity disproportionate
to the known sources of income. Respondent claims to be
belonging to a party having high standards and offered herself
to the enquiry by the party President. She prayed that her reply

be treated as interim reply. This has also been supported by

her affidavit.

7 EVALUATION OF THE CONDUCT OF THE

RESPONDENT AS REVEALED BY THE TRANSCRIPT

i #p s e g s iwes
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AND _CONSIDERATION OF THE REPLY AND PLEAS
BY COUNSEL ON HER BEHALF,

The pleﬂf' the tapes having been tampered and not reporting
the conversation as actually took place is really not availabie to
the Respondent. This i1s in view of the recording having been
played belore the respondent ns also the broadeaster and the
correctness of the transeript being ascertained with opportunity
being given to both the pariies to point out error or explaining
any gaps. The transcripts of the (apes were finalized by th;
Office afier noting down the comments of the broadeaster as
well as the Respondent and her Counsel and in fact the
corrections as pointed out by the Respondent were duly
incorporated which were found to be correct and recorded in
the Order dated 5" March, 2012, The respondent’s counse! has
also given his interpretation to certaln sentences spoken by the

respondeni and meaning thereof, which shall be duly

considered.

Let us notice few of the preliminary submissions of the
Respondent’s Counsel Sh. S. N, Sharma. -He refers to the
credentials and testimonials filed by him which show the
conduct and good work of the Respondent.  He submitted that
this was not the case where the Respondent was found to be
having assets disproportionate to the known sources of income.,
She lives in a small house of 50 Sq Yds within her means and
lives a simple life and was not even keeping a domestic help.
It may be noted that this is not a case where it is alleged that
tilegal gratification was actually paid and resultanuly the
Respondent was possessed of income and assets
disproportionate to known sources. This is a case where the
Respondent has been found to be discussing illegal gratification

and assuring that she would handle the JE and other municipal

staff and no one would come at the site. The agreement is to do

the various acts against monies to be paid. Hence, in view of
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these specific allegations the plea of her living in 50 8q. Yds or

having simple life without domestic help is of no consequence.

Ld. Comcl for the Respondent had initially addressed
arguments and pressed the plea of entrapment. His altention
was drawn (o the judgment of the Supreme Court in R, K.
Anand Vs, Registrar, Delhi High Court and the observation in

Paras 204 and 305, where-after the same was not pressed.

Ld. Counsel submits that repeated attempts were made by t};:::
reporter to put words inte the mouth of the respondent, while
the Respondent kept on showing her disinclination to accept
anything.- He refers to the words appearing on 20.22.39 of
recording, wherein earlier while Chotu had mentjoned fitty
thousand for one floor, she was seen as giving a negative
response by movement of her head. Reporters there upon said
that they were not going to bargain and she should tell
Response from the coungillor was that “she would speak to the
JE. 1 have said | do not want, I will call JE on the phone and
introduce him to Chotu". The reporter then insisted on
estimate, Councillor staled “please do not asked me for an
estimate”™ as she did not like to argue again and again,
Reporters again tell her that they will do as she wants,
Councillor again states that her respect would be kept when
Chotu was making the house. '

Mr. Sharma also laid emphasis on the transcript at 20.25.40, to
show that she requested that good quality material be used and
that the material would be supplied by Chotte.  She further
made statement on oath that in her area she had not taken even
Rs. 2/- from anybody. She continues to be in the same
cconomic condition.  Mr, Sharma reiterates with véhemence
that in the conciuding portion of the transcript also the final
words of the Respondent are a categorical statement that “She

does not want anything”, and that this should be given due
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weight.  ‘Ihere was an admission on the part of the reporter
who carried out the sting operation when in the context of the

Clouncilw'who had said “she does not want anything” when .

Chottu was involved.

Reading of the complete transeript clearly reveals (hat
Respondent was all through at ease, especially with the
conversation digressing on ber conduct and polite behavior and
trying to find out the location of the site. ler inquisitivcnq;gs-
and interest is writ large. In this background, the plea of the
Respondent that she had not given any clearance to the
reporter/builder for construction without sanction, but had only
stated if they had acquired sanction, the local authority would
not disturb them, inspires no confidence. Nowheré in the entire
conversation, the Councillor mehtions the re}doner/bui-lder
getiing senction, rather throughout the conversation the
repotter/builders are frankly and straightway of‘fefing illegal
gratification. Far from rebuking them the Councillor is at ease,
she herself throughout the conversation gives assurances to

them that she. would speék- to the JE and also to the Ex.

Engineer,

The Councillor repeatedly in the conversations stated thet once
the construction begins she would call JE and handle him and
also tell the reporter/builders the amount required. Further she
has also stated that she would ensure that JE will not visit their
site, Regarding the plea that the Sting Operation violated all
the vguidelines jissued by the High Court in the Case titled as
“Court on its own motion Vs, State”, WP (Crl.) No. 1175/2007,
in the present case, as noted, the Councillor is at ease and is
herself offering assurances. Refercnce is also invited to the
judgment of the Supreme Court in R. K. Anand Vs, Registrar,
Delhi High Court, 2009, 8 SCC 106, i.e. the appeal against the

judgment ot Delhi High Court in * Court on its own motion Vs,
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State and QOrs”. The Supreme Court dealing with stings and

telecast of sting programmes observed in para | 79 as under.

“Nking at the matter from a slightly different angle we
ask the simple question, what would have been in greater public
interest; to allow the attempt 1o suborn a witness, with the
object to undermine a criminal trial, lie quietly behind veil of
secrecy or to bring out the mischief in full public guze? To our

<<<<<

larger public interest and it served an important public cause.”

The sting operation in the present case was also for
public good to expose the menace of unauthorized construction

and the complicity of the City Fathers therein.

Councillor in her reply has repeatedly stated that she was not
desirous of any amount for herself on which the Ld, Counsel
Sh. 8. N. Sharma laid considerable emphasis, Further the
statement of the Reporter that she does not want anything to
herself and they could not have a better deal, In this context as
rightly pointed out by Amicus Curiae that corruption and illegal
gratification can take many forins. Person may not himself or
herself accept money but ask for another person. Section 7 of
the Prevention of Corruption Aet provides that seeking
gratification for someone else also amounts to “corruption”. In
this case, there is yet another significant aspect. W.hilc the
respondent professing that she did not demand anything for
herself, she does not refuse to offer of money. The Respondent
claims not to have demanded money for herself, yet, at the
same time, as pointed out by the Amicus Curiae, when the
reporter/builder wanted to finalize at Rs.$ lacs, she moved her
head in negative gesture to indicate it was insufficient and
indicated by hand that Rs. 7 Lacs were required. The above are
very significant and telling gestures, There is also considerable
merit in the Amicus Curiae's submissions that last Para of the

transcript need not affect the case against Respondent. It
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

appears o be a situation where the reporters seem o be
boosting Chihotu that because of him, she i1s not desirous of
anythi:ﬁ: This reemphasizes that she docs nat want anything
because of him. In the above casc at least it clearly shows that
the Councillor was pitching for favour for Chhotu, whom she
treats as her brother.  Further, Amicus Curiac submits that
expression of reporter's opinion is of no ¢onsequence when
viewed against the statement of Chhotu expressing in favour*o-f-..
Rs.5 Lacs as acceptable sum against Rs. 7 Lacs indicated by

Respondent.

From the evaluation of transeript and forégoing
discussions which the respondent had with the reporter/builder

and also on the consideration of the attendant circumstances,

"the following position emerges:-

The Councillor during the entire conversation has stated that the
Reporter/builders should start their construction-and they would

not face any trouble from the MCD and that she would

personally speak to the JE.

The Councillor has clearly stated that she would not want
anything because Chotu is involved. But this is contradictory
as she rejects the amount of Rs.5 Lakhs and gestures it to be

increased to Rs. 7 lakhs.

The Councillor completely seems at case in the conversation
and discusses with the reporter/builder-details of the plot, she

herself gives the reporter/builder an assurance that she would

speak to the JE,

Considering the entire conduct of the Councillor as evidenced
from the admitted transcript marked D-2 amounts to violation
of norms of integrity and conduct, abusc of her position as
Councillor to obtain gain for herself or Chhotu and being
actuated by improper personal interest and faithlessness in

terms of Section 2 (b) (i) r/w Sec. 7 Declhi Lokayukta and
Upalokayukta Act, 1995,
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21, The Ld. Amicus Curiae, Mr. Sanjiv Sharma, has submitted that
the misconduct of the Respondent is grave -and calls for a
ccnsura,\‘:thc least, There is merit in the said submission. He
Further submits that the facts emerging in the transcript may
even amount to an offence under the Prevention of Corruption
Act. He submits that the above evidence having being lcgal
evidence recorded in deemed judicial proceedings, should be
forwarded to the appropriate investigating agency for .
consideration. as to whether it constitutes an offence under e A
Prevention of Corruption Act and warrants any further action
and this Forum is duty bound to do the same. It is ordered
accordingly. The transcripts and other evidence as recorded
before the Forum be forwarded to Commissioner of Police for

consideration and evaluation. _

It is, therefore, recommended to His Excellency, the Licutenant
Governor of Delhi, that a “censure” be issued 1o the Respondent
Councillor for her misconduct as found above.

E/WLM gtf AN
(Justice Manmohan Sarin)
Lokayukin

Dnte: 29 i June, 2012

Hrepa1
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BEFORE THE HON'BLE LOKAYUKTA

!‘d JUSTICL MANMOHAN SARIN

COMPLAINT NO: C:1147/Lak/2011

I1the: rintter of: SuoiMoto-Cognizance.ofii:Press: Repors. Titléd “Sting
Operation: Ke.Bdad Pacshadon - Méin Machb Hadkamp" appczu ing; in
“Nav-Bharat fimes” Dated 07122011, e : ,

} (% . I
AND-

1 the matter of Inquiry Under Sec. 7 read with See. 2(b) of The Delhi:

Lokayukta & Upalokayukta Act, 1995, in respect-of Conduct of Smit.

Manji Gupta, Municipal Councilior, Respondent herein,

I Shri Sanjeev Mahajan, Advocate, Amicus Curiue.

Shri Rajesh Pathak, Advocate, Counse! for Smt. Manju Gupta,
Mumicipal Councillor, Respondent.

Mr. Mrinal Bharti, Advocate, Counsel {or IBN 7.

2

“ad

Copnizance nnd Issuance of Notices

I, Suo moto cognizance was taken of a report titlked “Sting
Operation Ke Baad DParshadon mein Macha  Hadkamp”,
appearing in "Nav Bhi\rﬂl Times” dated 7-12-2011. Vide Order
dated 7-12-2011, notices were issued to the Editor and City
Corrcspondent of “Nav Bharat Times” to produce complete
recovds of intervicew and other evidence in relation 1o the press
report. Notices were also directed to be issucd to the Managing

Director and Comrespondent of Channel I3N-7, who had carried

out the telecast of the sting operation showing invelvement of

Municipal Counciltors participating in negotintions regarding
carrying out of illegul and unauthorized constructions for ilegal
gratification. The reporters of Cobra Post, who had been
deputed by the Channel [BN-7 10 carry out the sting operation,
were directed 1o produce the original footage/records of the

sting operation.
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. Commencement of Proceedings

2

Pursuant ‘to the notices issued, the advovale of M/s. TVIE
Broadcast L, which owns Channel IBN-7, appeared with two
reporters of Cobra Post owned by M/s. Shri Bhardwaj Media
Pvt. Ltd, who had carried out the sting ‘operation under an
arrangement with Channel IBN-7. The statements of the
reporters who had carried out the sting opé‘?ﬁiion were du'iﬂ'
recorded on oath, The Deputy Gcncr‘;l Manager of IBN-7, Mr.
Sachin Dev, CW.3, also tendered the original footage coniained
in the DVDs, as Bx.CW-3/1, Bx, CW3/2, Bx. CW3/3 and Lix
CW3I4 The DV of the telecast programme was also tendered
as Lx, CW3/3, The trunseripts of the recorded conversation of
the meetings and negotations with Respondent Councillor and
7 other Couneillors were also lendered. After viewing the DVYD
recording of the conversatinn of reporters with the Councillors
and perusat ol the transcripts of the same, vide QOrders dated 21-
12-2011, it was held that ease for inquiry under Sec. 7 r/w
2>b),(0), (1), (i) & (iv) ol the Act was made out and notice 1o
the respondent and other Counciliors returnable on 16-01-
2012, were directed to be issued, The file of each Councillor
was directed o be segregated and L'tzgi‘slurec[ 48 a separate

complaint.

The Respondent entered appearance through Shri Rajesh
Pathak, Advocate, and filed her reply-cum-written. statement.
Considering the nature of the controversy and issues afising Tor
consideration, it was found expedient and in the interest of

justice to appoint an Amicus Curise and Shri Sanjeev Mahajan,

Advocate, was so appointed vide Order dated 16" inmmry‘i

2012, .

In view of the. ensuing munl¢ipal ¢légfiqr:$‘-, Respondent:
Councillor, among othérs made o ferveiit plea for expetitions
disposal of the inquiry proceedings so that if allegations.are not
proved, he / she stands exonersted without <lelay, so-as ndt fo

affect their election prospects.




4. The Counsel and parties were heard and their suggestions
considered regurding adoption of the' procduré!in the inquiry:
so a$ o conform to the principles. of riafurai j_uéi:i:c:t.;:', whjlc
expediling the. inquiry, yét giving the fullest:opportunity 16 thé
_parties to présciit their respéctive case, A cansensudiemierged.on
the procedire 10" be adopted: \vl'lig:"h. 15 remxpdi;lt’;’i:c"jfbéléw fort

facility of reference:-

(i) All the Counsels and partics shall endeavour 10
abide by the time given for completion of
pleadings. In fact the Respondents. and  the
broadeaster have all stated that they would take
nat mave than ane to three weeks so  that the
entire plendings can be completed within a month
at the maximum.

(i1} Regarding the authenticity and correctness of the
recordings which have been produced, it has been
agreed that individual footage in each ol these
cascs would be played in court before the
Presiding Officer with best equipment as available
with the Broadcaster o make the sound clear and

' discernable so thut some of the gaps noticed in the
transcripls | at present are {itled up.and an attempt
is made for an agreed transcrpt to emerge. 1t s
prayed by the Counsels that viewing should be
spread over one week und individual recardings be
viewed and parties heard.

Wherever it is not possible to have an agreed
wanseript,  the Broadeaster and the  Respondent,
cach may give their version with regard o the
paticular words  uttered. This forum would then
decide the  controversy. Accordingly, in case the

C broadeasier and the Respondent are at varianee,

R T
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cach would have the option lo present its version

of the transeript. Bevond the discrepancies in (he

transeript, Counsel and porties  submit  that  they

are not questioning the authenticity or demanding

any athor requirement with regard to the proof of
the recordings. Considering the nature ol the

inguiry before the Lokayukta lhr—r;;ul proaf ol
these recordings is dispensed with.

(ut) DPurties agreed that based on the pleadings and
transeripts as tinalized, the Lokavukla would Gix
the date of hearing in the individun! ¢ases,

{iv) Partigs agrced that any common issue ol law ar
facts which arises for consideration in their
inquiries would be dealt with logether by the
L.okayukta and while the evidence und arguments
in relation to cach of the cases or transeripts will
be separately taken up.

(v) It is also agreed that while the authenticity of the
conversation  and  their  transcripls would  be
established in the above manner, partics would be
at liberty to point out any personal animosity or
motive on the part of the reporters for having

carried out the sting operation.”

None of the Counsel made uany suggestion or request for

alteration or modification in the above procedure, which was accepted

by all.

The Office of the Lokaytikta.madie. arrangements for- viewing, of.
the DVDs containing copies of the .origina!'_f‘ootage-,rgfe}_';ned,tq
as the “‘raw fodtage”. The raw footage:as jecorded i the DVDs
were played and re-played several times in ﬁhc;prcsencc of the.
Respondent Councillor, the Ld. Counsel for Respondent, the

Ld. Amicus Curiae and the Advocate [or 1BN-7 Channel.
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During the playing of the :'ccor(lfng of the orig"i.nnl footage, the
Respondent, her Counsel as aldo the Counsél {6r thé Channel
and the Amicus Curiae gave their inputs to-reach a consensus.
Certaiii corrections in the transcript of the recording swére made
as noticed aid pointed oot by Shri Rajesh Pathak, the Ld.
Counsel for Respondent, Apart from tha he could not point out
any error in ihe ranseript except that at p!ac@__jsdimd was not
clear and it was difficult to recognize the voicéi&'hc- Forum also
places on record its appreciation for the cooperation of all the
Counsels und the efforts put in by the Amicus Curine, in

completion of this exercise. The Registry was directed to

. supply the corrected version, afier carrying out.the correction as

noted by the Prasiding officer,

Completion of Plendings

Pleadings were also completed.  Copy of the Press Report
appearing in “Nav Bharal Times™ dated 7-12-2011 is annexed
hereto as Annexure-1. Copy of Reply-Cum-Writien Statement
filed by the Respondent on 16-1-2012 is annexed hereto as
Aancxure-II. The Respondent and his Counsel as well as the
Amicus Curiac and Counsel for IBN-7, alt submitted that the
matter be proceeded with on the basis of the transcript of the
ariginal footage as finalized  afler viewing amd oo further
avidence needs to be led by them or the Respondent. The said
stigement was made by the respondent’s Counsel on the basis
ol instructions hy the respondent. The Respondent’s Counsel
only wished to make oral subumissions in support of pleas taken
in reply cumy written statemient. The transeript ol conversition
as finalized and agreed lo belween all parties and marked 'CV’,

Le. corrected version, subject to the above observations is

annexed hereto as Annexure-Il1,

SUMMARY OF TRANSCRIPT

it would be appropriate at this stage, to summarize the

transeripl us finatized which recorded the conversation between

the Respondent and the reporter/builders.
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The reporer  posing  as  huilder  approaches  the
Respondent and states he is doing construction work in the area
of the Respondeat. He further stales that earlier he was working
in Ghuziabad area. The husbamd of the Respondent asks the
reparter as to in which block he would he doing the work, The
reporter informs that he would be working in A-Rlack and
precisely stites "A-95". Then they discuss ubuul"_i__ljs location and
Respondent paticipates in this discussion. The reposter then
stules thal his brother had underaken the work of construction
ar Mother Dary where they bad faced a lot of prablem and
reference is ta the JI3 of the area. The reporter addressing
Respondent says that he does not want any such problem. It is
pertinet to 'mcnrfnn. here that during the entire con_vc:‘sai_ion,tﬁq

vaporter is dealing with the Respondent; her husband:and ane

person called-Inspector Sharma.

Keeping in mind the econtext inwhich the talk tonk place,
it is inferred that reporter/builder first met. Insp.. Sharma to

approach the Respondent, that is why, [nsp. Sharma says, “Kah

however, states that she will not do any such thing and refers
the reporter Lo one Arvind and welis that whatever he-has to say
he may suy 10 Arvind. She further tells to the Respondent th
he will not face any diﬂ.lc‘ully here. She further assures the
reporter that he should not worry and she will not make him
lace any difficully and also assures to talk to them. (In the
present context, the expression “them™ refers 1o persons who

have concern with activity of mising construction in tlie

area). Therenfier, the husband of the Responderit assures the

reporter that.he will not face any difliculty. froin NMCD but-as
regard the DDA and the police, he tells the reporter that he will
have to see to them himself and further lends assurance that no
MCD person would come there. The reporter then says that
police takes money. He had talked with his brother about

money and addressing the husband of the Respondent, asks
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about the amount, The husband of the Responden: gives

!‘I response to thiy query regarding money smilingly and states

that whatever it would be (the amount) he will be informed

(here the husband of the Respondent is referring to some other

persen who will infonn about this).  The reporter then

specifically nsks the husband of the Respondent ahout the exact

amount and states that they asked tor about Rs. 3 Lacs, On

persistent asking of the reporter, the husband fc;i'fa"thc RrUSpUndcl'il

states whatever has been told it must be right. Later on, in the

conversalion, the reporter asks again about the amount. Insp.

Sharma says addressing the reporter, “you have to give the

budget”. Reporter then savs s, 3 Lacs, w which the husband of

the Respondent answers in affirmative. The reporter then insists

that the amount is high and he wants to discuss in front of

madam (Rc'sponc!cn!). Laler on, in the conversation the reporter

: and Insp. Sharma are discussing the issue in which Insp.
Sharma says that they (refers to the Respondent and her
! | husband} do not talk sbout money and it is he who decides and
finalizes. He fuither states luter on that madam (Respondent)

does rot discuss this issue, The conversation balween the

reporter and Insp. Sharma shows that the reporter had met the
Respondent through Insp, Sharma. Reporter says that it was

only o formal meeting. (nsp. Sharma then states that the amount

of Rs. 3 Lacs has been told, Reporter says that the amount is

excessive to whichy Insp, Sharma responds thal why he asked

for the same. Rest of the conversation is not very specific
although it hovers around the main issue of raising of
construction by the reporter and Lhe assistance sought from the
Respondent wo avoid any hindrance i1 the construction {rom

MCD.

Response gnd Submissions of the Respundent,

9. Respondent had filed the reply to the Show Cause Notice
' through Counsel on 16-01-2012. This reply, in fact, contains

(/’ the response to the notice on legal issues as well as on factual
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matrix, feowas submitled by the Respondent that (b= sting
operation telecusted on the TV channel 1BN 7 showing
clippings ol the conversation of the respondent with the renorter
gives the colour of carruption 1o the entire conversation without
any evidence 10 substantiate the said plea. The telecast of the
sting operation was just to inceease its TRP and the popularity
ol the channel, It is further submitied that 1hs;;,-ReSpondcm wils
warking in the area for about 20 years. She is & honest and
devoted worker and discharges her functions. as Councillor in
public interest. She has never abused or misused her posiﬁ'un o
obtain any. gain or.favour to herself or to any, other person: It'is

further subimitted  that the siing operation telecasted on 6-12-

2011 on the TV channel [BN 7 -shows- the conversation of the

Resporident with some person, which: has: been .so-piéturize

and edited as to reflect that the Respondent agreed for illegal
gratification for shielding demolition and sealing, by the MCD.

IUis further submitted that there was no whisper of any demand

of money in the cnlire conversation between the Respondent:or

her husband for carrying out illegal construction ‘in her
ares/ward, [ is further submitted .that the cons‘ti’lu_ency of the
Respondent consists of some' Group Housing . Societies ‘and
unauthorized colonies, Madhu Vihar and Joshi C-".olt_my,. which
come under the jurisdiction of DDA, und as such there i3 no
interference of the building departiment of MCD. it is further
submitted that the Respondent is the representative of the ward
and hears the grevances of the publie in the arca. Even the
DVD clippings substantiate the fact that the Respondent was
talking to several peaple regarding their grievances along with
the person in question (referring to the reporter) who had also
come with his gricvonce. It is further submitted that it is highly
improbable that the Respondent would be discussing the matter
of illegal gratification in open sitting in front of public of the
same area. [t is further submitted that the repoiter had met the
Respondent in connection with the harassment by some MCD

officials for raising construction in Joshi Cotony, which comes
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- under the DDA, The Respondent being a Councitlor of the area
,d concernad hud simply assured that nobody from the MCD
would harass as the arci comes under DDA and there is no rofe

of MCI. Even the hushand of the Respondent had reiterated

ihis fact.

The 1.d. Counsel for the Respondent Shri Rajesh Pathak,
had made submission that the Rcspoci’ﬂ""du has, dond l
congiderable good work in her area and thus earnt a lot of
respeet and goodwill., The Ld. Counsel further submitted thar
there has been a deliberate attempt to entrap and induce the
Respondent into saying few things. He further submitted that no
money had heen oftered to the Respondent and: the transaction
regarding  offering of money with the husbond of the
Respondent 1ook place outside the oftice and not in front of the
Respondent, Fowever, it is of no significance. By telling the
reporters that they could alk 1o her husband, the Respondemt

has authorized her husband 1o represent her,

I, Amicus Curiae Shei Sanjeev Mahajan, in reply,
submiticd that the talk of wking or giving money has been
carried ouwl openly without any hesitauon. AS regard the
submission that the area falls under the DDA and was not in the
jurisdiction of the MCD, he urged that if it is correct, then
element of deception is also involved in as mich ps money is
being sought 1o be coliected on the assumption that MCD can
cause problems, The L.d. Amicus Curiae referred to a case in
BALDIEY SINGH GANDE V/8 STATE OF PUNJAR & ORS
(2002) 1 SCR 1022, in which case the Hon'ble Supreme Court

has dealt with the expression “misconduct”, Laking its colour

{rom the context.
Ev:_aluatiun of the Conduct of Respondent g Unravelled by

he Transeript uad Consideration of the Rep ud Pleas in

Responge,
The Respandent is a public functionary as defined in Sec. 2(m)

L ..’(7 ¢
L‘&P of the Delhi Lokayukta & Upalokayukta Act, 1995, being -a
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member of the Municipal Corporation of Dethi. A public
functionary has to act within norms of integrity al conduct
which is expected from'a person holding the position of power
and control in the society. The law does not specify any code of
conduct for the representatives of the people fortheir day (o day
life while dealing with.people they represent. However, Ihe
norms of inlegrity and conduct need noi bei@Spéci-ﬁed becatise
any act out ot purview of the norms of inlegrity and’ conduet
itself stands out and cven a layman can point out that a specific
act does not bebove a public functionary. In nutshell, a piblic
{unctionary-has o set an example for the public by maintaining
high level of sincurity, intcgrily, honesty, by rising above
personal and vested interests, favouritism and nepotism and by.
avoiding any pecuniary or ather benefits which are not due. A
public functionary has to sct an example of good governance,

buing the holder of public trust.

This Forum is to ascertain whether the act .and conduct
imputed 1o & public functionary is within the norms of integrity
and conduct expected from o public functionary or is an abuse
or misuse of pawer by an a¢l actuated by improper motive or
personal interest showing lavour, lack of faithtuiness or is an
act leading to unduce pecuniary benefit. to public -funclionary,

availed by virtue af his/her status and position.

Here is a Respondent, who is a Councillor in the
Municipal Corporation of Delhi. The sting operation ¢onducted
by two reporters of Cobra Post in arrangement with Chanoel
IBN-7 shows the Councillor indulging in conversation which at
the very outset reflects that the Respondent has the tendency of
habnobbing with unscrupulous builders, who taise unautherized
constructions posing hazard 1o the lile and health of the
citizens, At the very outset, it may also be stated that the
channe! IBN-7 claims that sting operation was carried with the
objeet of exposing the menace of unauthorized construction and

the complicity of the Municipal Councillors and staff of the
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Corporation.  Thus, the sting operstors have acled as
whistlehlowers and no fault can be found with their actl. The
ahave finds support in.the observations of the Hon'ble Supreme
Court in the case of R.K. ANAND V/S REGISTRAR,: DELF!
HIGH COURT, (2009) 8 SCC 106 and the judgment in
ANIRUDHA BAHAI., VIS STATE 172 (2010) DLT 268,

endorsed this vigw. e . i

l.d. Counset for the Respondent had wken a plea that the
sting operatdon telecasted on the TV by Channel IBN-7 has
been so picturised and edited as v reflect that the Respondent
had agreed for illegal gratificotion and the purpose of this
telecast was simply to increase the TRP and the popularity of
the channel. So far as this submission of the Ld. Counsel is
concerned, it may be stated that whatever was reeonded during
the sting uperation, it was played and viewed at the time of
heamng before this Forum and the agreed transceipt was
prepared with due involvemient of the Respondent and her
Counsel, The Respondemt has not tgken any cxceplion to the
transeript which has been finalized. So, the nuthenticity and
genuinencss of the transcript cannot be now questioned. This
Forum is concerned with the actual transcript of conversation.
In case Respondent finds any impwtation defamatory in the

telecast, it is for the Respondent to seck legal remedies there
for,

The Ld. Counsel for the Rcsp'ondcnl has submitted tha
the Respondent is an honesi and devoted worker who is serving
the arca for the last 20 yewrs in public interest. He further

submitted that it is highty improbable that.the Respondeni who

is a respected citizen would be 'di"Sct_:ss_i;)g the ;nu}_xjtter"qi"fi'llegr;L

gratificution in open:silting. in font of the publig- of .the same

area. This Forum is concerned with the conduci’ of the.
Resporident which is reflected in -the siing operation. Even’
otherwise hor good work as claimed, cannot wasii.away the

conduct in negotiating illegal gratification for unauthorized
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construction. To suy that the Respondent would shy away from

indulging in such acts of discussing ‘matters of illegal

gratification in the open sitting in-front.of the public would. be

to -uhderestimate. the “conducl which 'is shown; i the -sting

operation; 1t is urifoitunate that a Counm]lmthm“gh her
husband or herself had no qualms about such taiks even in.front
of members of public of the sanic area, Thi§ brings io° fore the
need for buildiﬁg up strong public opinion. and respect for
moral velues, resuiting in zero tolerance for vorruption and
misconduct, especiullly among persens holding positions of

public trast,

Reflerence to certuin portions of the transcript of the
conversation belween the reporier (posing as builders), on the
one hand, and the Respondent and her husband and their

accomplice isnecessary in this context.

{#)  The anscript of the conversation shows hat the reporter
approaches the Respondent posing himself 1o be g builder
staring that he had done construction wark in Ghazisbad
aren and now he intends 1o do construction wark in the
area of the Respondent, The Respondent and her husband
specifically ask the reporter about the logation, where the
construction is (o be raised. The reporter than tells the
Respondent about the purpose of his visit. He stales that
his brother had faced lot of difficulty, while raising
construction at Molher Dairy and he refers to the JIE of the
area from whom they faced problems. He expresses his
desire to seck the blessings of  the Respondent (or
raising construction in her area 1o avoid any problems
from the JE. The Respondent gives assurance 10 the
reporter. Iler husband also [ént assurarice that no MCD
person would came an.d the reporter will nol {ace any
difficuliy from the MCI, although he cautions the

reparter that he will have to tackle the DDA and the

police, on his own,
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This conversation leaves nothing to imagination, :
The Respondent and her husband. had' given ussurance to
the reporter for raising construction in the acea, théy
assured that MCD officials will not cause any difficulty
in raising the construction. The reference: is obviously to
unauthorized construction withowt sanctioned plan or in
excess of what is permissible as olfferwisc there i.s'l no
question of tackling them, The Respondeat, in entire
conversalion. has not stated the reporter {posing s
badldery has any sanctioned plan for construction nor
reporier says that he inteads (o raise construction as per
faw, Therefore, necessmy and logical inference which
cao be drawn ts that the construction work, {or which
Respondent is offering her help and suppon, is not

legalZauthorized,

The second limb of the canversalion is with regard ta
money which is to be given. When the husbund of the
Responcent. told the reporter that he himself will have 1o
take cace of the police, the reporter states that the police
people take moncy. The reporter then addressing the
husband of the Respondent asks him about the amount.
The. husband of the Respondent does not speéifically
answer the query bul smilingly states that whatover it
would he, he (reporier) will be informed. Thiis gesture of
the husband of the Respondent is nothing but an
acceptance of the proposal to help out the. reporter in

raising construction for monetary consideration.

THé..reporter specifically .asks the husbend of the
'Rc_spondem’ about the-exact: amount: *.'I:Ig},r:.:'lf:‘evrs:- to: d:sum
of-Rs. 3.00 Lacs, which has-'been  deninded. “The
hushand of the Respondent stated {hat whatever has
been told, it must be right. Later on.in the.cohvérsation,
the person who is being uddressed-as‘Insp. Shérms in the

conversation asks the reporter that he-las to tell the




budget. When the reporter says “3 Lacs”, the husband of

-the Respondent nodg .in affiemative.. Later on, ‘in. the

conversdation when. the -reporter-asks that-he ~wunls lo
discuss the amouitts in front of ‘Madam (Responden(),
the person called Tnsp. Sharma states that they do not

tulk. about money and it is he who decides and finnlizes.

. . - ;}‘J. Lo ot
(d) A perinent part of the conversation which has acquired a

greal importance in the present matter is where the
Respondent states, "Nahi.. Mai Thoda Aise Kurungi. Jo
Ye Arvind-Hai Nu... Aap Jo Kuch Bhi Kaho Arvind Se
Kaho..” These words ultered by the Respondent have
nat heen disputed by the Respondent. There was no
objection with regard to the transcript which contained
this sentence. However, when the Prestding Officer
nsked the Respondent as 1o who was this ‘Arvind’, who
has been namied by her, the Respondent had stated thay
she does ol know any Arvind, This conduct of the
Respondent  shows  that she deliberately did not
acknowledge her acquaintance with the said Arvind
while her scutence reflects confidence in him. The L.
Counsel for the Respondent had furnher argued that there
was no question ol seeking any gratification on account
of protecting the reporier (posing as builder) from the
officinis of the MCD because none of the area of her
constituency comes under the MCD. He submiuted that
the constituency of the Respondent consists of Group
Housing Socicties, Unautharized Colonies — Madhu
Vihar and Joshi Colony, which are in. the jurisdiction of
DDA. He submitted that, the Respondent being
Councitlor of the area of Joshi Colony had simply
assured ‘the repurter that nobody from ‘MCD™ would
harags as the area comes under DDA and there was no

role of MCD.
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Ld. Amicus Curiae, Sanjecv Mahajan, on the coatrary,

cansidered it to be a rather very serious nct snd submitted that if

it is assumed that the arca futls under-the DDA and not in the
Jurisdiction of MCD, then deception and cheating would be

involved because money was being sought on the assumption

that MCD can cause problem and the Respondent would protect

the builder from the MO, v I

He refers w the judgment in BALDEY SINGH GANDIHL
VS STATE QF PUNIABR & ORS (supra) in which the Hon'ble
Supreme Court had dealt with the allegation of “misconduct™
against a Municipal Councillor. The Hon'ble Supreme Court
had observed that the word “misconduct” is anti-thesis of the
word “conduct”, and ordinarily (he expression of misconduct

would mean, “wrong and improper conduct, unlawful behavior,

misfecasance, wrong conduet, misdemeanour ere.”.

It is pertinent to mention here that in the judgment, it is
stated that the expression “misconduct™ is o be considered with
reference to the subject and the context in which this expression

accurs,

Now coming-to the conduet of the- Respondent, it is- bbvious
that the Respondent hag shown-her willingness to support. the
wi‘sing of construction and' providing protection from the MCD

officials, The husband of the Respondent and the Respondent

assured the reporier that e will not face eny-difficuity from

NMCD., The gratification for providing this support was also

diséussed by them. Thus, the willlngness of the Respondent to

encourage and facilitate unauthorized and illegal. construction.is

wril farge in the conversation recorded in the. transcript. The

tone and-tenor. of conversation suggests thit the Réspondentitins:

“misconducted” herself and has ransgressed.sthe: norms. ‘of
conduct and: integrity by “misuse” of her powet. It+is coinmon
knowledge that being the Councillor and- representalive of the

pcople, she must be having 2 clout on the ofTicials of the
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Municipal Corporation which slie promised 16 utilize for

improper and illegal purposes,

The asbove el and conduct display failure to act in aceordance
with the norms ol integrity and conduer which ought to be
lollowed by public functionaries. Besides, it is also abuse and
misuse of position as it manifests conduct to gsin favour for
hersell in as much as the amount to be Respoiflient's share wis
1o be decided later, Assurance to help in unauthorized
construction tantamounts to discharge ol {unctions heing
actaated by improper mative for personal interests. {t also
constilules  lick of faithfulness to her functioning as a
Councitlor. Thus, there is contravention of Sec. 2(b) (i) to (iv)

of the Act.

The menace of unapthorized construction has pervaded the
metropolis of Delhi. It {s not confined to a superticial tevel or
the surfice, It has entered the very blood streum ol Delhi
There are various reasons for the same, galloping population,
riging demand for accommodation, non-availability of the
sarne, which tempts the residents to expand verticoly and
horizontally in contravention  of the permissible Timits,
Complex laws and unresponsive system have also aggravaicd

the problem. Unabated growth of unauthorized construction

also emanates from lack of enforcement and implementation of

the municipal taws, The situation gets further apgravated on

account of complicity of the municipal staff, city fathess, local

politicians and the police. In an attempt to contain the role of

public functonuries and Couneillors in this menace, this
Forum had on complaint from one Councillor initinted action
in 61 cases against the legislalors and Councillors far
unauthorized construction and irvegularities in their properties.
It was a malter of satisfaction that in majority of these cases,
the public representatives have cither voluntarily demolished

or got regularized 1he violations,
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’d Ity well setred that the higher the oftice the grewrer the
cesponsibitity and higher the expectation from the said persan

tor ohservance ol the norms of integrity and good conduct.

15, Tooview of the foregoing discussion and the anulysis, there is no
doubt that the Respondent hag failed to observe the nosmy of
good conshuet and integrity cxpécte.d of i person of her class by
entertaining, discussing und  indicating !1c1:'é]{viliiz1gaucss to
support the reporter/builders,  who  were 10 camy ol

unauthorized construction, tor legal gratiffeation,

16, The Ld. Amicus Curine, Mr. Sanjeev Mahajan, has submitted
that the misconduct of the Respondent is._griive and calls for.a
censure in the least. He further submits that the facts gnmergi@
in the transcript mey constitute offence under the Preveniion of
Corruption Act and IPC. He. submits that ‘the. above gvidence
being legal evidence recorded in deemed judicidl proceedings
should be forwarded (o the appropriate investigating agency for
consideration as (o whether i1 constitutes offences under the
Prevention of Corruption Act and [PC, warranting any-further
action and this Fortum is duty bound to do the .same. it is
ordered accordingly, The transcripts and other evidence us

recorded before the Forum be forwarded to Commissioner of

Police lor consideration and evaluation,

7. While recommending thot the Respondent be adininistered a
“Censure” by the Competent Authority, this Forani is conscious
of the fact that the Respondent is no longer holding the post of
Councillor. Upon initiation of the inquiry by the Lokayukta, the
Councillors involved in the sting operation were not given
tickets by their respective parties for contesting the elections.
Resulttntly, at present the Respondent is not an clected
Councillor. Tiowever, it would be appreciated that while there
may be some reduction in the clout of the Councillor wlhien
holding Office and otherwise. He continues to be in public and

({g political life, He does not gease 10 be a pat of the public life or
}” the polity. Besides, the stream of public life has to be kept

-~
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unsullied and unpelluted from the intlux of corruption and other
wrong doings. This requires inculeating high moral and core
vatues in ¢conduet ol thase holding positions of public trust and
in public life, with no toierance for the carrupt or those

indulging in misconduct.

The ahove would not be feasible i public functionaries
who are found o be guilly of misconduct 'E’é:i:ape punishmn.iml
for the reason that they are not in power or nat having the same
clout,

Administration of penalties such as caution, cengure efc.
is expected to usher in the cleansing process Lo keep the stream
of public life clean and unsullied. Morcover, the statute itsell
pravides for cognizance being taken for S years from the date of
the cause ol action for the act complained ol, indicating that

there can he no cscape of penalty for past acts also,

In view of the foregoing discussion, the Respondent
Councillor, who has been found 10 be in violation ol norms of
integrity and good conduet, abuse of position to oltain gain for
herself, being actudted in clisclwxi}ge of her tunctions by
improper motives and personal inwerest and lack of faithfulness,
in terms ol Sec. 2(b) (1), (it), (iii) & (iv) read with Sec, 7 of the
Delhi Lokayuka & Upalokayukta Act, 1995, deserves to be

administered o “censure” by His Excellency, the licutenant

Goveror or Delhi, and is so recommended,
L é-"( LA
qtice Ma nmohan Sarin)
Lokayulin

Dute:/ﬁ/é-- July, 2012
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BEFORE THE HON'BLE LOKAYUKTA '
JUSTICE MANMOHAN SARIN '
7." Complaint No, C-1145/Lok/2011

Re- In {he matter of 4 report titled ‘Sting Operativn Ke Baad
Parshade Me Macha Hadkamp’, appearing in ‘Nav Bharnt
Times’ dated 07,12.2011.

And

.W. )
In the matter of inquiry u/s 7 rend with 2(b) of the Delhi
Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act, 1995 in respeet of the conduct
ol Ms. Beena Thakuria, Municiprt Councillor.

Prcscnt:f

1. ShriK.K, Jhoand Siri:A.K. Mishra, Advocates, for Ms. Beena
Thakuria, Respondent Councillor..

2. Shri Sanjeev Sharma; Amicus Curiae,

3. Mr Mrinal Bharti, Advocate, Counsefl for 1IBN 7

REPORT

et e gy

Cognizance aud Issuance of Natlces :-

1. Suo moto cognizance was taken of a report titled “Sting

Operation Ke Baad Parshadon mein Macha Hadkemp”,

appearing in “Nav Bharat Times” dated 7-12-2011. Vide Order
dated 7-12-2071, notiges were issued to the Editor and Cily
Correspondent of “Nav Bharat Times” o produce complele

records of interview and other evidence in relation to the press.
report. Notices were also directed to be issued to the Managing
Director and Correspondent of Channef IBN-7, who had carried
oul the telecast of the sting operation showing invelvemernt of
Municipal Councillors participating in negotiations regarding
carrying out of'illegal and unautherized constructions for illegal
gratification. The reporters of Cobra iost, who had been
deputed by the Chamel 1BN-7 to carry oul the sting operation,

were directed to preduce the ariginal foouagesrecording of the

sting uperation,

J«-




[ 3]

[O

Conumencement of Proceedinps

Pursuant 1o the notices issued, the advocate of M. TVIS
Bm!gcust Ltd, which owns Channel IRN-7, appeared with two
rcpo;iers of Cobra Post owned by M/s. Shri Bhardwa) Media
Pyl Lad, who had carried out the sting operation under an
arrangement with Channel IBN-7, The sialements of the

reporters who had carried out the siing operation were duly

recorded on aath as CW-t and CW.2 with direction 10 keep
[ L

their idemily Confidential under Section 14 of Delbi Lokayukea
and Upaiokayukia Act, 1993, The Deputy General Manager of

IBN-7, Mr. Sachin Dev, CW-3, also tendered the original

footage contained in the DVDs, as Ex.CW-3/1, Ex. CW3/2, Ex.

CW373 and Ex. CW3/4. The DVD of the telecast programme
was also tendered as Ex. CW3/5. The transeripts of the recorded
conversation of the meetings and negotiations with Respondent
Councillor and 7 other Councillors were also tendered. Afier
viewing the 1DVI) recording of the conversation of reportérs
with the Councillors and perusal of the transcripts of the same,
vide Orders dated 21-12-201 1, 1t was held that case for inquiry
under Sce, 7 viw 2(b),(31), (1), (1) & (iv) of the Act was madce
out and notice to the respondent and other Councillors
returnable on 16-01-2012, were directed to be issued, The file
of each Councillor was directed 1o be segregated mmd;;@gistcr_c'd_
as a separate complaint.

Considering the nawre ofithe controversy and issues arising for
consideration, iU was found expedient and in the interest of
justice to appoint an Amicus Curine and Shri Sanjeey Sharina,
Advoacate, was' so appointed vide Order dated 16" Tanuary,
2012, The Respondent entered appearance through Shri KK
Jha and Shri. A K. Mishra, Advocates, and filed her reply-cum-

written statement on 13-02-2012,

In view of the ensuing municipal cleetions, Respondent

‘Councillor among others made a fervent plea for expeditious

disposal of these inquiry proccedings so that if allegations are
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not proved, she stands exoncrated without delay, so as not to

affect her election prospects.

Pgoceduﬂc! adopted for Ingoiry :-

4,

The Counsel and purties were heard and their suggestions
considered i¢garding adoption of the procedure in the inquiry
s0 08 o conform 1o the principles of natural justice, while
expediting the inquiry;. yet giving the fulfest, qp'pormnity;-'td;thc
parties to present their respective case. A consensus emcﬁé&lhn '
the procedure to be adopted which is re-produced below for

facility of reference:-

(1) All the Counsel und parties shall endeavour to
abide by the me given for completion of
pleadings. In fact the Respondems and the
broadcaster have all stated that they would take

not more than one to three weeks so  that the

entire pleadings can be compleled within a month
at the maximum,

(it Regarding the suthenticity and carreciness of the
recordings which have been produced, it has heen
agreed that individual footage in cach of these
cascs would be played in court before the
Presiding Officer with best equipment as available
with the Broadcaster to ingke the sound clear and
disccrnable so that some of the gaps noticed in the-
transcripts ot present are filled up and an attempt
is made for an agreed transcript to emerge. It is
prayed by the Counsels that viewing should be
spreed over one week and individual recordings be
viewed and paities heard,

Wherever it is not possible to have an agreed
tanscript, the Broadcaster and the  Respondent,
cach may give their version with regard to the

particular words  uttered. This forum would' then
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decide the  controversy. Aceordingly, in case the

broadcaster and the Wespondent are at variance.

7‘ each would have the option 1o present ils version

| of the transeript.  Beyond the discrepancies in the
transeript, Counsel and parties submit  that they
are no! questioning the authenticity or demanding
any other requirement with regard to the prm’;F of
the recordings, Considering the palure of the
inquiry before the Lokayukta formal prcmf"y' of
these tecordings is dispensed with.

(i) Partics are agreed that based on the pleadings and
transeripts as {inalized, the Lokayukia would fix
the date of hearing in the individual cases.

(iv) Parties are agreed that any common issue of Taw ar
facts  which arises for consideration in  their
inquiries would be dealt with together by the
Lokonyuk(a and while the evidence and arguments
in relation ta each of the vases or transcripts will
be separately wken up,

(V) It is also agreed that while the authenueity of the
conversation and their transcripts would be
established in the above manner, partics would be
at liberty to point owl any personal animosity or
moltive on the part of* the reporters  for  having

carricd out the sting operation.”

None of the Counsel made any suggestion or request for
afteration or modification in lhe above procedure, which: was accepted

by all.

Trunscripts of Recording i~

5. The Otlice of the Lokayukia made arrangements for viewing of
the DVDs containing:copies of the original footage referred 1o

5&; as the “raw {ootuge”. The raw footage as recorded in the DVDs

\
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were played and re-played several times in the presence of the

Respondent Councitlor and the Counsel for Respondent and

Ar?d" 1s Curine and the Advoeate for IBN-7 Channel.

During the playing of the recording of the raw footage, the
Respondent, her Counsel as.also. tlie Coungel for ‘the. Charinel
and. the Amicus Curiac gave their inputs 10 reacha ¢onsensus.

The Forum elso . placed on tecord the cooperation of--the

Counsel and the efforts put in by the AJnicus..Cu;:j‘_a'e"' in.

completion of this exercise. The Registry was- dirccted (o
supply the corrected version, afler carrying out the correction as

noted by the Presiding officer,

Completion of Pleadinps ;-

Pleadings were also completed. Copy of (he' Press Repont
appearing in “Nov Bharat Times” dated 7-12-2011 is annexed
hereto as Anaexure-I. Copy of Reply-Came-Written Statement
filed by the Respondent on 9-2.2012 is annexcd hereto as
Annexure-TF The Respondent and her Counse! as well as the
Amicus Curjae gnd Counsel sor IBN-70 sl subitied that the
mauer e proceeded with on the basis of the transeript of the
original footage as Nnalized  afier viewing and no [ther
evidence needs to be led by them or the Respondent. The said
statement was made by the respondent’s Counsel on the basis
of ‘instructions by the respondent. The Respondent’s Counsel
onty wished:{o.make-oral submissions in support of’ pleas taken
in reply cum written statément. The ‘transcript of conversation
as finalized and agreed to between all parties and marked ‘CV?;
i.e. corrected version, subject to the above observations is

annexed hereto as Annexure-111.

UMMARY OF T RANSCRIPT

It would :be appropriate’ at this stage, to summarize the

transcript as findlized which recorded the conversation between

the. Respondent and the reporter/builder.
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The reporters posing as builders had met the Respondent
with a prior appoinmient. The reporters/builders introduced
me?*ﬁ: to the Respondent.  The Respondent asked the
repen "crsr"lmildcr.': As o whaere wed what is heing construcied by
them, The reporters/builders  say  that they  build  in
collaboration and also-tell about the location where they intend
L0 raise the construction. Further they scek the blessings of the
Respondent  for  starting  work  in her  area. e
reportersibuilders then say that they have purchased two ﬁ[\ts
of 25 sq. v making it a single plot of 50 sq. vds.and intend 1o
construct up to 4™ floor and possibly up o $™ foor.
Respondent offers her help to the builders. The reporters then
express their apprehension regarding the problem which can be
caused by the Junior Engineer. The respondent ‘assures them
that in her avea there is no headache or difficulty with the JE as
she s there to take care of it She then asks the
reparters/builders, where else they are getting work.and offered
the desired help telling them to be in louch with her. The
reporter/builders further say thal they would start construction
immediately and would probably finish in three months and
what they require from the respondent is that there should be no
obstruction in- constiuction, the JE. should not come and pose a
problem and request the respondent to take the whale
responsibility, as they are new in the arca, The respongent
again assured-the refiorters that wiihoitt her constut JE earinol
do-unything and JE will act us per her wisties.  She further adds
that mare than JE it is-the beldarwho roams around liké a dog
to verify where and what is being constructed. She [urther
asked the reporter/builders (o start their work.  The

reporters/builders then ask abour the cxpenses for the JE.

The reponrter/buiiders explained that they plan a budget for the
project sav Rs. 50 lacs or a crore. However, if. demands are
made for Rs. 25000/ for one person and 25000/ for another
then it upsets the whole system. They have a prolit of Rs. 2.00

lacs and therefore, they want o knaw expenses in advance.
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The Respondent says that she will enquire about the
expenses of the JE and adds that JE will come anly with her
conggnt. She will discuss the matter with himm as his mouth is

1

al30 to be shut. She caulions the reporters (it JE should not be

told that they are builders as tha: would raise his demand and

‘ells the reponter thal Lhey- should tell JE that they are persons’

known to her, When the reporter ask about the budget on
account of JE the respondent says that he would not tak.e“.'lcss
‘than one lakh. When the reporter asked about the share'8f the
respondent, she parries and defers asking them 1o specily the
amount but when reporter/builders ask whether it will be less or
more than JE's share the respondent responds curtly by sayving
that she takes responsibility of everything yet the
(reporters/builders) want o dupe and sideline her.  The
respondent. when asked about hor share she says that she wants
to hear it first from thems (reporters). The reporter says that
they have no idea of that area and asked how much Panna Lal,
Counciltor, Ward-183 takes,  Respondent says that nobody
would telf as to how much he would take and nobody will tell
her as how much he is taking. The repurters then ask what the
prevalent rate is. The respondent says it will not be less than 4
or 5 lukhs. The reporters then asked the respondent how much
they should expect for her.  The respondent suys that he
{reference is to another Concillor) is taking Rs. § lakhs and that
she is not of inferior standing than him o 1ake less. She further
says (hol she is going to contest election which cannot be
contestedd withoul meney.  When the reporters say that it would
take one month time to start work the respondent shakes her

head in disappointment.

In between somebody knocks at the door' and there is a
digression in the discussion between the reporters and the

respondent which is not relevant o the present inquiry.

Further conversation relevant to the present inguiry

comes Jaicr and the reporter again asks the respondent about her
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share. The respondent says thal what she said about Khairval,
ey should tioke the said omount. The reporter mention 3 fakh
er;T‘§ (o which the respondent says that 31 s not suflicient as
she will ke all the headuche i responsibility,  The
reparter/builders then pose a query whether share of the JE will
be separate, the respandent snid that share of J1 would be
separate. The reporter/builders then ask the respondent to settie
for rupees 6 dakh.  The cespondent says that the JE's shae
waould he separaie and insist that her share and the sharé of the

JZ would be separatc.

Thereafler the respondent and the reporters fix a time for
the visit of the respondent to the site.  Further conversation is
general in nature, where the respondent speaks about her
conduct; her behavior and her future plan for election and she

tells the reporters how she has atways been helpiul o people.

Response and Submissions of the Respondent ;-

e Respoadent filed reply in response to the notice, under

Sec.7 eiv Sec. 2(b) of the Act.

Respondent stales in her reply that the sting operation
and the news item in Nav Bharat Times on 07-12-201] are
totally fatse, frivolous and baseless and are the oulcome of the
malafide intention on the part of the reporters, who had
approached her sceking some illegal help for getting a building
constructed unawthorisedly in the Ward No. 182, Ambedkar
Nagar, New Delhi. The respondent had politely declined to
render illegal and unrcasonable help to them. Tt is further
submitted that the reporters in collusion and connivance with
some other persons have illegatly @ampered with the originally
recorded conversation and they telecasted the sting operation
with a malafide intention 10 tarnish the unblcmished curcer of
the respondent, It is further submitted that the reporters tried o
in trap her by giving offer of Hllcgal pratifieation and she never

spoke the words qui the illegal gratification or the demand of
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distinclion between legitimate and illegitimate trap. The High ;
Court of Delhi had the oceasion o cansider the legality of a
stisfipcration in the case of Aniruddh Bahl Vs State, 172
(_20f0) BLT 268, wherein an FIR registered against the sting
operators under Section 12 and 13 of the Prevention of
Corruption Act was quashed. The Court beld that FIR was
registered alter one year with sting operators being arraigned as
prime secused.  Court found the act of the sting opcrator's.nas
bonafide who had acted as whistleblowers by a.iring'th'é?’ta'pcs |
on TV channels and by deposing truthfully before two
Committees of Parlimment. Charging such people with offences
under the Prevention of Corruption Act would amount
travesty of justice and shall discourage people from performing
their dutics enjoined upon them by law of the country. The
court held that the duties preseribed by the Constitution of India
for citizens of the country do pennil citizens to nct as ‘agent
provocateurs’ 1o bring out and expose and uproot corruption.
This observation of Delhi High Court obvintes Lhe distinetion
drawn by Madras Uigh Coun between legitimate  and
illegitimue trap. Besides in the instant casc ingredients ol
offence under Prevention of Corruption Acl, prima lacic, appear
to be sa(isﬁed: Henee, guestion ol oflence not being bom cloes
not arise. In R.K. Anand Vs. Registrar, Delhi High Court, 2009
(8) SCC (supra) i.e. the appeal against the judgment of Delhi
High Court in Court on itls Own Motion Vs. Statc and Ors
151(2008) DLT 695, the Supreme Court white dealing with
stings and telecast of sting progranunes observed in Para~179 as

under -

“L.ooking at the matter from 4 slightly different angle we
ask the simple question, what would have been in greater
public interest; to allow the attempt to subom a witness,
with object to undermine a criminal trial, lie quietly
behind veil of secrecy: or to bring out the:mischiefin full

public gaze? To-ourmind, the answer is obvious. The

_____..._.,.______...k,;._‘.)._;?? ¢ *M;—.ﬁ"% r— e
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sting telecast by NDTV was indeed in larger public \

interest and it served an important public cause.”

13, 1Mfe sting operation, in the present case, was also for public
good to cxpose the menace of unauthorized constructions and
the cm.n_plicity ol the City Fathers therein, who instead of taking
sleps to ‘curb this menace, mix up with builders and assure their
support for raising unauthorized constructions, }\xly act which
exposcs this unhoiy nexus of the representatives of pcqég,e' and :
unscrupulous builders, is in the larger public interest, So the

]
i
f siing operation serves an “important public cause.”

f4. Therefore the argument that the sting operation was unethical,
ilegal and was with malatide hlention canpat be aceepled.

The conversation which took place between the reporters and

the Respondent makes it amply clear that the Respondent not

only gave assurance to the reporters posing as' builder 1o help

’ them in raising the construction but also sought a gratification
for such & help. The tone and tenor ol the convarsation clearly

brings out that the reporters were suggesting raising of illegal
construgtion for which they received tacit consent and approvat

by the Respondent for financial gains.

15.  The conversation between the reporters and the Respondent

clearly shows the interest of the Respondent for
; ralsing/constiuction by the reporters ,cxpccting, a ﬂnanéigi
‘ reward for providing her help énd assistanceé 1o thom i‘ri"dbiriﬁ
such an act by exercising her influence with JE whose official

duty is to stop unsuthorized construction,

t6. The Respondent has sssured her help to the reporters, she

, discussed the size of the plots, the number of the plots and also
| " ' the nature of consteuction to be carried out. When the reporters/
? buiider tell her that they wanted her help:to make sure that there
| is no difticulty and obstruction in their work as they are new (0
the srea, and they expressed their apprehension nbout the

problems which can be caused by the JII, the Respondent

1§
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assured that they (reporterstbuilders) would not face any
problem from Junior Engineer (JE)} in her ward and she would
takwm of all. She further states that JE would not go agains!
ler 'v.'isl'ses,‘which in other worls imply thai JE would follow
her dictates. Thus, the Respondent shows her capucily to_exert
personal influgnce upon the JE. [t is censidered useful for the
putposes of illustration to quote from the excerpts of

conversation .as they appear in the transcript sequentially_ih the

narration, The answer to the queries by the Councillor gi¢ an-

insight into her mind and open und disclose the same as alsé her
intentions, apart from the ugreed consideration which

eventually emerges.

“Beena : Agur gupko kaam mil raha hai toh woh batae mujhay,
kahan kahan aapke kaam mil raha hain. Uskay liye jaise help

hogi main karungee. Theek hai na,”

The reporters/builders inquire about the expenses required
Jor the JE. The Respondent assures the reporters that she would

discuss with JE. This also shows her proximity with the JE.

“Beena : JE toh kher han hamari sehmati key bina kuch nahin
kar sakta hain. Lekin ye hain ki matlaly & bhi hamarey kehnay
se chalega. Adhiktar woh JE ko itna time nahi hota hein jitna
(Beldar) ko time hota hain.... woh kutay ki tarah ghumia hai

jaisay kutay ko haddi pahi miiti.”

During the conversation the reporters wanted (o know as to how
much the Respondent will take and shether they would have to
pay her an amount more than that which is paid to the JE or
less. The Councillor’s reply ta such a query opens her inind. It

is considered useful to quote that part of conversation,

Beena : Meri sehmati se aayaga JE to ............. Mai uskay
saath discuss kar lungee mai bethkarke. Dekho uska bhi moonh
band karna padayga aur uska bhi moonh band kama padayga.

Lay bhaiya ych hai aur chutti karo.”

“Reporer: Fir bhi.. JE se kam rakhe anapka va jyada?

R —
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Beena @ Ha he sambhalun mai, bhugtu mai....saari cheezo ko
cooperate Karke chalun mai...aur mujhe hi tum fate laga rahe
ho. 'y inanage, T suffer and coordinate everything and you want

o take me fora ride),

The expectation and demand of the Respondent for illcgal
gratification is further evident in the later part of the
conversation. The reporter asked the Respondent as to- how
much Panna Lal Councillor Ward No. 183 takes? Respondent .
replies that nobody Lells as to what one is 1aking. When the
reporter against asked the Respondent said that be may not he
taking less than 4/5 {ukh. The reporter then Spe..C-'Il'lCﬂ“)" asked

her how much they should expeet for her and asked whether 2
will be sufticient.

Beena @ “woh § le ruha i toh mud kya bilkul ivi ghatia kwatily

ki hun (if he is taking 5 am | of so inferior quality).

Beena © * Mat ek baat batasm chunav ladnay ja raht hu woh
chunaav se palilay bhi w chahiye ............. chunaav hina

paison kay 10 lada nabi jata hai,”

Later on in the conversation the reporter and the Respondent
come to the:main point. The reporter asked that how-much:thay

shouldtake:as her share, to which-the Respondent-said:-as muéh.

‘tupees?” The Respondent found. it Iess and ‘said that the share

of the JE would.be separaie. Then the teporter-gave the figure
of RS, 6 lakh. The Respondent sdys that thic sharé of the JE
should be separate and after giving consent for this amount the

Respondent asked the reporters that she would like to visit the

sitc first,

Another portion of the conversation which shows. the cagerness
and the urgency of the Respondent for the illegal.gratification in
lieu of her help to the Respondent may also be noted. When the
reporiers said that during clection they will finish the building

the Respondent said that she is going (o contest in clection and

i
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she also need something before the election as ¢lection cannot
be. fought without money. ‘Then she questions the reporters
engc?\ul\-vhcn will they start the work. The reporter said that it
will lake a month and the Respondent  expresses  her

disappointment by the gesture of her head.

The entire conversation primarily concerns the raising of illegal.

construction. The Respondent is the Councillor who cannot be

oblivious of ‘the menmce of the illegal. construction. ~Te

ot

respondent’s positive, cager and willing response 10 a request
by the reporters to use her position as a Councillor to hélp them
in raising unauthorized construction militates against the public
duty of a Councillor, who is to act against any proposed,
ongoing or completed unauthorized construction in the arcn
lalling under her jurisdiction. It is not the part of a public duty
of the Respondent wha represents thousands ol persons in her
jurisdiction to give encouragement (o unauthotized construction
by promising help in such sclivities by exercise of her personal
influence with a public sevvant. Rather, it was her duty to bring
w the netice of the awthorities cancemed any instance of
construction without sanctioned plan. The desive o appease the
coustitucis ar furthering of so called clectaral prospects by
extending help in such activities, cannat over ride the norms of

conduct and integrity which a public functionary is expected to

folluw,

The above act and conduct display failurc to act in accordance
with the noms of integrity and conduct which ought 1o be
followed by public functionarigs. Besides, it is also abuse and

misuse of position as it manifests conduct to gain favour for

herself in as much a5 the amount to be Respondent’s share was
also decided. Assurance to help in unauthorized construction,
tautamount to discharge to' functions being acluated by
improper mative for personal interests. it also coiistitutes lack
o:f faithfulness to her functioning as a C‘.mmcﬂlor.i Thus there is

contravention of Scetion 2(b)(i) to (iv).
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I view of the foregoing discussion and the analysis, there is no
doubt that the Respondent has Tuiled o observe (he nonns of
Boow”duct and integrily expected of 2 person of her cluss by
cntcriaining, discussing and  indicating  her »\-‘illingncss 1o
supporl  the  reporter/builders  who  were to carry ot

unautharized construction. '

The Ld, Amicus Curiae, Mr. Sanjeev Sharma, has submilled
that (he misconduct of the Respondent is grave and ealls for a
“censure” in the least, Mo further submits that the wl'ﬁcls
emergiog in the transceipt prima facie disclose an offence under
Scction 8§ and O of the Prevention of Corruption Act, He
submits that the above evidence being legal evidence recorded
in deemed judicial proceadings should be forwarded to the
appropriate investigating agency for considerstion as to whether
it constitutes an offence under the Prevention of Corruption Act
and warrants any finther action and this Forum is legally bound
to do the same. [t is ordered accordingly. The transcripts -and
other evidence as recorded before the Forun be forwarded to

Commissioner of Police for consideraiion, evaluation and

further action in-accordance with law.

2%

We have also considered the aspect that the Councillor whose’

conduct was being inquired into by the Lokayukta. following the

sting operation was not provided ticket by.-their respective:

parties in the then forthcoming elections. This resulted in the

Councillor hot contesting election and thus ceased to bc a

‘Councillor. We have also-considered whether the-above should

make any differenee on the recommendation of ‘Censure’ for
them. 1t is a well settled leual principle that misconduct docs
not cease with the ofTice term coming to un end. Mareover, as
far ‘as political life, with all its vfcissitu'dcs, is concerned, a
Public Functionary svho does not fight a particular-slection-doas
not cense to be in active politics or in public life, Qur
experiences have shown that he/she may aspire for and come

for even higher positions. Moreover, for maintaining probity in
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public Jife, it is essendal that the constituents are also made
aware of the misconduct of their respective representatives

whighefs in consonance with their right to receive information

about the deeds of public representatives.

From the foregoing discussion, it is ouar view that the
factum of.a Public Functionary ceasing to -hold office-should
not come i the way of a recommendation for Kisther ‘Censure’
being made and the above is submitted for the ) ?‘ci'n'd _ .
considerntion of His Excellency, the Lt. Governor. e ' |
26.  The conduct ol the Respondent Councitlor as evidenced from
the transeript of conversalion marked “CV™ clearly amounts o
violation of norms of integrity and good conduct, abuse of
posilion to obtain guin. for herseif, being actuated in discharge
of her tunétions by improper motives and personal. interes( and
lack of faithfulness, in terms ol Sec¢. 2(b) (1), (i1), (Hi) & (iv)
read with Scc. 7 of the Deihi Lokayukta & Upalokayukta Act,
1995,
I is, therefore, recommended o His Excellency, the
Lieutenant Governor of Delhi, that a “censure” he issued to the

Respondent Councillor for her misconduct as found above.

//2\1.,\ ' o S
(_J/:kticc Murimohan Surin)
Lokayukta

Dntc:&'f(‘[ August, 2012
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE LOKAYUKTA
JUSTICE MANMOHAN SARIN

CO;#LA]N'I' NO, C-1146/1,0k/2011

In the mauer of Suo Moto Cognizanve of'a Press Report Titled “Sting

Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein Macha Hadkamp” appearing in

“Nav Bharat Times” Dated 07-12-2011

AND

in the matter o!"lnquir_v Under Sce. 7 read with See. 2(b) of The Delht

Lokayukin & Upalokayukta Act, 1995, in respect of Conduct of

Shrimati faishree Panwar, Municipal Councillor, Respondent herein.

5

>

Stri Akshuy Makhija Advocate, Amicus Curiae with Ms.
Sanjugeeta and Ms Mahima Behl, Advocates.

Shri Anish Dayal, Mr. Bipin Singh, Mr Senjey Tokas , Mr.
Ranbir Datta, Mr Sanat T'okas, Mr. Prashant ‘T'okas and Mr
Sidharth Veid , Advocates, for Shrimati Jaishree Panwar,
Municipal Cotmicillor, Respondent.

Mr. Mrinal Bharti, Advoeaie, Counsel tor 1BN 7.

REPORT

Cognizanee and Jssuanee of Notices

t,

Suo mote cognizanse was taken of a report titled “Sting
Operation Ke DBaad Parshadon mein Macha Hadkamp™,
appearing in “Nav Bharat Times” dated 7-12-2011. Vide Order
dated 7-12-2011, notices were issued o the Editor and City
Correspondent of "Nav Bharat Times” to produce complele
reeords of interview and other cvidence in refation to the press
report, Notices were also directed to be issued (o the Managing

Directorand Correspondent of Chanpet IBN-7, whe had carried

-oul the telecast of the sting operation showing involvement of

Municipal Councillors participating in negotiations regarding
carrying out ol illegal and enauthorized constructions lor illegal
gratification. The reporters of Cobra Post, who had been
dcputcd by the Channel IBN-7 to carry out the sting operation,

were directed to produce the original foolage/records of the

sting aperation.
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Commencement of Proceedings

Pursuant. (o the potices issued, the adwvocale of M/s. T'VIE
Broadeast le,I{hich owns Channel 13N-7, appeared with lwo
reparters of Cobra Post owned by M/s. Shri Bhardwaj Media
Pvt. Ltd, who had curri@:d oul the sting opcraﬁon under an
arrangement with Channel IBN-7, The statcments of the
reporters who had carried out the sting operation were duly
recorded on oath, The Deputy General Manager of IBN-7, Mr,
Sachin Dev, CW-3, also tendered the original lootage contained
in the DVDs, as Cx.CW-3/1, BEx. CW3/2, Ex. CW3/3 and Ex,
CW3/4, The DVD of the telecast programine was alsa tenclered
as Cx, CW3/5. The wanscripts of the recorded conversation of
the meetings and negotiations with Respandent Councillor and
7 other Councillors were also tendered. Afier viewing the DVD
recording of the conversation of reporters with the Councillors
and perusal of the transeripts of the same, vide Orders dated 21-
12-2011, it was held that easc for inquiry under Sec. 7 r/w
2(b),(i), (i), (iii) & (iv) of the Act was made out and notice {0
the respondent and other Councillors  returnable on 16-01-
2012, were directed 1o be issued. The file of each Councillor

was directed to be segregated and registered as a scparate

complaint.

The Respondent entered appearance through Shri Anish Dayal,

Advocate, and filed her reply-cum-written  slatement.

Considering the nature of the controversy and issues arising for

considetration, it was found cxpedient and in the interest of
:

Jjustice 10 ﬁppuinl an Amicus Curiac and Shri Akshay Makhija,

"z\d\-'ocme. was so appeinted vide Order dated 16" January,

2012,
In view of the ensuing municipal elections, Respondent
Councillor among others- made a fervent plea lor expeditious

disposal of these inquiry proceadings so that.if allegations arc

gy
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not proved, he / she stands exonerawed without delay, so as not

to affect their clection prospecis.

Procedure adopted I’Odrlnguil'y

4.

The Counsel and parties were heard an:d their suggestions

considered regarding adoption of the procedure in the inquiry

50 as 1o conform to (he principles of natural justice, while

expediting the inquiry, vet giving the fillest opportunity 1o the

parties 1o present their respective case. A consensus emerged on

the procedure to be adopted which is re-produced below for

facility of refercnce:-

1

()

i)

All:'the Counsel and- partics shall endeavour (o
abide by .the time given for completion. of
pleadings. In. fact the Respondents and the
bropdcaster Have all stated that they would. take
notorc than one tothiee weeks so  iat Ithe
-etitiré pleadings can be- coinpleted within a mdmh.
at the maximum.
Régarding the authenticity und correctness of the
recordingswhich have heen produced, it has been
agreed that individual footage in cach of these
cases would be played in cowrt belore the
Presiding Ollicer wilh best equipment as available
with the Broadcaster to make the sound clear and
discernable so that some of the gaps noticed in ihe
transcripts  at present are filled up and an attempt
is made for an wgreed transcript to coerge. [t is
prayed by the Counsels that viewing should be
spread over one week and individual recordings be
viewed and parties heard.

Wherever it is not possible to have an agreed
tanscript,  the Broadeaster and the  Respondent,

cach muy give their version with regard 1o the




particular words  uttered. “This Torum would then

decide the  controversy. Accordingly, in case the

bro’ﬁk{slcr art the Respondent are ul variance,

.each would have the option to present its version

of the wanscript.  Beyond the discrepancics in the

trans{:ript. Counsel and parties submit that they

are ol questioning the authenticity or demanding

any other requirement with regard to the proof of . ) | S
the recordings. Considering the nature of ‘the

inquiry before the Lokayukta formal proof of

these recordings is dispensed with.
(iti) Parties are agrecd that based on the pleadings and
transetipts as. finalized, the Lokayukta would fix

the date of licaring in the individual cases,

e U

(iv) Partics arc agreed that any conumon issue of Jaw or
facts which arises for consideration in  their

inquirics would be dealt with together by the

Lokayukta and while the evidence and arguménts
in relation o cach of the cases or transcripts will
be separately taken up.

(v) It iz also agreed thot while thé authenticity of the
conversation  and  their  franscripts  would  be
established in the above manner, poriies would be
at liberty to point out any personal animosity or
motive on the'part of the reporters for having
carricd out the sting operntion.”

None of the Counsel made any suggestion or request for
alteration or modification in the above procedure, which was accepted
by all, |
[ ‘Lranscripts of Recordin

Fignlization

5. The Office of the Lokayukta made urrungements for viewing of
the DVDs containing copies of the original footage referred to
as the “raw footage”. The raw footage as recorded in the DVDs

were played and ve-played scveral times in the presence of the




6.

Respondent Councillor and the Counsel for Respondent and

Amicus Curlac and the Advocate for IBN-7 Channel.

During the pluyﬂg ol the recording of the original tootage, the
Respondent, her son and Counsel as also the Counsel for the

Chamnel and the Amicus Curiae gave their inputs to reach a

consensus. The Forum also placed on record the cooperation of

the Counsel and the efforts put in by the Amicus Curtae in
completion of this exercise. The Registry was directed to
supply the corrected version, after carrying out the correction as

noted by the Presiding olTicer.

Comnpletion of Pleadings

Pleadings were also completed.  Copy of the Press Report
appearing in.“Nav Bharat Times” duted 7-12-2011 is annexed
hereto as Annexure-l. Copy of Reply-Cum-Written Statement
filed by the Respondent on 16-1-2012 is annexed hereto as
Annexure-I1. The Respondent and his Counsel as well as the
Amicus Curiae and Counsel for THN-7, all submitted that the
matter be proceeded with on the basis of the transeript of the
original footage as finalized alter viewing and no [urther
evidence needs (o be led by them or the Respondent. The said
statement was made by the respondent’s Counsel on the basis
ol instructions by the respondent. The Respondent’s Counsel
only wished to make ora) submissions in support of pleas taken
in reply cum written statement. The {ranscript of conversation
ag finalized and agreed w between all partics and marked ‘CV?,

i.e. corrceted version, subject o the above observations is

annexed hereto as Annexure-kHl

SUMMARY OI' TRANSCRIPT

It would be appropriate al this stage, lo suimmarize the

transcript s finalized which recorded the conversation bétween

the Respondent and the reporter/buiider.
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The reporters posing as builders met the Respondent, telling
that they were happy to meet her alone. Reporter/ huilders said
they work in Ghifﬁbﬁd and wanted- to build and work in her
constituency, Rcspdndcnt told them that it was not the right time
since an Ex. Engineer had been demolishing buildings and advised
them to wail till construction starts oo the demolished sites.
Reporter/builders also mentianed meeting one Ajay from Ajay
Properties, who offered to arrange a meeting with her but they
preferred 1o meet her (hemselves, Respondent remarked that such
people were interested in fleecing money. While they all belonged
to Barot, Ghaziabad, Meerut and were all from U.P, where people
were pood. The Reportet/builders said that they were wold that Rs,
R-14) Lacs would be required. Respondent told them to be in touch
with ber and there was no need to talk o any third person, Reporter
builders wanted her to tuke op the whole vesponsibility, so that
they did not face any problems during construction. Respondent
said only time would 1l She would not like (o take the
responsibility unless she was certain. She would not tike that after
her taking responsibility, building should g(-.;l demolished.

Respondent clarified that problem of complaints by lawyer had

-been sorted out. Reporter/ builders were anxious to know the

amount that would be required, whether it was 8.5 Lacs.

Respondent sdid it would depend u.pcnn the site, Further she cannot
specity as she-does not dodenls. Reporter/biilders said they had

come Lo her aind wanted to deal-only with her.and no one clse. Her

response was positive. Respondent was not inclined to commit

amount in view, of the present conditions, where consiructions

~were halted, She gave the exnmple of the site of one Devender who

was close 1o her. Ilis site was in stalemate. On the reporter/
builders insistence on knowlng the amount, she replied, “let the
work start” and she would do the ricedful. She also-allayed the "fénr
that the elections would adversely affect construction. Her refrain
was o wail and watch, to observe when work could commence on

buildings which had been demolished. She could not tell how
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much would he necded for the Tz s there were some swlio were
good and other who loot, Quee the job starts she would be able (o
(eli the amount rcq_ﬂ:cd. Shie also told the builders/reporters of
uncertainties like someone complaining and problems of other

sgencies In organizZing construction. On specifie” query by the

reponcrlbuildc_z_-g-th_at!_' they -'~_ha_1d'" Bgen given.an estimate of Rs. éUI;C_}'

Lads, shic could:affer adding up-the JE and her amousiis tell themy,
she repeated that it could not be estimated st (his stage. Tt.could be
cven more than-§ Lacs and il could be less depending upon the JE
and the nature of work. Work could be done even in.4 Lacs. She
did not want building 1o be demolished and then to be rebuilt.
Reporter/builders said that they had been told that 5 Laes would be
her share, Lo which she responded that she would not say it and she
would -sece about it later. Reporter/builders could consider
themselves close (o her. Her first concern was that their work
showld be done [irst und satisfactorily and only then she would see.

If work does not start, whal was the point ol talking about it

Response and Subniissions of the Respondent,

Respondent Jai Shree Panwar liled a written response through
her Counsel on 16-01-2012. The response apart from her
version also included the legal submissions. She also filed what
was labelfed as an additional reply giving the transeript of the
unedited video footage of the sling operation, pointing out what
were considered ‘gaps’ and ‘discrepancics’. ‘The latter is nol of
any significance in view ol the consensus reached afler playing
and re-playing of the transcript of the corrected version as
prepared by this Forum, rectifying to the extent possible the
‘alleged discrepancies, and the decision of the presiding officer,

on which ihe broudcaster and the Respondent were at variance.

Mr. Anish Dayal, Ld Counsel, has been heard in support of his
submissions on 16-01-012, 08-02-2012 and 28-02-2012, thus
giving full ohp_m'tunily to put forward the Respondent’s case. 1.d.

Counsel coriticized the manner in which the broadeast has been
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carried out labeling it as defamatory and disparaging. He submitted
it was wholly unfair,and incorrect 10 depict that the Respondent
had demanded Rs.18.00 Lues. He submits that the skewed naturc of
the hroadcast wus further aggravated by the incorrect reporting by
the newspapers to sensitize the matter. He subinits that chubbing of
the-cases had caused the Respondent great prejudice as the role and
conduct of each Respondent in the recorded conversation was
different and distinct and the broadcaster had clubbed together the
vecording in a manner by which false impression that all the
Councillors “were  corrupt and  were pariy 10 encouraging
unauthorized construction for corrupt miotives was telecast. 1Ld,
Counsel submits that perusal of the transeript would show that
there was no misconduct or abuse of power or amnission or finding
ol holding assets disproportionate to known sources or any
evidence of having pecuniary advantage had surfaced. Thus, he
subinitled that there was no cause of action for proceeding with the
inquiry under Scc. 2(1} (b) of the Act, He urged thut udmittedly the
Respondent neither had the power under the Delhi Municipal
Comoration Act 1o ssnction any huilding plan or permit any
construction or repairs, ller functions as a Councillor were
legislative. The entire upproval of building -plans or construction
activities depended upon the Building Enginecring Department and
she had no role to play i il,

Whilc assessing -the entire conversation that she had with the
reporters, the above (actors :have to be kept.in mind. As for the
transcript, he submitted that the conversation begins with the
Respondent warning and cautioning the reporter/builders that it
was not the opportune time to start any building activity in view of
the Exccutive Engineer carrying out demolitions. The reporters
kept on peslering her despite her reluctance, non-committal,
ambivalent and indifTerent attitude. The Counsel submitted that it
hus (o be remembered that the Councillor is a public representative
and has to be polile and diplomatic with her conslituents and

entertain their queries. The constituents cannot be simply snubbed




ar asked to feave even if they are saying something which may be
in violation_ of {aw, The unwillingness of the Respondent was
evident from her W) language and gestures which were visible in
the video. [e submitted that threughout the conversation, the
discussion wus speculative, where the Respondent was deferring
the matter. No cash or money passed or was accepted for any
iflegal activity. She kept on repeatedly emphasizing the ongoing
demolitions and the rolle_of the Jr. Engineer. Despite repeated
exhortations the Respondent did not say or commit any amount.
The hard reality is that the Couneillor in.her or his ward has to
entertain querics ol constifuents who may be interested in
unauthorized construction and handle them diplomatically, [He said

that the mere cnquiry ol size, discussion ol nitly-gritty,

constructions in their native village or lamenting of the misdeed ol

Jr, Engincer wvho collected money and then allowed premises wo be
dismantled were intended to defer the reporter/builders. The Forum
has 1o tnke ibto aceount her positive assertions, where in responsc
o question whethier Rs. 8.5 Lacs would be sufficient, she says “'|
have no idea, T &) @) @& avdi 9d) ¢ She also narrates o them

abouwt the site of Devender, which stands close, by telling them that

she would not like to do something where there is possibility of

demolition of the building and she can only Tet them know afler

talking to the Jr. ingineer.

Ld. Counsel concluded that the Respondent had  an
unblemished record as Mayor of Delhi in 2002-03 and is the
daughter of a celebruted freedom fighter and daughter in faw of
Dalip'Singh, M.P. With this. glorious family background, any
_assumplion or presumption of dishonesty or corruption on the part

of the Respoﬁdent would be misplaced.

I.d. Counsel further submilted: that the entire conversalionl had
the ingredients of entrapment where the veporter/ builders by the
sting operation were leading the. Respondent and persisting' with:
their questions on how mugh amount-was 1o be kept for her; which

she parried till the end. He submitted that while applying the norms
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programmne as lelecast and the ailegations and insinuations in
respect of the Regpondent. This Fornn is concerned not with
the above quell?nn for which the Rc.-;pnndun( has separate
remedics, i aggricved, buy with the question of conduct of the
Respondent as unravelled by the entire unedited version of her
conversation, from which anly parts or excerpts would have
heen taken for the broadeast. For the purposes of this inguiry, it
is the entive unedited foolage and the wanseript thereof which

has been coasidered.

Regarding the plea of entrapiment, the entire tenor of the
cnnvcrsation and viewing of the video shows that Respondent
was fully in conirol of the conversation. 1t was hardly a
situation where she was being induced into saying anything.
Rather, it is the Respondent’s own case that despite persistent
goading by the builder/reporters, she parried and deférred all
cntreaties to name a figure, thereby rejecting, as per the

Respondent all offers of gratification. It is thus clear that. the

Respondent did.not appear to be entrapped or induced; rather:

she was saying what she chose of her freewill, The Respondent

meirily went on telling about the: difficulties which -weéie being..

faced on.-account of demolitions, her- having tackled he
difficulty created by a lawyer.and advising the builder reporters
(o wait end- watch and that-as soon: s the right JEE ‘was available
aind worlcicoiild be started, she would Tet them know. This is
delinitely not the casc of a gullible and entrapped person. It is
the case of an astute Councillor planiing for the opportune time

for unautherized constructions.

I{éfc'-rc_ncc may also be made to the decision of High
Court of Delli in Am;[uglia_.]sg hal V/s h_um reported as 172
2 LT 2GR, wherein an F.ILR, L'egistércd, sgainst the sting
operators under'Sec, 12 and 13 ofthe Prevention of Corruption.
Act was quashed. The Court held that F.L.R was registered after
one year with sting operstors being arraigned as prime accuscd.

Court found the act of the sting aperators as bonafide who had
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of integrity and conduct and the standards by which the
Respondent ought to be judged, the contemporary and prevalent
socictal norms havﬁ; be applied. 1t should not be forgotten that
there was rampant unauthorized construction and Respondent
could not be favited with for talking about or responding Lo (he
gueries of ils constituents regarding excculion of unauthorized
constructions. He submitted that all the required ingredients of
inducement and entrapment were satisfied in this case by the
conduct of the reparters. The Respondent has to be judged in
accordance with the contemporary criteria of good conduct as
prevailing and not on the basis of Ideafistic norms which may he

divarced from reality and practicalily,

The Ld. Counsel also prayed lor reconunendation to be made
by this Forumy to the Press Council of India and News
Broadcasters  Association that the tclecast would amount to
violation of Cable Television Networks Acl, 1998 and the rules
framed there under. The submission can be conveniently disposed
hore and  now.The proceedings under the Lokayukla &
Upalokayukta Act, 1995 are for an inquiry into the conduct ol a
puhliu' functionary and not for evaluating the role of the
broadeaster or making recommendalions lo the Press Council of
india or the Broadeasters Association. It is for the Respondent in
case he is aggrieved by any act of the broadcaster Lo lake such

independent remedial action.

Evaluation of the Conduct of Respondent as Uneavelled by

the Transcript and Consideration of tie Reply and Pleas in

Respunse,

Let us tirst of all consider the Respondent's grievance regarding
the telecast as prejudicing and defaming her by putting together
a programme for various respondents Councillors in respect of
whom sling operations were carried out. The grievance of the
Respondent that the telecast was defamatory of her or

disparaging her is to be considered in the light of the
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acted as whistleblowers by aiving the tapes on TV channels and
by deposing wuthlully before two Conunitiees of Parliament,
Charging such p{ﬁ‘ic with offences under the Prevention of
Corruption Act would amount to travesty of justice and shall
discourage people {rom performing their duties enjoined upon
them by law c\f" the country.  The court held that the duties
preseribed by the Constitution of India for citizens of this
country do permit citizens to act as agent provocatewrs Lo bring
oul and exposc and uprout corruption. Special Leave Petition

against the High Court Qrder was also dismissed.

Rcl"erencg: is also invited to the judgment of the Supreme
Court in R.K, ANAND V/§ REGISTRAR. DELHI HIGH
COURT, 2009 8§ SCC. 106, i.c the appeal against the judgment
of Delhi High Court in Court on its own mation - Vs. State and

others. 'The Supreme -Court while dealing with stings and

telecast of stitig programnics abserved.in Para<179 as-unidér;-.

“|.goKing.at the mautér from a glightly differéni unglé we
ask the simple question, what wauld huve been in greater
publie interest; to allow the atlempt to-suborn 4. witness,
with the db_iccl to undermine a criminal wial, lie quietly
behind veil of secrecy or Lo bring out the mischief in full
public gaze? "I'o our mind, the answer is obvious. The
sting telecast by NDTV was indeed in farger public

interest and it served an imporntant public cause.”

The sting operation in the present case was also [for
public good to expose the menace of unauthorized construction

_and the complicity of the City IPathers therein.

I, There is.no merit in the plea that a Councillor does not have
power (o grant, approve or ¢lear approval for construclions and
has only legislative péwcrs. therefore, has nothing to do with
construction, ‘This caimot be an answer o a charge of

5 D misconduct, as the legitimate exercise ol power is not intended

7
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to come within Section 2(b) (i). t is misusc or abuse ol power
whtich comes under the allegation aud is actionable, While the
Councillor muﬂot be having any execulive power to grant or
sanction plans  for construction, yet, on dccount of its
tegislative funcuons and being the person who oversees the
implementation  of  civic  programines,  hefshe  enjoys
considerable ¢lout and influence which vanscends all aveas.
This is @ maner of public knowledge of which judicial notice
may also be taken. The willing participation of the Respondent
also becomes evident from the fact that she was advising
caution so that construction is raised at an opportune time and
with the involvement of a wifling Jr. Engineer so that it is not
demolished later on. She was afso alluying fears when
eoquired, that the impending clections would not pose a
problem and they could easily construct during the clections as
MCD ofticials would be busy in other waorks at that time. She
also namated the hindrances that could be expected from
various quarters including police and engineering dc,mruﬁcm.
when the request for her w0 take total responsthility was being

made by the reporter/builders.

Upon Evaluadon of the transeript of the conversation which the

Respondent has with the Reporter/builders and  also on

consideration of the the atiendant circumstances, the following

position cmerges:-
i, The Councillor during the entirc conversation has
stated that once the already demolished  illegal
canstructions begin, she would give the Reportér/

Builders a go ahead 1o begin (heir construction also.

ii. "She stated 1o the Reporter/Builder that during the

coustruction,. she would handle any problem which

“may srise due o lawyer complaint,

iil. .On the quantum of her share in illegal gratitication,

the Councillor never even -once catcgorically stated
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that she was nol going to accept any graufication,
but said that she would discuss it when the
cunsmtion starts,  thereby  displaying  sell-
confidence that a Councillor could not be duped and

she would have contrel of the situnation,

It is alsa nateworthy that iy the (ranscript of
canversiation the Respondent discusses and laments
about the misdeeds of certain JUs who simply
collect money and nol ewe for the people. She
reforred also to site of one Devender close to her
where lot' of money had been exchanged, but was
lying in n state of stalemate afler demolition. On the
offer of gratification: and on her share, she. was non-
committal- because she felt that it would .depend:on

the Jr. Engineer, his atlitude and the prevailing

sitilation at:that {ime. She went on to assure-that she

considered the reporter/butiders close to her. The
only linkage as it appears being that both had
claimed that .they hail [rom Burot,Ghaziabad and
W.P. Barring the above, it is evident that hailing
from the State of U.P, one of lhe lurgest State of the
country, cannol bring about the affinity between
themn, which appears to be present only because they
were in pari-delicio. Being non-committal about the
sum which she desired for herself, proceeds from the
desire 1o be firm about the same which she herscll’
recounts by saying that total required could be more
than Rs, 8 Lacs or even Rs.4 Lacs or xo. The above
ulterunces by no neans be treated as rcfusal or
indifference. Her willingness to support and arrange

unauthorized construction, agreeing to speak and

contact the concerncd JE to have the needful done at

the opportune time for amounts to be agreed with an

assurance of her reasonablencss emanating from so-
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called professed closeness. Further, the willingness
o encpurage and facilitate unauthorized and illegal
L

conslruction is writ large on record.

The above act and conduct display failure to
act in accordance with the norms of integrity and
conduct which ought te be followed by public
functionaries, Besides, it is also abuse and misuse of
position as it manifeésts conduct to gain favour for
herseit in as much as the umount to be Respondent’s
share was to be decided later. Assurance to help in
unauthorized construction tantiunounts to discharge
of functions being actunted by improper motive for
personal interests. It aiso constitules lack of
faithfulness to her functioning as a Councillor. Thus,
there is contravention of Sec. 2(b) (i} to (iv) of the

Act, ¢

The menace of unauthorizod construction has pcr\radcd‘ the
mctropotis of Delhi. 1t is not confined to a superfictal level or
the surfuce, [t has entered the very blood stream of Delhi.
There are various reasons for the same, galloping population,
vising demand for accommodation, non-availability of the
saine, which tempts the residents to expund vertically and
harizontally in contravention of the permissible limits.
Complex laws and unresponsive system have also aggravated
the prablem. Unabated growth of unauthorized construction
also cinanates lrom lack of enforcement and implementation of

ihe municipal laws. ‘The situation gels further aggravated on

account of complicity of the municipal staff, city fathers, local

politicians ‘and. the police. In an attempt to contain the role of
public functionarics and Councillors in this menace, this
Forum had on complaint from one Councillor initialed action
in 6] cases against the legislators and Councillors for
unauthorized construction and irregularities in their propertics,

1t was a matter of satsfaction that in majorily of these cases,
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the public representatives have either voluntarily demolished

or got regularized the violations.

It is well smd that the higher the office the greater the
responsibility and higher the expectation fiom the said person
for ohiscrvance of the norms of integrity and good conduct, In
the instant case, e Respondent’'s Counsel has  devoled
considerable time in urging the celebrated status of the
Respondent, namely, her having been the Mayor ol the City
during 2002-03, and being the daughter of a freedom fighter
and daughter in law of an M.P as also her own standing in the
major political party. Undoubtedly, with these credentials the
expectstion from the Respondent of abiding by the norms of
good conduct and integrity has to be much higher. She does not
deserve any leniency or allowance in the same on the ground
that comemponﬁry standards have fallen and it is commonplace
for Councillors to support unauthorized construction, She has to

be a role model and her example should be a bedcon light for

others,

In view of the foregoing discussion and the analysis, there is no
doubt thu.t the Respondent has failed to observe the nomms of
pood conchuct and inlegrity expeeted of a person of her class by
entertaining, discussing and indicating her willingness  to
supporl the reporter/builders who  were  to carry  out
unauthorized construction, She agreed to do her best to help
them and !i:ld_only deferred the amount to be paid o her to be

{
decided upon the commencement of the construction and the

attitude of the JE at thal time.

The Ld. Amicus Curiae, Mr. Akshay Makhija, has submitted

trat the misconduct of the Respondent is grave and calls for a
censure in the least. He further submits that the facts emerging
in the trapscripl may even amount to an offence under the
Prevention of Corruption Act, ble submits that the above
cvidence having been legnl evidence recorded in deemed

L3

s e
ST




; o h

judicial proceedings should be forwarded to the approprisie ,

.

investigating agengy for consideration as to  whether it
constitutes an: ol!E;ace under the Prevention of Corruption Act
and warrants.any further action and this Forinm is duty bound

to do the-same. It is ordered accordingly.

16, The conduct of the Respondent Councillor as evidenced from
the transeript of conversation marked “CV” clearly amounts lo .
vialatton of norms of integrity and good conduet, abuse of
position Lo obtain gain for hersell, being actuated in discharge
ol her functions by improper motives and personal interest ad
lack of faithfulness, in terms of Sce, 2(b) (i), (i), (i) & (iv)
read with See. 7 ot the Delhi Lokayukia & Upalokayukta Act,

\
/ 1995,

it is, thercfore, recormmended to His Excelfency, the
Lieutenant Governor of Dethi, that a censure be issued to the

Respondent Councillor for her miscanduct as found nbove,

, ’MWLOLUL o LA
(Justice Manmoh:an Sarin)
Lokayukta .

% Date: 25" May, 2012 \
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BEFORE THE HON'BLE LOKAYUKTA ,
JUSTICE MANMOHAN SARIN lcﬂz

ﬁ:OMPLMN"N , C-1148/Lok/2011 ‘ :

{n the matter of Suo Moto Cognizance of a Press Report Titled “Sting
Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein Macha Hadkamp™ appearing in

“Nav Bharat Times" Dated 07-12-2011

AND R
In the matter of Inquiry Under Sec. 7 read with Sce. 2(b) of The Delhi
Lokayukta & Upalokayukla Act, 1995, in respect of Conduct of Shri

Ravi Prakash Shanﬁa, Municipal Councillor, Respondent herein.

1. Shri Abhijat Bal, Advocate,. Amicus Curige with Ms. Mansi
Sharmu, Advocate,

Shri Alok Kumar, Shri J.C. Gupta, Shri Vinay Gupta, and Shri
Vikas Khurana, Advocates, for Shri Ravi Prukash Sharma,
Municipal Councillor, Respondent,

o

REPQRT
Cognizance and lssuynce of Notices

1. Suo 'nlwto cognizance was takcn of a report lued “Sting
Operation Ke DBaad Parshadon mein Macha Madkamp”,
appearing in “Nav Bharat Times" dated 7-12-2011. Vide Order
dated 7-12-2011, notices were issued to the Editor and City
Correspondent of “Nav Bharat Times” to produce complete
records of interview and other cvidencces in relation to the press
reporl.. Notices were also directed to be issued to the Managing
Director and Correspondent of Chaunel IBN-7, who had carmied
out lhe telecast of the sling operation showing involvement of
Mgnicipal Councillors participating in negotiations regarding
cari’rying out of illegal and unauthorized constructions for illegal
gratificatlon. The reporters of Cobra Post, who had been |

deputed by the Chunne! IBN-7 to carry out the sting operation,
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aﬂ"’f{:’;:;’-—
P T




2

were directed to produce the .original footage/records of the

sting operation.

Commen!g' ment of Proceedings

Pursuant to the notices issued, the advocate of M/s, TVIS
[Broadcast Ltd, which owns Channel IBN-7, appeared with two

reporters of Cobra Post owned by M/s, Shri Bhardwaj Media

Pvt. Ltd, who had carried out the sting operation under an_ -

arrangement with Channel IBN-7. The statements’ of thé®-

reporlers who had carried out the sting operation were duly
recorded on oath, The Deputy General Manager of 13N-7, My,
Sachin Dev, CW-3, also tendered the original footage contuined
in the DVDs, as Ex.CW-3/1, Ex. CW3/2, Ex, CW3/3 and Ex.
CW3/4. The DVD of'the telecast programme was also tendered
as Ex, CW3/5. The transcripts of the recorded conversation of
the meetings and negotiations with Respondent Councitlor and
7 ather Councillors were also tendered. After viewing the DVD
recording of the conversation of reporters with the Councillors
and perusal of the transcripts of the samc, vide Orders dated 21+
122014, it wag held that case for inquiry under-Sec. 7 riw
2(b),(1), @), (i) & (iv) of the Act was made out and notice {0
the rcspdndcnt and other Councillors returnable on 16-01-
2012, were directed to be issued. The file of esch Councillor
was directed to be segreguted and registered as a scparate
complaint,

The-Respondent. éiitered- appenrance: through: Shri~JiC. Gupta,
Advocate, and- -filed his:  reply-cum-written staterdient,
Considering ihe. nature of the controversy and.issues arising for
consideration, it was found cxpedient and in ‘the interest of
justice to appoint an Amicus Curisc and Shri Abhijat Bal,

Advacate, was so appointed.

In view of the ensuing municipal elections, Respondent

Councillor made & fervent plea for expeditious disposal of these
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inquiry proccedings so that il allegations are not proved, he

stands exonerated without delay, so as not {0 affect their

clcctionﬂﬁspects.
Procedure adopted for Ingpjry
4. The Counseis and perties were heard and their suggestions

considered regarding adoption of the procedure in the inquiry

so as (o conform to the principles of natural justice, while-

expediting the inquiry, yet giving the fullest opportunity to thé’

parties to present their respective case. A consensus emerged on

the procedurc to be adopted which is re-produced below for

facility of reference:-

(D)

(i)

All the Counsel and parties shall endeavour to
abide by the time given for completion of
pleadings. In fact the Respondents and the
broadcaster huve all stated that they would take
not more than one to three weeks so  that the
entire pleadings can be completed within o month
at the maximunt,
Regarding the authenticity and correctness of the
recordings which have been produced, it has been
agreod that individusl footage in each of these
cases would be played in court before the
Presiding Officer with best equipment as available
with the Broadeuster to meke the sound clear and
discernable so thut some of the gaps noticed in the
transcripts  at present are filled up and an attempt
is made for an agreed transcript to emerge. It is
prayed by tiie Counsels that viewing should be
spread over one week and individual recordings be
viewed and parties heard.

Wherever it is not possible to have an agreed

transeript,  the Broadcaster and (he Respondem,
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each may give their version with regard to the ;
particular words  uttered, This forum would then ‘

7" decide the  controversy. Accordingly, in case the
broadeaster and the Respondent nre at variance,
each would have the option to present its version
of the transcript.  Beyond the discrepancies in the
transcript, Counsel and parties  submit that they
are not questioning the authenticity or demand_‘ifrg‘g
any other requirement with regard to the proof of
the recordings, Considering the nature of the
inquiry before the Lokayukta formal proof of
these recordings is dispensed with.,

(ili) Parties -are agreed that based on the pleadings and

’ transcripts as {inalized, the Lokayukta would fix
the date ol hearing in the individual cases.

(iv) Parties are agreed that any common issue of law or
facts which arises for consideration In their
inquiries would be dealt with together by the
l.okayukta and while the evidence and arguments
in relation to each of the cases or transeripts will

; be separately taken up.

| (v) It iy also agreed that while the authenticity of the
conversation and their transcripts would be
established in the above manner, partics- would be -
atliberty to point out any personal animosity or
motive on the-part .of the reporters -for having
“. carried out the sting operation.”

: None of the Counsels made any suggestion or request for
7: _alteration or modification in.the above progedure, which was accepted

by all.

Finnlization of Transeripts of Recording

@% 5. The Office of the Lokayukta made arrangements for viewing of
the DVDs containing copics of the original footage referred to

- ﬂd‘gt“' ' .
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as the “raw footage”. The raw footage as recorded in the [DVDs
were played and re-played scveral times in the presence of the
Rcs;;o:_'ﬁm Councillor and the Counsels tfor Respondent and
Amicus Curiae and the Advocate for IBN-7 Channel. In the
Instunt cuse, the only difference of opinion between IBN?
Channel and the respoadent's version is with respect to the last
fine of transcript, This Forum found few words of the last line
inaudible and even though IBN? Channel’s Counsel M.r..IM_r_‘inql
Bliarti had claimed that the saine were discernible and dudi‘ﬂﬁt,
this Forum found the same as inaudible, However, that does-riot
uppear to affect the meaning of the sentence which remains
discernible. The sbove difference of opinion is being

reproduced for sake of record and reference:-

« g < o forire B ST T A a, o o, e

ot A g B SR mRm R A A AR ) ofy S

M e (NIOL 2UIBIE) T AR e BN {fm)
Ruds ~ Q@I

Mr. Bharti urges that the words are actually “afiw <t )
B & M EvE ) s | i g

The Counsels for the Respondent arc not agreeable to
the inclusion of the words * 3R ot ) o & ot v ™ in

between.

A consensus cmerged on what was the actual version as audible

from the fuolage. Aller making corrections in the transcript, the

same was also read over to the parties by the andersigned.
Registry was direcled o prepare transcript of final version and

muke available copices (o the parties, which is Mark “GF".

[t would be appropriaie at this stage, (o summarize the

transcript as finalized which reconded the conversation between

the Respondent and the reporter/builders.
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Respondent who was near the Shankar Vibar Prachin
Hanuman Mandir was accosted by the reporters posing as
builc”ﬁ. (hereinafier referred to as “reporter/builder™), sccking
help 'for the construclion to be stared by them in his
constitueney. The Respondent immediately asked them to
inform afler starting the work, Thereupon the reporter/builders
told the Respondent of the difficultics faced by them in their
carlier work at Mandawali from the JE of MCD.. The
Respondent Councillor again assured that there would Bé no
problem and he would tell the JE etc. The reporter/builders
requested the Respondent Counillor to teil them the estimate
of amount so that they could budgel the same.
Respondent/Councillor assured themn that it would be done on
r_easdndblq- basis and upon the reporter/builders teliing that they
had faced o demand of Rs. 8.00 Lacs from the previous JE, the
Respondent assured -that it would be reasonable and there was
no “loot® in his constituency. Upon the reporter/builders
insisting on knowing the amount, the Respondent Councillor
told them not to tatk superfluous things and he would fix the
entire deal’ on a reasonable basis. The reporter/builders had
informed the Respondent Counciflor that they were going to
construct without any sanctioned plan since Lhe same was time
consuming. Despité knowing this, the Respondent Councillor
continued with his assurances and also asked Lthem to meet him
in a day or two, The Respondent Councillor assured. all help in

seitling and arranging the matter with the JE on a reasonable

basis.

Qgg]_ pletion of Plendings

7. Pleadings were also completed. Copy of the Press Report
appearing il “Nav Bharat Times” . dated 7-12-2011 is annexed
hereto as Annexure-I. Copy of the Order dated '7-12-2011 is
annexed hereto as Annexurc-ll. Copy of Reply-Cum-Written

Statement filed by the Respondent is annexed hercto ag
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Annexure-HI, The Respondent and his Counsel as well as the
Amic"ﬂ(‘furinc and Counsel for IBN-7, all submitted that the
matter be proceeded with on the basis of the transcript of the
original footage as finalized afler viewing and no further
cvidence nceds to be led by them or the Respondent. The said
staiement was made by the respondent’s Counscl on the basis
of instructions by the respondent, However, the Respondent
wanted to make a statement and aport from that he did not W
to lead any evidence. The transcript of conversation as finalized
and agreed to between all partics and marked ‘GF' subject to
the above observations is ennexed hereto as Annexure<IV. The
statement of the respondent on oath was also recorded on 17-

02-20 i2. Copy is, annexed hereto as Annexuré-V.

Submjssions of the Respondent
8. The main plank of the submission of Mr. Gupta, who was heard
on 2-3-2012, 9-3+2012 and 16-03-2012, has been (hat the entire
recorded conversation shotld be considercd in the background
that it was a citizen approaching a public functionary for help.
The Counvillor, an elected representative was duty bound to
redress the concerns and difficultics of citizens and while doing
10, he was bound to ba polite and courtcous, In the entire
conversation, the respondent was assuring the reporter/builder
that he would speak to the concerned Jr Engincer to ensure that
no difticulties arc encouniered by the reportgr/builder wha
wanted o commence construction in his constituency. Mr.
Gupta submitted that every public functionary was interested in
development  in his constituency and if a butlder wants to take”
up & venture there, it would provide employment and work (o
the labour force and the Councillor would encoumge it. A
striking feature in the cntirc conversation is that there is no
demand made by the Councillor for himself and he has only

promised (0 remove the difficuliies faced in the construction
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work. Not only did the Councillor not demand any amount, but

he did not express his expectation of any amount.

\k’it!1I:\-'ic\v to crvstallize his submissions, an outline of
submissions, was submitted on behall of the respondent, which
is annexed hereto as Annexure-VI. In view of the fact, that it
is not the telecast which is being considered, but the entire
recorded transcript as demanded by the respondent for a proper
cvaluation of the context, the plea regarding answeﬁng
respondent being wrong{ully clubbed in the telecast with others

has no relevance. Accordingly, Respondent’s Counsel did not

press Point-7 of cutline of submissions.

As noted carlier, at the request of the respondent, for a better
understanding and  appreciation of the context in ‘which the
conversation took place, the entire original footage' and
transcript thereof be considered ond not .the telecast, the
submtissions in the reply-cum-written stalement contérning the
tefecast arc not being dealt” with. Morsover, il the respondent
Fias any gricvance with-regard to being defemed by the telecust,

he can-avail of oppropriate remedy at law,

For the purposes of assessing whethér the conduct of
Public TFunctionary as monifested and revesled in the
conversation makes out an allegation, within the ‘meaning of
Sec. 2 (b), the transcript os finalized is being considered only.
Hence, the averments and pieas raised in the writlen statement,

in relation to the telecast, are not being considered,

Another plea on which some stress was laid by the Ld, Counsel
is that the Councillors under the Delhi Municipal Corporation
Act, 1957, do not heve any authority (o either sanction,
supervise or interfere with the ‘construction or building
activities, which is a function of the officials of the Municipal

Corporation, under the Act. In the absence of any authority in

“sanctioning, supervising or controlling the construction, it was
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claimed that the Councillor has no role in it and the
Councillor's role is confined to sanitation, mainienance of roads
andy™rovision of necessary infrastruclure in their wards.
Councillor is neither equipped nor vested with discretion or
authority to provide any favour to any builder in the matter of

approvals and sanctions for buildings or construction.

It was also urged that the menace of unautlorized construction

had thrived on account of lacunae in the legisfation and inaction -

and complicity of municipal staff and police.

Coming to the transcript of conversation as recorded, it was
urged . thal the respondent was having the conversation while
standing on o public road and with others present. There was
thus nothing clandestine or improper which could be inferred in
sitch an open conversation, which was not in conspiratorial or
clandestine manner. It was urged that despite the reluctance of
the respondent who was all through endeavouring lo get over
with the matter and to put themn off, the reporter/builder pursued
the matter relemicss!y; with the pre-determined objest of
somehow extracting and putting words into the mouth of the
Respondent. It was urged that the conversation carried the
features of entrapment as the reporter/builders .:vcr'e only
working towards pre-determined questions in an attempt to get
answers, which they wanted. The conversation had all the
features of entrapment being practiced with the sole object of
sensationalizing und improving their TRP ratings for purposes
of earning profit. It was also urged that the recorded
conversation and the ‘words spoken by the respondent do not
constitute an “allegation within the meaning of Section 2(b)" of
the Act. There was no passing of .any consideration or iilegal
gratification. There was no actual project or building, all were
make beliel. Hence, Counsel argued, it cannot be said that the
vespondent has acted or abused or misused his position and

power to obtain any gain or favour for himself or that he was
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actuated by impraper or corrupl motives or personal interest in
the discharge of his functions. Counsel argued that since
buildingxwtivit_v did not come within the discharge.of functions
of the Councillor, assuring a party*that he would not sulfer
unnecessary harassment, cannot be regarded as abuse or misuse
of power, or being actuated by impraper or corrupt motivcs.
There is no settlement on terms involving monetary

consideration. Il is a case where a motivated deception has been.

practiced on the respondent with a view to somehow trap him.:

Statement of Respondent made on Qath

Respondent wanted to explain the circumstances in which the
convorsition took place, He submitted that in the month of
September, 2011, he was standing oulside Shankar Vihar
Prachin Hanuman Mandir, in connection with the drive for
collection ol funds {or Ramlilu-Dusherra celebrations. Other
members of the Ramlila Conunitiee were also present. Me said
that when he was talking on his mobile to someone, who was
desirous ol booking the Community Hall, he was accosted by
two persons seeking his help saying that they were small time
builders in Ghaziabad, They were not known to him and wanted
his help in raising construction, without facing problems and
difficulties with MCD, Respondent informed that Preet Vihar

was an approved colony and sanctioned plan was required, for

any new construction,

It is in this background, that the transcript of conversation, as
per the respondent cught to be considered. The Amicus Curiac
sought certain clarifications from the Respondent. It was put to
the Respondent whether he did not consider it improper for the
persons represenling themselves as builders approaching him,
since Councillors as per his own version did not have authorily
to approve or permit any building activity? Respondent replied

in the affirmative that he did consider it improper but being a

public functionary and elected representative, he can be

PR
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approached by anyone ¢ven on the road and he was not
cxpected to slap such persons. On a query 8s to in what

mpnnewc as a Councillor could help o builder desirous of
commcﬁcing construction in the constituency, the Respondent
replied that he.can help in contacting the Architect or Structural
Engineers if such problems were faced but it had 10 be within
the ambit of faw, He stated that when anyone approaches him
with a problem regarding non-clearance of plans or structural
drawings, he tries to soit it out depending upon the difficultis
being ftaced. He clarified that for commencement of
construction, it is only the sanction of building plans, the issue
of compoundable or non-compoundable or unauthorjzed
construction arises only on completion of constfuction. e
statcd that ic had no interest or relationship with the persons
who had approached him. The relerence to ‘hudpet’ was the

hudget ol the said builders.

Evaluation of the Transcript & Conduct of the Respopdent

16, Having noted the background, version and perspective of the
Respondent in which the conversation took place, and the
submissions made as well as the contents of the Respondent’s
statement und having heard the Amicus Curiae on the
‘interpretation and mieaning to be given to the trunscript as also
onthe conduct expected of a Municipal Councillor, Jet us:

analyze and evaluate the transcript and his conduct:

17.  The first thing to be noted is that when the reporter/builders

u_p'prbac_h_ed the-respondent Coundillor, they: told. hm‘l that- they-

were commencing construction in his area’ ahd wanted some.
help from him.. The response:of the Councillor was not-one:of
hesifation but fedssuring. He sdid it doés not matter and
wherever they-wanted to start they could start ‘cohstruc;‘fé)n and.
thea tell:him; to which the reporter/builders responded: that they
were plaining to start after a week. Here again, the respondent
responds and says that “he will speak to the JE"and. “Usko™
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(not identilied). This portien of the conversation negates any
impression of a hesitant or unwilling Councillor, This is
immddtately followed by the reporter/ builders telling aboul the
problems they faced in Mandawli from the JE upon starting
work, Herc again, the response of the Councillor is reassuring
when he tells that “he would tell the JE cverything and there
will be no problem™. The repornter/builders now suggest that
they would do the rest as per the Councillor's wishes‘.:_-f;]fhe
suggestion of the reporter/builders is quite apparcnl:m‘.lihe

Counciller responds by saying that they will settic it and make

the JE sit across and finalize with him.

Now comes the talk regarding the moncy, where the
reporter/builders request for money required to be told as they
have 10 plan or budget it. Herc the response of the Councillor,
if it was a bonaflide conversation, where only help was 10 be
extended by « Public Functionory, would have been a
reprimant or rebuke stating that rio consideration was involved.
On the other hand, the response of the Councillor is that
estimated budget would not be a ‘loot’, at which the reporier/
builders infurm that in their last work, a demand of Rs. 8.00
L:;cs was made. The Councillor assures them that “here there is
no loot”, to which the reporter/builders state that they do not
have that kind of a budget here and want to know when they
should. meet him at home. The Councillor then talks about his
religious and temple work and his honesty therein and -tells
themn that it would be reasonable for them. Further, they could .
talk to the JE, The reporter/ builder persist in wanting to know
about it so as to.budget it, to which the Counciilor responds that
estimnate would be done and there i$ no loot in the work. The
Councillor later on tellpthem not to talk so much and that they
would have & reasonable amount and the whole work would be
done. At this stage, the reporter/ builder also inform him that
they were not getting plans sanctioned since the same tnkes a

long time. Hence, was ngain an opportunity for the Councillor

ey —— e, -
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to. say that- if construction was v be done illegally, without
sanctioned plan, he had nothing (6 do with tliem or cannot help
.the-m..ﬂi the Councillor does not do that. On the other hand,
says, “they had come 1o hj111 and whatever he has heard he
would tell the concerned person and he would take care”. The
reporter/ builders then ask when they should talk to him. The
Councillor tells them to come day aller or after some time. He
tells them to comc in the morning or in the evenm;, The
reporter/builder now enquire that four floors are to be
constructed and for each lintel what would be the charge, would
it be done in 1.5 Lacs. The Councillor then repiies reessuringly
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The above words are clear, categorical and admit of no
ambiguity. These contain an assurance that the entire deal
would be settled on reasonable ters, in contra-distinction to
the figure mentioned by the reporter/builders which they paid in
their last contract and referred to repeatedly by the Respondent
Councillor as “loot”. ‘Thé role and: conduct of the Counciilor as
s faci i.jigtor' in'settling the terms on reasonable-basis for. illegal

‘conistruction, needs no further amplification.

18. The aspect of inaudiblé words has been notéd earlier. The
respondent herein did not agree to the words, which as per JBN-
7 were spoken, on the plea that they were not audible, At the

same time, the respondent did not ofler, while the onus was on

‘“d-
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him, to tell what he had said. Even if the inaudible portion is
not considered, the part which is significant is “Sari aapke deal
karadoPfiga”. A reading of the entire conversation in its context
and backgrouid, leaves no doubt that the Cauncillor has offéred
to contact the JE iﬁ helping them in constructing the buikling.
This assurance of help has continued even after learning that the
construction was to be without sanctioned building plan. Not
once, but repeatediy, he has assured the reporter/buiider th'a‘tz a
reasonable settlement would be reached, in contra-distinction to
‘loot" as described by the Councillor, when he was told about
the demand of Rs. 8.00 Lacs by the reporter/builder in their
previous work at MmdaMI. Having leamt that the construction
is without sanctioned plan, the Councillor re-assured that he
would speak to the concerned person and the whole thing will

be handled within & reasonable amount and manner und he

would have (he whole deal fixed. There is not even an iota of

dogbt lefl that the Councillor had offcred to act as & facilitator
for unauthorized construetion and offering to have the same
done on what huas been termed by him “reasonably and not
loot”. This is clearly a violation of the narms of integrity and
conduct expected of a Councillor under See. 2(b)(i) read with

Sec.7 of the Act.

Pleas in Defence

I

-rwﬁ.gf:;'“#*’— el

2.

4.-!_5,

R

(i)  As regards the contention that there is no statutory
function assigned under the Delhi Municipal Corporation
Act, 1957, to the Councillor for approving and
supervising construclion, while the sume may be so, it is
a matter of public knowledge and of which even judicial
noticc can be taken that the menace of unauthorized
construction in Dethi, would not have advanced and
renched alarming proportions, without the complicity and

at time indifTerence and inaction of the municipal stafT,

L amtil
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police and the Councillors and nexus with builders. It is
idle 1o contend that the Municipal Councillors are not

ncemed with the building sectivities in their areas.
Numerous instances of palronage of unauthorized
construction and even assault on municipal statf, where

their instructions are not carried out, have been found by

us.

In any case, in view of the clearly adinitted apd
recorded version of transeript, it is idle to contend thal
the Councillor was not having any role or could not hiave

had any role in facilitating unauthorized construction.

As noted, pleas which are toncerned with IBN7
provifding blank DVD or the replacement being
manipulated or morphed or questioning the veracity of
the recorded conversations as also averments concerning
Respondent  being  clubbed  with  others to  his
disadvantage and resultant prejudice and hing are not
being dealt in view of the decision of this Forum arrived
al  with conscnsus, to  consider the individual
conversations, which each of the Councillor hud, and not
the telecast. The transcripts of ariginal footage
containing conversation were played and re-played till
consensus was resched on the correctness nnd
authenticity of the tanscript. It is only this finalized
transcript which has been considered for the purpose of
this report. Hence with the consent of the learned
Counsel for Complainant,. the pleas as noticed above in
the written statement concemning the- telécast or in
relation to the recording of the Intérview and the
submissions ¢of DVDs and errors therein are not being

considered.

Apart fromi the above pleas, which were taken, Ld.
Counsel submitted that the Respondent neither claimed
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nor was a beneficiary of any gratification, which is said

to have been agreed in the conversation with the
sporter/builder. 1T was submitted that it was an altempt

10 create a sensation to lash out in concert on an innocent
person, who was sought to be trapped into this
coriversation. It was an attempt on the part of the IBN7
to sensationalize the issue and increase their TRP ratings.
[t is claimed that the Respondent dealt with the mzltu.:'.r;in

a very routine and casual manner,

Mr. Gupta further argued that the reference in the
transcript to the sentence containing the word ‘Kaam® in

the following lines in the transeript refers to execution of

construction work.
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The . shove argument has enly to be -_étatbd-':té-'ibe

rejected. In the preceding para, the reporter/builder’is
asking foran sstimation and budget.of what it is _g“éixig to

cost them for ensuring that there are no hurdles from the
MCD, Besides, even in this sentence, the word
“reasonable kaam", refers te the total reasonable

settlement, which in the subsequent passage and in the

concluding para are described as “deal”.

It ig highly improbablc that ‘Kaam’ would refer to
construction work because construction was not what the
Councillor was undenaking to get done. The entire tenor
of the conversation regarding construction i.e, Rs. 1.5
Lac per floor and 4 floors, would dispel this notion.
“Kaam” refers to the proposed settlement with the J.E so

that there are no hurdies in raising construction.  While

it is true that nowhere in the entire conversation the

Respondent asked {or any money for himself or make
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any direct demand for himselt, the posturc adopted was ,

thai he would get the deal donc with the JE,

Yd Mr. Abhijat Bal, Ld. Amicus Curiae had submiteed
that usually the stratagem adopted is to have the entire
amount of gratitication vollected either through the JE or
Beldar etc. which is later on distributed. This avoids any
direct involvement of the Senior Officers / Councillor
etc. What Mr. Bal has submiued is highly plausible. - ,.
However, what clearly emerges in this case is that the
Councillor admittedly offercd 1o act as a facilitator  for
unauthdrized ¢onstruction to be carried out. This by
‘itself, without anything else, in my view, is_sufficient to
hold violation of norms of conduct and..integrity by the

Respondent.

(v)  Ithasbeen alleged that in the current political secnario, a
Public Functionary is expected to cater and to lodk after
the difficulties of their constituents or others who.may. be-
interested in doing development or construction work in.
their constituency. The Respondent was -only performing:
his public duty. May be, in doing so, in his enthusiasm,
he oversiecpped the norms. But he was only helping a
member of his constituency. This he considered as part of

his public duty.

This brings w0 the fore again the need for
orientation courses and for framing and finalization of a
Code of Conduct far Municipal Councillors in public life,
sa that they clearly. understand the conduct and norms
expected of them. It may be noted that this Forum has in
a number of cases made this recommendation which has

also been accepted by His Excellency, the Hon’ble Lt

% Governor, and Is awaiting implementation.
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However, the present case is one not admitting of
any doubt ar ambiguity regarding misconduct. [n fact, for
suchﬂéar cases, reference 10 any Code of Conduct or
norms may not be nccessary as onc’s conscience is
sufficient guide to tell  whether it is the right and honcst
thing to do or il is a dereliction of duty. The oath laken at
the time of assuming Office of Councillor, which enjoins
him to bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution .
of India as by law cstablished and to faithfully dischargd™®’
lhé duty, which he is aboul 0 enter, is also a valuable

guide. The above conduct, by no means can be called &

faithful discharge of duties.

Plea of Entrapment

{vi) Ld. Counsel for the Respondent has submitted that a
sting operation by a private agency is by and large
unpalatable and unacceprable in a civilized society. He
submitted that a sting operation cennot he initiated to
induce or tempt an otherwise innocent person to commit
a crime or to entrap him to commit a crime. He relied on
the observations made by the Mon'ble Supreme Court of
India in RAMANUJAM SINGH V/s STATE OF
BIHAR, AIR 1956 S5C 643, which are as under:-

“Whatever the criminal tendencies of a man may
be, he has a right to expect that he will not be
deliberately tempted beyond the powers of his [rail
endurance and provoked imo breaking 1he law; 1t is
one thing to tempt a suspected offender to overt
action when he is doing all he can o commit a
crime and has every intention of carrying through

tis nefarious purpose from start to finish and quite

8 another to egg him on to do that which it has been
FJ finally and firmly decided shail not be done. The

very best of men have moments of weaknesses and

S e R
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temptation, and even the worst times when they
repent of an evi] thought und are given an inner

f strength to set Satan behind them.”

Referring to the present case, the Counsel
submitted that the Respondent who was on another
mission was accosted by the reporter/builders. There was
absolutely nothing wrong i the Respondent enterlaining
a person who wanted lo raise construction orl;g#i;o
development work in his constituency. The Counsel
submitted that the Respondent only tried to help them
while acknowledging the hard realities of prevalent
corruption and telling the reporter/builders how the waork
could be done. The reporter/builders proceeded with
asking questions on a set line, drawing out the rcsponses

which they wanted,

Mr. Bal, while refuting the above submissions,
rightly submitted that the plea or defence of inducement
or cntrapment was really not available to the Respondent,
This was not a case where the Respondent was lured or
induced into doing something, The Respondent on his
own was ready and willing to participate and carry
forward the conversation, In faet, as it would be secen

from the perusal of the transcript and viewing of the

" video, the Respondent himself was extremely reassuring

of hig help and commitment in ensuring that there would
be no hurdles from MCD en construction without
sanction. In these circumstances, Mr. Bal submitted that
one of the fundamental requirements of entrapment, that
it wus an act which the Respondent was probably
otherwise not willing to commit, would not be available
in this case. It was also not a cas¢c where the

predisposition on the part of the Respondent could be

ruled’ put. .In fact, the offer to lhelp and. facilitate the.
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construction was almost voluntary. This offer continued
without any inducement even alter the reporter/builders

ad stated that they were not going to have the building
plan sanctioned, The observations made by the Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India in Ramanujam’s case (supra)

cannot be npplied in the instant facts.

Mr. Bal rightly submiis that if the respondent’s
version, that he had neither demanded nor there wa_s_;yanyh . [
contemplation of any illegal gratification in the matter,
was to be belicved, then the conduct of the Respondent
would not be what it had been. Mr. Bal also pointed out
that the construction of a building without sanetioned
ptan was an offence under Sec. 461 of the DMC Act,
1957, Section-332 prohibits crection or commencement
ol crection of any building without senctioned plan,
while Section-334 provides for application for rcpairs,
additions. or alterations to a building, Vielation of
Sections 332 & 334 of the DMC Act, 1957, under Sec.
461, reid with Schedule-XIl, is punishable with
imprisonment. for six months with fine. Thus, the
Respondent was willfully going uhead with an illegal act
of facilitating illegal construction twough the
engincering smﬁ” of MCD on terms to be settled by him,

wherein he could be rcasonably expected to derive
beneflt.
20. Tho Supreme Court of India in its latest judgment in R.K.
ANAND V/s REGISTRAR, DELHI HIGH COURT, (2009) 8
SCC 106, while deafing with- stings and telecast of sting
programmes, observed in Para-179 as under:«
“Looking gt the matter frem a slightly different-angle we

ask the simple question, what would have been in greater

public interest; to allow the attempt to suborn a witness,

’{/Cq with the object to undermine a criminal trial, lie quictly
. -1‘;“'{.3.",__ - vt 4 a4t e .
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behind veil of secrecy or to bring out the mischief in full
public gaze? To our mind, the answer is obvious. The
Mng ielecast by NDTV was indeed in larger public

interest and it served an.important public cause.”

App!ying the above. crileriy, it would bc seen that: to:
expose the ‘merince- of corruption, nexus of builder imafin.and.
the local poiiticians, i.e. Councillors and the‘municipa'l_».smf'_ﬂ_}i_g
the rampant’ unauthorized' construétions sweeping a'ci'ds‘s_:fgé‘ii? - |
metro, a great public cause is served by the said exposure. Here
was ua public functionary who was more than willing to offer his
help, hence, the operation carried out by the 1BN-7 in exposing
the menace of unauthorized construction due to the nexus of the
builder mafia, politicians and municipal staff was & laudable

cause and justified the sting operation.

2t. In view of the forcgoing discussion, it ts clear that the
Respondent Councillor has knowingly offered to dact as a
I'.'ul:ililat(n' to carry out unauthorized construction and give his
hielp by assuring that he would handie the Jr. Engineer of MCD.
Further, he has gone about clearly holding out that the above
"would be done on a reasonable basis, in contra-distinction” to
“loot™. The latter expression was used by the Respondent
Councillorr on hearing of the amount which the
Reporter/builders claimed to have been demanded by the JE in
their previous work at Mandawali. Construction of a building
without sanctioned plan is in contravention of Sec. 332 and is
punishable under Sec. 461, rcad with Schedule-X!§ of the Delhi
Municipal Corporation Act, 1957. The action of a public
representative in offering to act ag a facilitator for construction
without sanctioned plan would be in contravention of the above
provision. Ilence, undoubtedly, a violation of the norms of
conduet and integrity required to be obscrved by Municipal

Councillars or public representatives under Sec. 2(b) (i} of the

W
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It would also be appropriate to deal with the plea which
is often urged in support of public representatives in such
matters] numety, that it is a part of their duty owed to their
constituents to help them. Thus, Councillors per force end up
giving guidance and help in such matiers. It is also urged that
having regard to the current political scenario and prevalent.
societal norms and moral standards, such help is rendered in
routine to persons known to or close to the public

representatives or those who arc party workers.

It is time to clearly state that it is not part of a public duty
owed by a4 Councillor to give encouragement to unauthorized
construction by promising help in such ventures. On the other
hand, it is his public duty to bring to the notice of the

n authorities any instance of construction without sanctioned plan
or attempt for the seme which comes to his knowledge. It is no
defence to urge that unauthorized construction is rampant and
commonly resorted to. Even if it is commonly done, it is high
time that the right thinking members of the sociely, raise their
voice and send a clear signal to the Public Representatives and
those in power, that such dereliction of duty would not be
countenanced, The desire to appease thc constiluents or
furthering of so-called electoral prospects by extending such.
help cannot override the norms of conduct and integrity, which
are expected to be followed and which ‘their oath of office

enjoins them to observe,

22, It may also be moticed that this Respondent along with others
had earlier also been proceeded with for misconduct i.e. for
allegedly sealing and locking the office of the Deputy
Commissioner of MCD and blocking the ingréss and egress of
the Deputy Commissioner, in Case No. C-304/Lok/2010. In
the snid casc, the Respondent along with others had expressed
his regret for his action and gave assurance for his future

[/é/ conduet, It then appeared that there was a realizalion of his

L
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responsibifities by the Councillor and the regret was accepted lég—
and a quietus was applied to the said matter. The present case

has sl:o\Whal the earlier regret has not had the desired eftect,

Recommendation

23, In yi'ew of the finding recorded hereinbefore, the conduct of the
Respondent Councillor as evidenced from the transeript of
conversation, Mark “GF”, clearly amounts to violation of
norms of integﬁty\ and conduct in terms of Sec. 2(b)(i) read” ' i
with Sec. 7 of the Delhi Lokayukta & Upalokayukta Act, 1995. '
It is, therefore, recommended to His Excelfency, the Hon’ble
Lt. Governor, that a reprimand- be issued to the Respondent

Councilor for his misconduct as found above.

(J st?gtmm om:'m)

Lokayukin

Date:22™ March, 2012

Hugass
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BEKORE THE HON'BLE LOKAYUKTA
JUSTICT MANMOHAN SARIN

COMPLAINT N Coy b/ Loke 201

v the namer ol St Moto Cognizance of o ffress Report Tifed Sy

Lieratinn b le.i{! Parshiadun Metn Macha Hackamp™ appeinge i
UNav Bharat Times” Dated 0710001

. AND
fthe matter of fnguiey Under See, 7 vead with See, Mby of The Daelhi

Lokayusty & Upalokayukte Act, 1995, in respect of vondocr ot Shyi
!

Ajit Singh Tokas, Councilior, Respondent horein,
S : i
v ’ '
" [ Shri Akshay Mokhibn Advocate. Amicus Curiae withy M
Sanjupecta & Ms, Mahifima Tebl, Advocnies.
2, Shri Anish Davad, Shei ipin Singh, Shri Runbir Duti & Shes
Sunjay Tokas, Advocates, for the Hespondent,
3, Shrio Mrinal Bbartl, Advocate, for TV Brogdeast [1d. With
Shri Sachin Dev, Deputy Genatal Manager (Corproate Alluirs).
TV 18 Broudeust Lid.
REPQRT ‘
: Copnlzance and Issunpee of Notices
o Suo mote cognizance was taken of a report litled "Sting
Operation Ke  HBaad  Parshadon mein Macha  Hadkamp®,
@ appearing in “Nav Bharat Times” dated 7-12-2011, Vide Order
doted 7-12-2011, notices were issued o thy Rditor and Uity

Correspondent of “Nay Bharat Times™ to prodoce complote
records of interview and other evidenees in refation o the press
report. Notices were also directed to be issued to the Manoging
Director and Correspondent of Channei IBN-7, who had carried
oul the telecast of the sting operation showing involvement of
Muameipal Councillors participating m negotiauons veganding
uarr}'i‘ng eut o illegal and unauthorized constructions for ithegal

gratification, The reporters of Caobra Post. who had been

BEINL L r smme
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Frooview  of  the  ensuoing moniaipnt clesiions, all
e pondent Counciliors made o fervent plea dor e peditho.
disposat ot these inguiry praceedings s thut I ellegations are

-

gud proved, they sand exonerated withowt deday, sa s pos o

ad et 1h-.*.ﬁwlinn NEONPUUTEE,

Procedure sdopied for Inguiry

ik The Counnels and parties were heard and iheir sipoeOons .

vonsidered reparding adoption ol the proceders in e ingeiey

s a0 conforn o the pringiples of watwral justice, whiic
A
expeditiog the bgjuiry, yet giving e futlest opportuniis o the J_\ : ,
@%ﬁ partics Lo present their respettive case, A consensus ceerged on
the procedure 1o be adopted which is ce-produced Below fier
facility ol velerence:-
“
{i) Al the Counsel and parties shall endeavour o
abide by the time given for completion of
pleadings. In fact the Respondents aml w
broaduastee have all stated that they  would ke
not more i o (o three weeks o Lhin the
entire pleadings can be completed withina month
o the maximom,
(1) Regarding the authenticity and correctness of the
@ recordings which have heen praducad. it bas beey

agreed that individval footage in ecach ol these
cises ot he played  in cowt before the
Presiding (ficer with best equipment s aviiluinl
with the Broadeasier to make the sound clear and
discernable so that some ol the gaps notieed io e
transcripls Al present are filled wp acd an atwngyt
in made for an agreed tmnseript o emerge. s
praved by the Counseis that viewing -:lul'mlcl b

gpread over one wiwk and individuad recordings be

viewed and puties beard,
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Wharever il ix pol possible o have an agreed

ranscript,  the Broadeaster and the  Respondent,
each may give theie version with regard to the
particolor words uttered. This forum would then
decide the  convoversy. Accordingly, in case lhf‘fy‘
broadeaster and the Respandent are at vm‘i:mcu.,"
cacly woukd have the option [o present its version
of the wanseript. eyond the discrepancics in the
transeript, Counsel and parties submit that  they
are not guestioning the authenticity or demaacding,
any other requirement with regurd to the promd of
the recurdings. Considering the nature ol the

inguiry before the Lokavukia lonmal proof ol

these recondings is dispensed with,

(i Parties are agreed that based on the pleadings and
ranseripts as finalized, the Lokayukta woald  fix
the date of hearing in the individual cases.

(v Parties are agrecd tat any conumon issue of law ur
Gucts which arises for consideration i their
tguirivs wonld e dealt with together by the
Lakayukiand wihsie the evidence wind arguticns
relutton o gach o the cases ot irnseripty will
e epncaiely token up.

puh o s also agreed thal awhile the authenticiy of
copversation  and  their  tansergry would  be
vatublished it the above manuser, parties would be

3 o an HbCay 1o paint out any personad animosity or

motive on the put ol the weporters  {or having

careied vat the sting eperation.”

Nune of the Counsels made any suggestion or reguest for

afteration or modification iy the above procedure, which was aceepted

by all.




Counsel for TV IR Broadeast Lo bad tesdered ve Ol thy
DADIs stanedd e be contiining e Tootage inespret ol Shrt Al Singl
Fekas amd Ma dai Sheee Panwar, soother Councillon, Adter pooviding
duy ul‘iﬂnmsnm’ﬂ;.\ e Urosddeasio: 1o crass chaek the DV wih
Factage o sendered afong with the samsenpta, e cive wat fisged Qi

vicwang al the feetage o 72222002 and Vo comspletion ol pleadings

Finsdizavuon of Transcript ol Recarding

The Qilice wlhe Lekaveha mide arvangements: for viesomg o

e DV conlining copies of she ariginal featge reterad o . .

- as e ey foolape”. The rnw footage as recorded in e V15
* were played and reeplayed several times in the presence o the
Respotudent Cauncillor and the Counsgels far Respendent and
Anmticus Curise and the Advocate for Channel FN=F. The seript
ol the conversation of the Respondent and the reporier wis
‘ farly lung} one. N reguired heunring and re-benving o disvarn the
exacl words spoken. The task of arriving at 8 consgnsug on
transeript after hearing and viewing of the raw footage, had
Become cumbersome und consumed a lot of time. The viewing
of the DV hed commenced ot 1130 AM and continoed il
4.30 PM with funch break on 7-2- 1072, 1t was directed 10 be
continued on §-2-2042 at 11.00 AM. Certain minor differences
had emerged which were duly anticed and recorded. First ong
@ was whether the respondent bad said, “Aap fogen oe bhi rabne
ke live banuna hein® or “Aap lagon ne bhi rahne ke live nabin
banana hein®. The voice at (kis pasticalar point gets drowned
Iy the sound of 2 hammer in back ground and it is nat possibie
to decipher clearly whether the word “Nahin™ wis spaken or
not. However, looking at the context and the visual expression

of the Respondent, the pasaibility of the word “Nuhin™ is there.

Secondly, the recorded portion as it appears al 18,20.25
to (8.21.51 does not appear in the ynnserpt pravided by the

Channel, Flowever, the parties are b agreeinent that this parl off

the recording is not relevant e present inguiry and ean by
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178740, the words

Yid.
gnered. The Tines appearing around
aseken by s AQ Singh Tebas, are, UMerd v ?se koi dikka
valii et Sumirka mein dave T o dapke pata Bhi hops ke
vehan 70 The Chstnel™s version does pat contain the word,
“_‘.'c‘llnu’v". Mr. Dayal, Counsel for the Respondent, submins lfml..
the lip Mmovament indicates the words, “Yehan na kai lena l‘.aﬁﬁ!’f‘

ne kot dena hein™, and cun be discerned from the Tip mavement.

In view ol the comention on behall ol the Respondent

, and o ranove any doubts, the recording was replayed on 27.
: 02-2012. The word “yehan™ was nudible Dbut vest were
inaudible. Even though the lip movement indicates muttering of
some words, it was ot possible ta conelude or inler that the
word spoken were “Yehao o ko le'nu hein, na koi dena ham™,
: It may be noticed w this stage, even il the above words - as -
J clatmed by the Respondent are not found to be audible here,
© these Dave been said by the Respondent clsewhere after
175000 and before 180037 wice. Therefore, whether the

words were said here also or netis not of imuch conséquenee,

: o, Sulject o the above whservations, o consensug emerged on
whntt ity the netial version as audible from the footape. Atier
kg verreenong i the iranseript, the sine was alse read

; . N . ) .
’ a0 o ihe panties by the nndersigoed. Registry was directed to

——

prepare wanseript of Hnal version moad make availahle capics

the parrties, which is Mok Y0

Summary of Frunseript

For fucility ol rederence, the conversation Betseen i
Restoment and e Repoiers {lreceinter catled i reposier
baiiders, as per the finalized mmseripl is being summarized, -
Fhe repovier ¢ builders approached the Respondent af his home,

After introducing themselves us builders ram Ghaeziabad they
infurmed the Respondent of their proposal o earry out

construction in his area and the dilficuliics faced by them in

SRR} '
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Mindavali.  Respondent assured  that there wounld be no
difficulty from his side but they have w0 ook afler the others
and police. There was discussion regarding difficuliics from
the s mﬂ:lhc Special  Task  Foree for  unanthorizod
construction,  On heing informed that the Councitlor m
fundavali Jad  guscanieed  no wouble  from MO, the
Respondent stated Orat the said Councillor must have taken

meney othervise why should he give assurnee? e Karther

staled that sinee he wits not going ta ke any thing, he woubl

nal be giving any goarantee. Fowever, he assured to give
whatever help was possible, without any guarantee sinee there
was no “lena-dena” there. The discussion continued regarding
the wmount paid w0 Mandavali councillor, the respective
lacation aned comparison between (hem nd e conumereial
rides, detiils of the plots, the vwners and the pice. When
Respondent inforns thae conncilors and MOD peopde ke
mones i in Mandavali, the reparter S builders stte that at Jeast
there was no head ache as napedy would come 1o 5He o creie
trenble, Respondent apain states that b woold haip and they
may test do the work, Reporter " Buidders seent on @ say ihat
they would enter the teangachion only when he approved
Respondent then stares that ie was not discouraging them and
there was no difficulty from his side and that i somebody gains
ivodoes pot aftect s health,  Ar (his stage reporter £ huilder
avked Respondent to tell the amannt so that they eould hudger
it. Respondent replies thut only when the Councillor hag w ke
toney that be can tell the budge! it when he does not have o
tshe (maonev) how can he tefl the budget but his blessing would
remain with them. Respondent also assures that if they e into
ditticulty, he would help by telling the concerned persanz, The
repurter £ builder then express their apprebension thas since the
project was an the mnin road polive would came, Respondeiu
tells them that the police daes not fisten w0 the Councillos and

they will have 1o independently hadle bt when the MOD

o
v
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people vame, e would see. The Respondent goes on woan in
depdy diseussion on the mumber of Dals, type of consiructon,
dettls of dovestment, roads, locations,  sizes,  permissible
neights, parking requiremepis, oumber o) Joars, cost of
cenrtrpetion snd comdition of the house, e suggests D 17 the
cetedivion of the honse 15 not good, it ean be bandled with MG
ab the inital stape by obtaming o “dangerous™ cortiticare and
permission for maintenwnce, e fhen asked the eeporter ¢
builders that i they weee making 100% peofit then what s
the problem in tackbing the M) and ac this rate fnany case
within tve six months they woald earn 15-37-18 fakh rupees
oo, Again there 18 a discussion about the position i
Munirka Village, his estimation of the project not being worth
muove than Rs. 2 crores, malpractices of the d'cn}ul's. the
methodelogy of construction ete. The Respondent advites the
reporter / builders 1 keep on finishing e construction oor
wiee pud that if they et e “dangerous”™ buildisg certilivaie
ot the MCID. there would be no problem. He also (ells tham
that tivst they should try to raise two lintefs and the third ane
can b followed thercalier,

Fram the forepoing, what would he scen s Ot the
Councitfer while maintaining the position of not wking any
meney and heing unwilling to give any goarantee, 1nkes keen
interest 10 the praject ef illegal constroction and goes abont
sugyesting wavs and means such s having the building
declied as Jangerous and 1o obtain certificate to that clieet o
raise wonstruction, He further suggests that they should raise o
Noor, give il finishing and proceed to the other one amd once
thev raise (wo foors, the third one can be casily raised within

the averall heights,

A question which arouses the curinsity is i the
Conneitler wae aol fo take any gratilication or cansideration tor

Bimeel” then whiore was the regasion for him 1o ke this
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niusual nterest and discuss ar fengilt and advise parsons
Iiitherio upknown to limy oo cost benelil ratio, reasonablencss
or utherwise of their acquisition, manner of construction wnd
the strutagem L i'cviousl_\' carry out unautharized construction
theough the  mechanism of procuring  dabgerons  buitding

certiticate,

Complotion of Mlepdings

9,

Pleadings were also compleied. Copy of the Press Report
appswing bt “Nav Bharay Fimes” dmed 741222001 ix annesed
berctoras Anatexuresl, Copy of the Order dased #-12-201 1

amesed beraw as Apsexure-1L Cope of Reply daed 1o-02

ST ropether wily the Netive ssued W the 1V 18 Droadeas

e

Erdo Dy the Counsel of Shre Afit Singh 1egas, az afea
seapattsg thereolare annesed heredn Annexure-01 (Coally ). The
Reapondear and his Counsel as sl we the sSARivos Coree il
Cenmsed T TV IS Broedeast fade, sl sobasined gt the matier
0o proceeded with oi the basts of the transcripl o) the ovigmal
footage as finalized  after viewing rod o Qather evidence
needs o he Jed by them or the Respondent. the said statensem
was il By ghe respondent’s Counsel on the Basic of
instructions by the respondent. [he transeript of conversmion s
Matlized and aprecd 10 between afl partivs L.e Mark GF s

anpexed ereto ag Amnexure-l v,

Submissions of the Respondent

Counsel for the Respondent muade submiissions on 27-02.2012,
2R-02-2017 and 12-03-201 2. My, Makhija. Amicus Curiac. also
wade his submissions on 09-02-2012 and 16-03-2012, whan the
matter was Tixed for (9" Mareh, 2012 ond there wpon atier

hunring both the Comsels, the matter was reserved Tor Orders,
At this siage, it may be noticed that the objection taken in the
seply regarding complete unedited version in relation 1o the

notice oot being received and there being gaps in the iranseript

i
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as aise the copy of the Mev Bharat Times report not being
supplied no fonger subsists and stands withdrawn, in view of
the consensus having been arrived on the correciness al the
transeript of conversution as finalized and  formal proot’
regarding the snme, being dispensed with. Respondent had ;,g]jﬁn . i
been given e oppoctunity to give his version ol the
conversationg, wherever they felt that the recorded version was
missogs, not elear o discernthle, s onby atier aking into
aceann? these that & conseasus wis arrived st The MNav Thaew
Fimes dssue wwas made available during the  course of
proceccings, Hence none of the preliminary oljections in this
segard reruain, The objection of the Respondent regarding there
being no dent or that the arder to issue notice, clubbing  all of

thent tegeiher, also does not sustain in view of the faet that now

Iyl f

with Js being considered are the individunl wanseript
conversating for the mirpose of determination of whether  an

aHegation was made our within the meaning ol See. 2 {h)(t) off
the Act or naot,

1O ix in the above hackground it the submissions of the Ld,

Counsel Tor the Respondent need 1o be considered,
1
Vo Counsel for the Respondent, Mr. Anish Dayad,

subenits that the reporerbuilders had approached the neticee
twice before bul were oot rightly denied any avdivnee by the
Respondent. [n the additional reply filed by the Respondent, it
was claimed that having not being suceessful wr getting an
audicnee warlier, they vsed the reference of anather senior
resident, who had ance hcld‘thc post of the President of the
Digtrict Unit of the 1P pariv. The proposed site being
considered by the alleged reportersbuilder befonged to former
District President,  whn was one ol the wosowners, The
Hespondent thereliore entertained them now. The other reason
given for entertnining the reporter/dbuilder was that beeause the

o Respondent had 10 attend o funeral oy deceased villager i




" ' _ didd nest have any other work at that thime, he feisurely continuad

! with the conversaton . The aspect of relerenee may he claritiod, .
Luring the proceedings it was enguired from the Respondent as ,
i whether the reggrier/builder had claimed that they had been '
referred 1o by (f farmer HIP President, the Respondent

anawered it in the negative, It was uniy'during their discussion

that he feamnt that one of the co-owners of the plot was @ former

istrict Unit President and did not have any diveat reference.

Me. Anish Dayal, submitted that there was no vinlation af the N i

nortms of eonduet and integrity by the Respondent, Despite the P [

reposter! builder  repeatedly  requesting the  Councillor 10
’ : indicate what would be required so that they could budget it, his
categorieal response has beeo-“Mujhe ne kueh leoa hein, aa
denn hein®, Ans hos been reiterated al another plice when b
tels them, “What budget he could give them when he was not
o ke o give anvthing", Thus. (e Cuouncillor in clear,
cibegorivad termys had spurncd and cefused the offer of money or
cansidention, M Pyl sebmitted tun the Councithor being: 4
peblic tipure has to be diplamaiic and coureous white dealing
with members of the pablic, He was, theeefore, heing polite, .
diplomatic and ambivadent, I was usual for politiciany 1o hokd
onr be axsurance of heing helpful in Juliee or of helping as

mueh as they i without any commimment,

@ 12 Reparding the fong conversation in wihich e has been
inquisitive and collecting informntion. e submitied it for
comeone in public life it was necessary to be aware and
koowledgeable  about  the hnppcnings' in the society and
surcounding and he was onfy gaining informustion with repard o
various practices adopted. There was no bewrayal or violalion of
any norm or integrity by him. When o public person like the
Respondent is accosted by a person who proposes (o build in
Bis constitueney and wants to seck his help, the Respondent

f witho cecking  any  geatification  for himeell” or firm
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somesibnem ol e help carcied on with the comvarsation

which, farer alio, involvad acknowdedpgement and sceepting,

cacruption in e MCLY svstem. Desides the Respondent himself

was in property business and he went on with (he cenversation

o secount ol Bis interest since he wanted o gathvr _
imtormavan,  Mr. Dayal submiged that enndour ought mft ’

he substitured for complicity,  Mre Daval also submited

regurding Jiscussion of illepal construction that it was a hard
ceabits that a Councillar on acvowt of pohtical reasons and (o
wuep e constituents on his right side hardly ever questions any
anauthorized consiruction going on and 1t 2 only when a
conpslning isorecerved hal iy mben ep for Torwarding o the

Commissionet,

Al Daval nest subsnitted that assuming that this Fontm fnuls

.

that the Councillor had endlessly  carricd  on with  {he
Cocnnversation regarding unavthorized construction and gone inte
detrilx ol evatuating the cost and pralit of the contentor ad
same atoworsh wonld beoan act of jndiseretion, 1t cannot he
azsigned ultevior motives and teeated as o breach of integeity
and wond condiet, especintly, in the dight ot the Respondent
cleacly declaring that there was no bargnining  here in hig
constitneney and hie had nowthing o take or give and he would

Tt ke any guarantee,

P Dyl sulvmitted that though the definition of integrity and

conduct under Sce 20 (1Y of the At was Taivly sade, but in

‘ _ thix case, there was no demand off illegat geatilication or
consideration, He submntiod thar this was eeally o case where o
Conneillor s entertaining reporters: masquerading as builders,
whto have vome with the reference ol a farmer District it
President und explaining the vivious modes ot construetion in
the wea. Even with regaed to the discussion an dangerous
buiiding or repair or maintenance he was only telling the

butlder freporter of one of the modes adopted for carrving out




the congtruction, while enquiring what wis the condition of the
Buifding. Me, Daval alsy submitted that a3 a Councillor he had
only legislalive functions and all exceutive powers with regard
to sistetion of l:*Wing or supervision or demelition ol huilding

ete, vested with the Commissioner and his officers,

wivir, Daval sibmivted thal o Municipal Councillor has severi

-

¢ompulsions enanating from his duty twwards the constinients
wherehy he ends npentertaining such reguests, Hoveever,
wilesy dhey are accompanied by oany demand o direat
mvolvement there is no violation of norms of miegrity and
conduet, These were renlly in the nature of hearing out o pany
or gi\'in:g them various options available. Given the current
standards, he sawd this ought nod be regarded us falling within

e meaning ol “allegition™ under See. 2 (M) (1) of the Act Ths

wax specially o since there wis not yet iy Code of Conduct

framed 10 guide the Councillors in performanve of i
private/uiblic daties and activities involving inrer pday vath the
sodicte. Ve, Dival sutunitted that at best thix coold De s aer ot

indisceetion for which an advisory coukd be issued.

10Ny, Dayal next submitted that without pwejudice. the aileped

misconduct attribured to the Respondent was a direct result af

I

inducement given and persistent inducement which drew s
votoure aud favour rom entrapment. Me [asal sulmmiched e
four clemenis onder which o defence ol entrzpment can i
made sut; firstly, viakwon of a statute as @ resaln of sobmpment,
en it is not o be regarded as a viokating Tihe second s
entrapment as s resuli ol crentive antivity dasipned Loe a
partivodoe resall to invite ancoftence, Thirdly, the entrapsnn
would be only legitimaie in the hands of law enforcing agenuy
andd 1hose not interested in commercial gains walike the present
hroadeaster, Tie said the most impartant factor s ahsence .m'
predisposition o commit w offenee bebig Tound The same

ara e argad inrebutiad o charge for entrapinent.

|
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C A conjuinl peadimg of the above in e showes thud
despaie perststent ¢t i behady of the reportorbuoilider

incducy e Respondent, be kept on <aving “there wax no dena

w fena™.

P70l Conpteel alan placed relicnce on the judgment of Hi\'ici'n,:)

Beneh of the Delii Thigh Court, 2608 VA Crl. DDHC 93, i
“Court on ity Own Motion Vig St & QOrs™. He referred to
Paras 384, 385 & 3Bn. Me submitied (hat 1the position which
enterpes [rom the guidelines laid down in the suid judgment is
that a sting opeeation even by State authoritics would be wrong
if iU involves committing of un offence so that they can prove
that a person committed an offence. For a legitimate tap police
or ihe investigatiog agencies sre to be involved and a trup bas to
he organized. A Tegitimate ity should be orgenized with due
penmission, 1 on the other hand, the investigating ageneies o
medin sppraaches a person, who is only expecied or suspected
of taking bribe and templ bim or induce him then such a wap
would be an illegitimate trap not sutharised by Inw,
Mr, Daval also laid considerable emphasis on the observalion
ol the Supreme Court of Tndia in RAMANUJAM SINGH V/S
SEAY OF BHIAR, AIR 1956 50 643, where a distinetion
Petween a person who is mentionally going o comnnt @ crivn
ar offeage and a person who has po intendion o do so nn wag
tempted or induced has been recognized. He placed reliance on
the tollowing observations:-
She very best ol men have sunnents of
weaknesses and templation. and even the worse
thines when they repent of an evil thought and are
ivern an inner strangidy to set Satan behind them
Haewhinins that she above aheemvations should be kepr in
wied while deating with what according to him was ot best an

inchisgreiing,




Retarence wits alse made by the Counsel in Support ol
s plea for enteapunent on 1) Keith Tacobsun Vs, Uinied Sates,
OIS 840 19921 Supreme Court ol the Linited States of
Awerica (i) Sherman v, Uniled Staces, 356 1.8, 369 (1958)
Supreme Coort !ﬂlh{.‘ United States of Ameriea (i) Sorrell,
Llanted Stares, 287 US 435 (1032 Supreme Court o the Lnited
States ol Ameriei.

e urged thae when there were ne giidelines had dovn
fer the conduct of the Councillors, this forum ought i ke 2
bnient vicw on such indiseretion, especially, when thes are
sesompanied with eateporical decliations of nes wanting anv

erptiticntion,

Evaluation and wpprecintion of pleas and submissions :-

19.

Regarding the plea of eatrapiment, os naticed carlier, the entire
wenor of the conversation and viewing of the video shows 1hat
the Respondent wax fully in control of the conversation. 1t was

hardly a situation where he was being induced fnto saying

anvthing., He himself claims that hie eejecied alt wfieey of

gratification. Mence, he was nast being antmpped or induced.
Soggestions made by

unatithorized constructiions eic, emanate rom bins and not from

e reporter/builders. Hence, the ingrediems for the plea of

enteapment are ceally not selisfivd,

Reference was aiso he made 1o the decision of the High
Court of Delhi in - Aniraddha Bahal Vs, State reponied on 172
(20 Pelhi Law Times 268 wherehy the PR regisierad
agaitst the sting operators utder section 12 aml 13 ol ahe
Prevention of Coarmpiion Act was quashed. The court hela iha
i the gaid vase FHUOwas registered afler one vear with the sting

opeeiters heing arraigned  as prime accused. T coun

“obseevesd thar the imention af the sting operatar was bopa Hde

and wha haed acted as whistie blavwers by airing o the tapes on

him  regarding varioos methads of

m‘;

ey

R T




L oandl]
L

S

AN e

o |

IV channels and then by deposing” tuthfully before (w
Committees of Puwrliament. Chargiog of such people with
atierwe undey Prevention of Corruption A would wimown to-
trnvesly of justice and shall discourage peaple from perforining
their duties enjoined upon them by law of the country. 'I"I'\};!:
court feld that the dutics preserthed by e Constitution ml'lndi; .
for citizens of thix coumry do permit ¢itizens o aet an apeni
Provaglcirs 0 Bring: ont and expose and uprost corruprion, I
i starcd that u}c Special beave Petition against the High Cout .
was also dismissed,

Reference iy invited to the judgniem of the Supreme

Court in RK. ANAND V/S REGISTRAR. DR FHGH .

COLRT. 2009 8 SCC 106 1.0 the appen] againgt ‘l.hc‘im'igemcm

ot Dethi High Court in Court on its own mation Vs, State and

others (supra). The Supreme Court while dealing with stings

and Lelecast of sting programmes  observed in Para-179 agx

v
i
N
1
i

unde -

"'l..onking. at the inatter froin a slightly different angle we
ask the simple question, what would have been in greater
public interest: to allow the altempi to subomm u witness,
with the object 1o underming a criminal trial, lie quietly
behind vetl of scereey or to Belng o the mischief in full
pubiic gaze? To our mind, the answer is” obvious. The

he NDTY war dndeed o darger pubhic

sty teleeist by

wnerest and i served wit imporimt public catse.”

Tl instam case, the abov sting operalion also seroed
A opeldbe enveg exposamg e nexos betsween hoildmg mafia :m_.:J
the O Padbers, weho Lo from containing and discournping thy
HTEAN

meracy of unantherized constraciinn in the metragelis,

breeding and supporting @ for corrup! ancd improper tolives.

] . e
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200 The subnissions made by Respondent were ulso refued by the
Amicus Curtae, who fisstly brought out that there was o
specific  armangement  or  referonee under which  the
reportersbuifder were meeting, Jt was merely a coineidence thi
the bieuse to JRich relerence was made  during the deraited
discassion, a former 339 District President happenud 1o b e

ol fhe co-onwners,

Mo Makhije subinits hal in s case e public
Finctiomary did not confine himsel{ to what may be refevred te
ds the drawing roam conversation in recugnizing corruption in
the case of unauthorized constructions on the part of the palice,

% engingering depactnent o MCD ws alse Councillors of
adioining arens, While it is correcr that the Councillor bus
repeated twice or tirice that there was “no give and take and he
did not want anything for himsel”, reading ol the whole
banseripl, he submits feaves o nagging  fecling that the
Respondent was shuply ving to size them up. He submiued
that while not asking money for himsell, it may not be o correat
repregeatation of what actunlly tanspired. [t is por unusaal for
Couneilior or officers of the Corporation 1o maintain (he
postiire of nat demanding or taking gratification. the sanwe He
senflected by their minioos or junior @it However, this

reinauns i the realm ol o passibility only in the absence of oy

@ eoideney.
. 1 Aceonhig o Mr, Makhija there was o Diveach ol nonns ol
conduct wnd integrily evidenead by varions olierances of the
Respondent. T awas not a vase where the Councitlor was being, .
amhivalent o the conversation wis proveeding on aceount of
inquisitiveness.  There ix merit in the submission of Mr.
Makhija, Viewing ol the video lootage and perusl of the
wanseript while on ane hand brings out the assertions ol itw
Kespondent of not wanting or givisg ortaking any meoey, ve,

there are munber of his wtterances  wiich militate against his

L
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public duty as o Corperptor, T woald start isv naticiog that in
s envire conversaiion and the transeript, ias the Responden
Counvilior who iy i control. While though net asking tor
money for himself, there is an assurance of heip w subvert the
svstem 1o is pot i dispate that e construction wag fo be-
carred out withowt sanction of plans, et Councilfor sieg’
Ohdert bl se kel dikkat pahie hein®™, Respondent has gone mn
of Bea s uy sugeeaing that when they are constructing one
Jeoe they should do the fimshing and when dhes construet v
Qoors the thied Poor e e done, Wikile he et help
pprsatecing o asauring, e wounkhd gy omosac whai can be done,
e advive being seadered "Pahile sauda kavlo £y taika
nikatega™, followed by enquiry, “makan ki halat kaisi hein”. Ay
this stage, be suggests a possible :nechanism by fivst getring
the building dectared as dangerous, while the reporteribuilder
tedls T that this would he a ease of re-constructian as people
were staying there alicady. Flandling of MO is in the congext
of petting the building declared as dangerous and carrying out
the building setivity, Further the enquiry whether the house at
present was double storey and whether it was proposed Lo make
it four storey ele., discussion and suggestion af building tour
Hoors within 15 mirs and then clearly tetling them that for
getting permission for maintenance hey will have 1o pay tor
that in the context of 0% profits heing made by them. are all
supgestions af subverting the system. ‘The public duty of the
Couneillor is to net against unauthovized construclion and not 10,

moerally suppost it or give and suggest Various meens o carry

oul eanl vonstructions,

=

Jhere 15 also no menit in the plea that a Councillor does not

have power ta grang, npprove or ¢lear approval for constructions
and hay ooly legisltgve powers, therefore, hay nothing o do
with construction, This cannor he an answer tooa charge of
poiseomduct, a5 the fegitimate exercise of power is not intended

fo come within Sce 2 (b (i) 10 is misuse o abuse of power
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consideration for himsel!” by saying * mujhay ne kuch
fenu hat na dena bai. fn Lt on repented entreaties to tell
the Bndgel required Tor this purpose, he responded by
sinying that what he could ell when he has no demand.

(i} While maintaining  the  posture,  the  Respondent L :

Councitlov went into a detailed discussion and inquiry h . l

into the details of the projeet of the Reporter Builder

including the invesuuent required, rewns, profiabiline

wd out goings,  knowing  all the while that the

censirciion was going (o be without a sanctioned phus,

Respomdent Coupcaler slee told theny ded with the

ensiring eleciions there wis Dound G Lo striciness s

there would be demands from the Pobiee and MO

Councillor also discassed the extent of money currenty

boing peid o e engineering salT ol MCD. Councitior

ate. 1t adjoiniog arcas, while telling themy that Police
watld have 1o be sertled independently, He atan held iy
the assurance of Leip. Notanly this, the Councitler went

10 the extent of sugpesting obtaining certification a< i

daeeroes buifding for raising unnuthorized construction,
oy of the methods.

(e The apove conduct though apparestly nol having o
direct financiai involvement of the Councitlor milinses
ngninst the public duty of a Councillor, which is to zct
against  any  proposed,  ongoing  or  completed

unantharized constractiog,

{
(iv)  The Respondent himselC on 15032012, swaled ihat after

decp introspeetion he realized that he should not five

} antered into delniled discussion with reporters, posing as

builders who wanted 1o rise unauthorized construetion,
While My, Vokas waintained that he had rejected all

offers of gratification, he says that he regrets Ius

iliseussion with the reporteribuilder and would be carelul

by fature,
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Please find ericlosed copy of vidar of the i:ompei.ent Auuhorn.y,';

wma SR

Hon'le LE. V’\/emo; in terms of 12(2) of Delh Lokayukta and Upalokayulds
Act, 1995, w.r.t report dated 27/08/2012 of the rion'ble Lokayukd.i in Compitain:
No. C-1150/Lok/2011 in the matter of Suo moto cognizance of - 5 Repor
Titled “"Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein Macha Hadlb..onp” whict:
appeared in the issue of'o Nav Bharat Timas daled 271272017 i respec: o
Conduct of Sh., Subhash Jain, Ex-Municipal Counclilin,. Res) sndent, ifui-

Y . RELNN St {
mnrormation.

Encls: As above ' S ,)

A ‘_.,)\ &
{12 Imini Singitze
sodell, Becretary Lo L Govoernaes
£oPpll Secretary (AR)
“ 2. Dy. Svru.tary (Admn.) O/o the Lokayukin
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Wher:as the Lokeiyui(ta had submitted a 1eport dated 27/08/2012 under
Seclion 12(2) of the Dethi Lokayukta and Upalokayukia Act, 1995 in the matici of Suw '
moio cognizance of a Mr:ss Report Titled "Sting Operation Ke Raad Parshadon Men
Macha Hacdikamp” which had appeared in the issue of Nav Bhavat Times dated

711242011, i respect of the conduct of, iier-alia, Sh. Subhash Jain, Cou_,rjgillor. _

The Lokayukta recommended adiv.inistering a ‘censure’ to the Respondent
Councillor for his misconduct. In the interest of naturil fistice, 1 had afford_ed Sh.
Subhash Jain, ex-Councillor an apportunity of personal hearing to make submissions,

if any before laking a final view in the malter,

Sh. Subhash Jain, ex-Councillor in the personal hearing has submitted that he
hac never misused his official position for any personat gains and had never been
involved in any act of omission or commission involving moral turpitude. The sting
operation was a trap to implicate him in a false case. As a public figure, he has to
deat with various kinds of people and it is not always possible to evict a person even\'-'
if the subject of discussion is not approved by him. At the time of argumenits béfOre

the Hon'ble Lokayukta, he expressed regret for being part of such a conversation,

) After careful perusal of the transcript, the records of the case %.md submissions
- made by Sh. Subhash Jain, I find that sting operation has already brought disgrace to
the Respondent Councillor and he was not given the ticket for contasting the
municipal alections. Regrel has also -been expressed for being part of such
conversation during the argdments before Lokayukta. [, therefere, hold that issue of

‘Censure’ is not called for in this case.

A copy of the order be served ta all concerned,

(?\.;)./&---‘{A--&---"M--*‘L-tﬁk..._

{Teiendra Khanna)
LL. Governor
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Please find enclosed copy of order of the Competent Authority/
Hon'ble Lt. Governor, in terms of 12(2) of Delhi Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act
1995, w.r.t repm dated 29/06/2012 of the Hon'ble Lokayukta in Complaint No! C-
1116/Lok/2011 in the matter of Suo moto cognizance of Press Report Titled “Sting

Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein Macha Hadkamp” which appeared in the issue
of Nav Bharat Times dated 7/12/2011 in respect of Conduct of Smt. Anita Koli, Ex-
Municipal Councillor, Respondent, for information.

Encis: As above : | '
(ot
~ \

(Padmini Singla)

Addl, Secretary to Lt. Governor

2. Dy. Secretary (Admn.) O/0 the Lokayukta,
U.O.No. 25(6)/12-RN/287/ ’6&1("[ : - Dated: @

| 1. Ppl. Secretary (AR)
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' E.N0.25(6)/12-RN/287/ ' Dated: 1] L
ORDBER .
Whe;eas, the Lokayukta had submilled a report da(e(! 29/0G/2012 for ‘ﬂb
i consideration of LHe Coxﬁetent Authority inn terms of Seclion 12(2) of the Delhi
Lokayukla and Upalokayukta Act, 1945 in the maller of Su0 molo cognizance of 2

Press Report Titled Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein Macha Hadkamp” which
had appeared in t:he' issue of Nav Bharal Times dated 7/12/2011L, i reupect uf
conduct of, inter-alla, Smt. Anita Koli, (Ex-)Councilior.

Wheréas, the Lokayukta in para 14 of the above mentionad Repoit: had
observed that “The conduct of the Respondent Councillor as evidentéd fioin the
transcript of convérsation marked ‘E-I' clearly amounts to violalion of norms of

Integrity and good‘;conduct, abuse of her position as Counciltor to obtain gain for
i . herself being actuated by improper motives and lack of falthlessness in terms of
i I Section 2{b)(i)r/w Sec 7 of the Delht Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act, 1995", And
l therefore, a ‘Censu:re' be issued to the Respondent Councillor for her misconduct as
i | foundabove.  , |
| Wh’:ereas, in the Interest of natural justice | had afforded Mrs, Anita
% Kol, ex-Counclllorian.- opportunity of personal hearing on 22/10/2012 to make
} submissions if any, ?ln the matter, hefore taking a final view in the matter,

Wher{aas, Smt. Anita Koli in the personal heating has orally submitted

B i that she is an 1nnofcent person and has done nothing wrong and that she had never
' % abused or misused[ her position to obtain any kind of gratification for herself or for
: any other person. iShe further submitted the transcript itself holds out the facl that
g : she had never sopght any gratification/money she had never violated narms of
] conduct expected of f;er and further that she never entertained any requests from
E ' anybody for facshtatmg unauthorized constructions and the sling operation was

carried oul with malande intention lo defame her and rin her career. 5he bas
qubmltted that her lhusband is a bullder-cum-financier and in fact it was he who had
‘ lalked to the reporlers who conducted the sting operation.

. After icareful perusal of the transcript, the records of the case and
) submission made b:y smt. Anita Koli 1 find that she had spoken very little during the
entire episode and;onno occasion had the Respondent Councillor sought any iflegal

gratification for hérself or anybody else. in view of this it is held that issue of

! ‘Censure’ is not callied for in this case,

| v A cop@; of the order be served Lo all concerned.

o i S At
b L (Tejendra Khanna)

! ' 1L Governor

.'--ﬂ?"' . . .
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Please find enclosed copy of order (n; wt.he Compelent Authority/
Hon'bDle Lt. Governor, in terms of 12(2) of Delhi Lokayukta and Upalckayukta Act,
1995, w.r.t report dated 29/06/2012 of tha Hon'ble Lokayukta in Complaint No. C-
1149/Lok/2011 in thldatter of Suo moto cognizancs of Press Report Titled “Stmg
Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Memn Macha Hadkamp” which appeared in the issue
of Nav Bharat Times dated 7/12/2011 in respect of Conduct of Smt. Sateshwar]

Joshi, Ex-Municipal Councillor, Respondent, for informalion,

Encls; As above -

L{f" ‘,m ‘“.
(Padmini Singla)
Addl, Secretary to Lt Governor
1. Ppl. Secretary (AR)
«2. Dy. Secretary (Admn.) O/o the Lokayukta
U.O.No. 25(6)/12-RN/286/ [/ - .| Dated™u), .




W

¢t

QNIRRT arst fan
Azl Bl sqaayy
LIEUTENANT GOVERNON 1A HIWAS
LDELHI P N 1005
1
: F.N0.25 (6)/12-1M/ 206/ Pntedis L€ {0 Lol

Whereas, the Lokayulita has submsitted o caport dated 2970672002 under q L

Section 17(2} of the Deti Lokayuldta nnd tpalokayalia Act, 19295 i o matiar of Sun
motg copnizance of FPrass Repory Hied “Stinge Opeeaipo e el faneadon kein
i Machn Hadikamp™ which appenrpd in U Nav Bhiarat Times dated 2200726101, i

raspoct of conducl of Sl Sateshwar loshi, () Caoneillor, T conaidetation of the

Competent Autlion ity

Whereas the Lokayokls recommenshod thim o “Ceospe’ o fsoed 1o the

fespondant Councillor as the conduct ol 1the Councillie, as eeidenced hom the
1 -
admitbod transceipt, amounta o viclation of nooms af intepsity s ahoe ufider
: .

| positian as Councillor to obiain gain for hersell,

; Whereas, in the interest of naunal justice, 1 afforled the Respondent

Gouncillor a persenal haaring Lo inhlie submissions if any in the matter, helore Laking
)

1
a (inal view. The Respondent, in the personal hearing, submitted that she is a simple
person and she never abused or imisused her position o ohtaln any kind of favour for

herself ar for any otlier person. Haid she heen indulging in wronpful activities stated/

(nferred in the sting uperation, she would have possessed assers disproportionate o
her legitiniate Income, which is not the case. Allegations have heen smale against her
s0 as ta defame her and ruin her career.

After perusal of the transcript, | {ind that at no gceasion, she l[md asled for’
any gratificatlon, .The sting 6peratlon has already brought public disgrace 10 the
Councillor, Therefore, after careful consideration of the report and ail aspects of the

case, | held that the issue of "Censure’ is not called far In this case.

Capy of the order be served to all concernaed,

ur .
‘\),-)f<_-’{'\- A AL A L B

{Tejendri Khana)
Lieulenant Governor
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Please find enclosed copy of order of the Competent Authority/

Hon'ble Lt. Governor, in terms of 12(2) of Delhi Lokayukta and Upalokayukta
Act, 1995, lﬂvt report dated 10/07/2012 of the Hon'ble Lokayukta in Complaint
No. C-1147/Lok/2011 in the matter of Suo moto cognizance of Press Report
Titled "Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein Macha Hadkamp” which
appeared in the issue of Nav Bharat Times dated 7/12/20'11 in respect of
Conduct of Smt. Manju Gupta, Ex-Municipal Councillor, Respondent, for

1 LA

information.

Encis: As above

e
(Padmini Singla
Add!, Secretary to Lt. Governor
1. Ppl. Secretary (AR}
"Dy. Secretary (Admn.) O/o the Lokayukta
U.ONo. 5(B)/12-RN/30%/ 441 4 Dated: 271, .




&%

IR TR i fong
Rz faumfi-n o aoyy
LIEUTENAMT GOVERMOM HAT NIWAS
DFLHI et DET M- 110054
S F. No25(0) N0 1 Dated” P0p 42 20 A%
LRDIER

Whereas. {ite Lokayukia had sulmiitted o report dated IO/O ” 012 under Section
12(2) of lhe Delhi Lokayuk(a and Upalokayukis Act, 1995 i lhc wavler of suo molo
‘cognizanée of a Press Report Titled “Sting Operation Ke Baad }al Imdlm Mein Macha
tHadkamyi" which had appeared in the issue of Nav Bluwat Inncc dated 71272011, in
respeet of the conduct 60 infer-afia, Smi. Manju Cupta, Coun ittog~ .

The Lokayukia recommended administering a ‘Consire’ tor St Manju Gupla,
Councillor. 1o the hterest of pataeal justice,  had aftorded Rm{ an“ (:upt.l X

Councitldr an opporiimity of persomml Tearig 1 nake s
hefore l.ikm;: a final view by the mabler

Smt, Manju Gupa, ex-touacillor in the personai heading hes ,cnhmiucd that she
is 4 inpoeent person and bas duen Gdeele apped io e vasee Shed being the arven
councilfor, just heard the gricvimees of s person who clabned fo wish o construct some
houses. She further submitted that she Tud et in conver e watly the reposter in
question only twice. Fhere hid Treen pe denvmd Tor mons s TR HFHY Ter Tinsbaid in
‘the entire conversation and the tams. ipr isel [ was proot o s facs.

"\ Af'fc'l careful prnsal of the lr:m::t:ripl. Hie tecoedhs of the cose pad sudynizsions
made by Sint. Manju Gupta, 3t ihat she bad spoben very Hile during the entire
apisotle and &t no oceasion had the esponde nI—T ancttor menght aid el gratifieiion
iy hcnclrm anybody clse. From the nanseripl o appesrs that she wag not even pressnt

: during must of (he recovding, .1, therafore. hiald Bt isswe oF *Clenmin s nol salled fn; it
thiscasc. '

o A copy of the mder he served to s comoeeenged,

I
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{ Vejendea Khinona )
L. (Goveruo:
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Please find enclosed copy of order of the Competent Authority/
Hor'ble Lt. Governor, In terms of 12(2) of Delhi Lokayukta and Upalokayukta
Act, 1995, w.r.t report dated 03/08/2012 of the Hon'ble Lokayukta in Complaint
No. C-1145/Lok/2011 in the matter of Suc moto cognizence of Press Report
Titled “Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein Macha Hadkamp” which
sppeared In the Issue of Nav Bharat Times dated 7/12/2011 In respect bf o
Conduct of Smt, Beena Thakurla, Ex-Munlcipal Councllor, Respondent, for

information.

Encls: As above
z a

(Padmini Singla)
Addl. Secretary to Lt. Governor

1. Ppl. Secretary (AR}
w—2. Dy, Secretary (Admn.) O/o the Lokayukta .
L.Q.No. 25(8)/12-RN/336/3 5719 Dated: § -7 - 2ov\
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The Lokayukta had submitted a report dated 3/8//2012 under Section 12(2)
of the Deihi Lokayukta and Upalokgyukta Act, 1995 in the matter of suo mote
cognizance of a Press Report Titled “Sting Operation Ke Brad Parshadon Mein

‘Macha Hadkamp" which had appeared in the issue of Nav Bharat Times q;:ggd .

71212011, in respect of the conduct of, infer-alia, Smi. Beena Thakuria,

Councillor.

The Lokayukta recomimended administering a ‘Censure’ 1o Smt. Beena
Thakuria, Councillor, i the interest of natural fustiw, | had afforded Smt, Beena "
Thakuria, ex-Councitlor an opportunity of personal hearing to make submissions

if any, in the matler, before tzking a final view in the atter,

Simt. Beena Thakurla, ex~-Couaciltor ju the personal hearing hns submitted
that she had been elected ns Countillor for the first time because of her social
work in the area. Therefore, many people used w come to her with their
grievances and she used to help them to the extent possible within given legal and
administrative framework. The rc;;ortcrs in the sting operation have falsely

irapped her because of her sitnplicity & innocence.

AfRter careful perusal of the lranscript, the records of the case and
submissions made by Smt. Beena Thakuria, ] find that sting operation hﬁs already
served its intended purpose and has L{ought disgrace to the respondent Councillor,
She é’ns not been given a ticket for contesting Municipal Elections. |, 1he1jefor§,

hold that issue of *Censure’ is not called for in this case.
A copy of the order be served {o all concerncd,

+

'('I'ejcndra Khanng) :
Lt Goverunor

1
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ANNEXORE -p-
197

¥

3
v Ch
EL et

Hon'ble Lt Governor, in forms of 12(2) ol Debluw Lokavokin and Upatedkay ,
1

Act, 1995, w.rt repart dated 25052012 s 1he Hombile Lokayabin in Gy

No, C-1146/80k/2011 in the mailer of Suy sl cognusani: of - ers R

Titled “Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mewn Macha Hadkimp™ v, on

appeared in the issue of Nav Bharat Twves dated 7122011 n respe o

Conducl of Smit. Jaishree Panwar, Ex-Municipal Counciltor, Respondent. i

information.

Encls: Az above

1. Ppl. Secretary (AR)
2. Oy Secretary (Admn.} O/o the Lokayukia

ST
f‘ f} o .". - .
L ;f,’ticﬁ';ﬂ S '
{Padmini & -~m
Addl Seamiary to Lt Gow e

U.O.No. 25(6)/12-RN/231/ 10 673

Daled: = 2 1
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Whereas the Lokayukty, National Copital Territory of Qofhi has submitted
separt dated 250 May, 2012 afwer conducting an enquiry ufs 7 of the Nielhi Lokayakla &
Uipakayukta Att, 1995, hereinafter refeered o as the "Act’, in respueet ol eotidiet af Sins
Wighree Pamepr, Ex, Municipal Councillor in the matfor of soosnwsto cogronanes of The

Press Repart tivled “Sting Qperniion Ke Bawd Pavsivednsg Mein Hadbanee appearig in Now

Bharat Times of 7% December, 2011, and -
] - ,
: g
2 Whereas, the Lokayukta in Pava 15 & 16 of his report has held the conduet of the

Respondent Councillor as cearly amounting to violating the norms of integrity an.
pood canduct, abuse of position to obtain gain for bersell, being achuied in discharge o
hee Tactions by improper motives and pesenal interest aned tack of faitlifithoess i
termis ol chasses [0, (1) (1)L and () ol zubesevtion () of et S oof ihe Act ol
recvamended issue of a “censare o e Counallor far e imisecdiet 36 sonnd in the
equiry and also ordered that the evidence emerping in the tranacnpt of the recerded
vonversatien of e meeting of the Couneifior amd the Beoporters cohe et st el

thee Sty Uinepadivn, shiophd be ferwvarded vt appoasne oe i metey e

conssderation an b achethien feopsintes soofienee woeey he Vo venteenad b nanuple s

Act andd vearrants any furthoy achion, nimw

t Lonteer coneluily peramng the Lokpsuktn’s Fogeat apa lanactgsl o the St
tiperanen amd hearing, w Respondent Comeotior wothe catier v 8 Tl 2900 1
thas e is no porord of ang demand Toe ilepal poatihcaion e e Reoneantops
Cownclor despite repeated ellors of the repoters oot s ber snoarh dieing

the Ming Up(:i':)tirm.

4, in respoanse 1o a query as to whal would be e intal amewnt for sl tng
construction on the demolished sites, the Respoadent Counciilor iad gaid that it seoudd
dependd wpon the site and whether the ares Junioe Eapineer would peomit sieh werk

being started, To another scarching query of the reparters as nowhat woukl De he

share i (e intal demand, shic said that = 7 1ot U sweork stavt fivst, 30 1he swork starlz

;2,'!._‘ .
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Please find enciosed copy of Order of the Competent Authority/
Hon'ble Lt. Go or, in terms of 12{2) of Delhi Lokayukta and Upalokayukta
Act, 1995, wurt i:eport cdated 22/03/2012 of the Hon'ble Lokayuikta in Complaint
No, C-1148/Lok/2011 in the matter of Suo mole cognizance of Press Repori
Titled "Sting Cperation Ke Baad [Parshadon Mein Macha Hadkamp” which
appeared i the issue of Nav Bharat Times dated 7/12/2011 in respect of
Conduct of Sh. Ravi Prakash Sharma, Ex-Municipal Councii% Respondent, for

information,

Encls: As ahove

K q{f;}; p
{Padmini Smgh)
Addl Secretary to Lt. Governar
Ppl. Secretary (AR)

I

2. Dy, Secretary (Admn .} O/o the Lokayukia, & G iy sen b aw

U.O.No. 25(6)/12-RN/T48/ 1 1 Dated: 12 7-12.
o o
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Wherea:s, the!Ldokayukla has submittea a report dated 22/03/2012 in terms
of Section 12(2) of the Delhi Lokayukia and Upalokayukia Act, 1895 vis-a-vin Compla_ainf
No C-1148/Lok/ 20111783 in the matter of Suo moto eognizance of a Press Repbrt
il "Sting Qperation Ke Baad Parshadon Mem Macha Facdkamp” which appearad in

thir issne of Nav Bharat Times cdalec 7/12/20114. oy . .-
Whereas, the Lokayukla in para 23 of the above Report has
recommended  {ssue of a Reprim'and to the Respondent Gouncillor e, Sh. Ravi

Prakash Sharma, for his misconduct as per the finding in the Report.

| have considered the report of the Lokayukta and have also heard the
Respondent Councillor on 22/06/2012. | have concluded that the issue of such a

Reprimand at present would be inconsequential, since the Respondent is no longer a
Municipal Councillor. '

Copy of the order be served to all concerned.

(Tejendra Khanna)
- -Lt. Governor

R WP
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Please find enclosed copy of order of the Competent P
Authority/ Hon'blﬂt. Governor, w.r.l report dated 26/03/2012 of the Hon'ble

Lokayukta in Complaint No. C-1144/Lok/2011/1764 in the matter of Suo moto

cognizance of a Press Report Titled “Sting Operation Ke Baad Parshadon Mein

R

= 1ol

Macha Hadkamp” which appeared in the issue of Nav Bharat Times dated
711212011 for information.,

Encls: As above
. f. 'J‘(Tu.uuc--f-cil'f". -
(Vishwendra)
: Private Secretary (o Lt. CGovernor
1. Ppl. Secretary (AR) ‘
2. Dy. Secretary (Admn.) O/o the Lokayukta

U.O.No. 25(6)/12-RN/141/ 4 ¢ Dated: 28 - ( .c. :

LT
T -
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F.NO.25(6)/12-RW41/ ‘-‘ Yy Gu Dated: 2_0-|» ;'

ORDER

Whereas, the Lokayukia has submilied a report dated 28/233/2012
in terms of Section 12(2) of the Delhi Lokayukla and Upalokayukia Act, 10995
the matter of Complaint No.C-1144/Lok/ 201 1/1764 in the nidtter of Suo Mo
cognizance of a Press Reportl Titled "Sling Operation IKe Baad Parshadan Mein
Macha Hadkamp” which appeared in the issue of Nav Bharat Times'f;!a‘..rar...l
7/12/2011.

Whereas, the Lokayukia in para 26 of the above Report has
recommended to issue an advisory to the Respondent Councillor i.e. ShAji
Singh Tokas, cautioning him not to entertain any requests for unauthoriz:
constructions or .hold oul assurances ol any heip, minding him of s puiiic

duty to stop and act against unauthorized construction.

I have considered the report of the Lokayukta and have concluded
that the issue of such an advisory at present would be inconseqguential, sinue
the defaulting Public Official is no longer a Municipal Councilior.

L

Copy of the order be served to all concerned.

7/
M&Mam. e

(Tejendra Khanna)
Lt. Governoe

e 7Y
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Substance of Cuses under Sul Seetion 7 of Section 12 of the Delhi Lokavukta

& Upatolayulitn Act, 1995 in the mader of three ingquiries eandueted into the

conduet of Sh, Subhnsh#'u,jx. Councillor, Ms., Anitt Koli, Ex, Couneillor

i s, Suteshwari Joshi, Ex. Cauncillor.

(1) Lokavakta conducted 1 comprehensive inquiry into the conduct of the above

Councillors. He found tlidt they had carried out o were party (0 negotiations

\.:
cation  for  facilitating  uneutharized  construction. ‘ i

3%

demanding  iflegal graufi

Councillors were found 1o'be in breach of norms of conduct and integrity also.

—-—s
~J

(2)  The inquiry was conducied giving full opportunity to the Councillor to have
their say and lead evidence. During the inquiry proceedings the original recordings
ol the sting operations were Maved in the presence of the Respondent, Amicus
Curine and the Counsel for I:.I.BN -7 Channel on whose behest the Sting Operation
way done. An ageeed u‘anscl;'ipt emerged of the conversations with inputs from alt
parties.  Lolkayukio after-hearing the b:u'tics, recommended ‘Censure’ 10 be
sciministered 1w the three Councillors, .F‘urther that the evidence colfected and the
record be sent for [urther investigation to the appropriate Investigative Authority,
as in his opinjon, their acts constituted oflences under Section 7, 8 & Y of the

Prevention of Corruption Act. Reasoned  Reports were submitted - o the Lt

(iovernor.

¥}

- {3} he L Governor did not aceept the recommendations [or censure and action

against the three Councillors on grounds ranging from the Councillors censing to
hold oftice. huving already suffered public disgrace or having spoken very litfe or

not hirving demanded illegal gratification having alrcady expressed regret et
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()  The Lt. Governor afier the receipt of the report purporting 10 act as per
principtes of natural justice, issued notice o the Councillors. held furtber
proceedings. heard Coungil ;:sz :—1.n£1 recorded their submissions. The Lokayukia
verily believes that after a comprehensive inguiry in which the Public
Functionaries e heard wnd given the fullest opportunity, the Stawnte neither
pravides for nor contemplales further hearing by the Competent Authority. The
Competent Authority has a mandaie to take o decision “on the basis uf the rcpmi,.-
of the Lokayukta (ogevherwith al the material supplicd™. The grant of further
hearing i3 not in accordance with the provisions of the Delhi Lokayukia and
Upalokavukta Avt, 1993, This position is lortificd by a writien opinion trom the

former Attoriney Crenerid for Todin,

(5)  Lokuvukia not being  swistied  with  the non acceplance  of  the
recommendntions has  submitted “Special Report™ in these cuses  seeking,
reconsideration ol the decision of the Competent Autharity, pointing oui the [cpal
position and excerpts from the recorded conversations which had possibly cscaped
the atteniion of the Competent Authority.

{6)  For fucility of reference, the reasons as revealed io the orders passed by the
Competent Authority for non acceptance of the recommendation and celevant
excerpts from the recordéd conversation based on which the reconunendation of

censure was made, are given in seriatim -

{7) () RE : lnquiry oagainst Sh. Subhash Jain order of Compelent

Aut'h‘(u'it_v dated 18.01.2013 :-

The Competent Authority obscrved that “the sting operation has already

brought disgrace 1o the Respondent Councillor and that he swas not given the ticket

fo contest the Municipal Elections again.” Besides, the Respondent Couneillor had
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also expressed regret for being part of such a conversation before the Lokayukta,
Henge, the Competent Authority held that the issue of *Censure” was uncalled for.
ity From the cxlrncz_ls‘u*‘_ﬁc'admirwd conversation of the Councillor with the
builder/reporter, quoted hereinafier, it would be seen that it was clear that the
proposed constraction was unauthorized. The reporters had asked e Councillor
whether they can work without a sanctioned plan as they did not \\"a!;l to waste
time in gelting it sanctioned. In reply, theCouncillor said that pverything.cox:lc!‘:gé“

managed; however, he suggested, the Junior Engincer and Assistant Engineer must

S,

e pad and taken into conﬁde;‘t’:.(.-..
(i) The wunseript shows that the Councitlor, of his own volition, expressty and
willingly agreed 1o help the reporters raise unauthorized cunslrucli'fml withou
sanction of plans by assuring personally 1o 1alk w the JE and the AE.

Prafessing innocence before e Competent Authoriy during the hearing he
cloimed that being a public person he has to deal with all linds of persons and i s
not possible lo"cvict them even if the conversation is not to his liking. This is
w.hnlly irrclevant, as can he seen trom the conversalion excerpes, Councillor was ¢
willing participant rather encduraging them to siart construction withow a sanciion

of plans., The said plea therefore, stands helied.

From the extracts of he adnitied ranseript of conversation af the Councillor
relerred 10 as Respondent with the 1).11ildcr.frcponcr. it would be seen that it was
clear that the proposed construction was unauthorized, The. reporters had-asked the
Rcspgndcnt whetlicr they can work-without a sanctioned plan as they did not want
10 waste time.in getting it sunclioned, In reply, the Respondent said that everything

could be managed: howewver, he suggested, the Junior Lngineer and Assistant

Engincer must be paid and taken inta conlidence.

The above is apparent from the following extracts of conversation:-
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“Reporter- Kya naksha agar na bamvaye kya kaam chal jayega?
Respondent- Sab kaam ho jara hai.

Reporters Hum fflegal karna chahie haii,

Reporier |- H‘t)\m log: matiab,

Reporter ~ Nakshe waskhe ke chakkar mein time badh juyega, aopka
efection nikal javegu toh dikkat by jayvegi, Withowt naksha banwa ke,
Reporter 2 ~ Fees denge waise htm log.
Reporter - fik derlr mahina aap maan ijive naksha pass karane mein.
SR ;
Reporler 2« Aur e tak fiwnn do el doal denge. Haaloki aisa nabi
hed foun wtna Ad, Jekin aap thoda sa who rakhenge 1oh gol dikkat nahi

hogi.
Respondent- AL-JE zo dena padego.
eporters JE ko Ateh f

Respondent- pyesia dena padega, okl JE e AL i wo L tul
wilt

Cgluonie rebie hain ot ko visiivdys e lana podege,
Respondent: Mair thode su asal mein gy el &0 SE AR ko nnghe
bolna padega, main unse khud katunga, finaudible sound) aap chalu

kare, jagah agme le (17

(ivy  Excerpts quoted balow clearly shows that itlegal gratification of Rs, § lacs
wos agreed for Councillor and the tentative amount for the JE was Re. 16
Facs, 1L was alse agreed that whatever amaunt the Councillor gets reduced
from R, 16 dacs of JE, he cm!ld keep the same. Reporter/Builder iliustrate
iL by saying that if the sum is reduced 1o Rs. 10 laes tram Rs, 16 facs then
the Councillor will get Rs. & + Rs. 6 facs, which is accepted by the
- Couneillor who says that Rs. § lacs is fixed in any case for him, The above
is ¢lear from the Tollowing extracts of conversation:-

CReporter: Mean, ixorcin xe foh chelive june kunr kora denge, weh aapko
e denge.
Reporter 20 Weh maan ke chel ralie hai dhai sehin.

e Respondent: Hain, yele toh aap., puarclt lokh jaive ho gaye,

s ———
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“

Reporier: Haan pewnel inkin aaphe e gaye.

Kespandent: fas se elayg,

Reporter: S

Respandent: Awr ggsmein fo main kam kara du.

Reporter I-l-'oh’ﬁ:kn.

Respondent; Muiu wolti kalv ralva b na, Jitna bhi main ke kara du.
Reporter: Aap paanch lokit mein kera dijiye haoki aupla kita buciia,

Respondent: Prancht Lakh toh nalii,.. Wol biti kicel.,

Reporier: 1§ karwa difive, 6,5, 1 ho gaype aapka.

Reporter: Hoan., blikul, ,

gt

Respondent: Wolt tolt main helona chalia hru, meattad) paaneh tole ain e

Reparter: Hean
Respondent: Nahi hoge toh puonch milenge.

Repuriee Pacnich maankor chalive. ™

This cannot by any token be yegarded as an 1nnocent conversation,
The transcript shows that the Respondent, of his own volition, expressty and
willingly agreed to help the reporters raise unauthorized construction by

pevsonally talking 10 the JE and the AL

Tt is respeetfully submiitted that simply because the Respondent has ecased 1o

he a Councillor, it does not imply that he has ceased to he part of public or

political life or has become a person of no consequence. Public fife, with ity
vicissitudes, makes it probable that Public Functionaries thay be an aspirant
for even higher positions. A- person who is denied a iicket today may be an

aspirant for higher positions: Simply because someone has ceased 1o hold

oflice is no ground to absolve him of any punishment or penalty.

(i) RFE : Inquiry agninst Ms. Anita Koli  erder of Competent

Authority dated 09.17.2012 :-

Rl . e v+ v aeearanens
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(i)  the Competent Authority in this case also gave a personal hearing and
recorded ber plea of being an innovent person who had done nothing wrong,
Councittor cluimed she hnﬂever abused or misused ‘hcr position o obtain any
gratilication for hersell or for uny other persun. She had neither sought any
gratification nor entertained request for unauthorized conslruction. She subiniited
that her husband being a business-cum-financer had talked (o the Reporter/Builder
who canducted the Sting Operation.  The Competent Authority observed Ut \he
Councillor had spokcﬁ very little during 1he entire gpisode and no occasion had she
sought any illegal gratification flor hersel.f' or anybody e¢lse.  Therelore, held

administering *Censure " uncalted for.

(i}  The above pleas clearly ignore that the eitire meedng was held between the

Reporters posing as Builders, with the Councillor and ber hushband being preseat.

She was presemt throughout and was willing party o the negotiations,  Her

husband was speaking [or her. The entire conversation had nothing to do with the

cnnstruction business of Councillor's husband. Thiy position is apparent fram the
fllowing excerpts -

“Reporter: To be firank, thurda sa ilegal constraction kiya hal. Ye mai
aapko pehte hi batadu. 1o baat clear kkarke chale. wye accha rehta hai,
Tolt aup hamari madad kaise kor sakii hai?

v

Anita: Jalse aap kahe *

At the repurters/ builders request for help in illegal construction, the

Councillor had responded smilingly in affirmative.

(i) The following excerpts from the transeript are also relevant :-

1Y "Reporter: Deldiive cetnally hamfoy ka budget howa hai, v budger
ke upar nali ja sakie, hare cheez ka budget hai,. tabhi peofit niklega.

Pata chale ham over budget ho gaye toh heemin banana se kaam
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karue ka koi faida nahi hoga ol puia chal juaye na ve certain amount
ke frad, JE ke haid, va inke bag,

Anita's Husband, Fo toh phiv hile fosge S F ko,

-

1y Husband: dlapia bya budget b, mnhe banado.

Reporter: dan (¢ Lakivmein saure lago lo aop saari zimmediri fe

Lifive, wsmein hi L6 ka bhi hal. capha cqpna ai auy 50 hai. "

3}~ Reporter: Matlab 10 Lakh se hamara badhna rahi chaliye.
Anita’s Husband: /lo jaega aapka favim.
Reporter: J.E phiv ye toh nalti kahega ki hamm lentil ka alog se lenge.
Anita’s Musband: JE se ham bawt kar lenge. [ F ko denge, jo denge

ustnese. Jo J.L ka bania hai we JE ko denge.”

(iv)  The above comntain an offer of money being made 1o the Councillor
There was no denial gither from the Counciflor o her husband, They never
refuged amount being offered by the Reporter/Builders, The Respondent
and her husband were interesied in taking money and getting the
waathorized construction done by paying parl of Hlegal gratification to JE.
‘There is no reference (o alleged construction business of husband, The 1otal
amount was fixed at Rs. | tacs with the Respondent's husband assuring that
their work would be done.
“Reporters Matlab 10 Lakh se hamara badhina nahi chaiuye,

Anita's Husband: Ho joega aapka kaam.”

(vi s idle 1o contend thal the subject under discussion was not illegal
construetion ol Reporters/Builders but some project ol her husband.
(vi) The breach ol integrity on the part of the Councillor is cvident from

the extract given below -

“Anita: Sina encroackment ke 1ok kuch nahi hota,
Reporter: Bitkul naki, bigadr itlega! ke toh kaam hi nahi chalna phir.

Anita’s Husband: 1hora bhot teh hojata hai, kitna kerega uadmi,”
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The fact that the Councillor spoke very litle and did not ask for any
illegal gratification for hersell or anybody does not mean that she did not
want any gratification tor getting the unauthorized construction done as is
apparenl fromt the mﬂ:ript, She spoke through her husband as far as

settling wnount of itlegal gratification is concerned,

(8) (i RE ¢ Inquiry against Ms. Sateshwari Joshi,  order of

Competent Authority dated 26.10.2012 -
(i1 The Competent Authority in this case also held further proceedings b}#
granting persanal hearing of the Councillor. The Councillor in the personal
hearing professed to be a simple person who has never ahused or misused
her position. Had she becn doing so, she clainmed she would have possessed
assets dispropattionate to her legitimate income, which was not the case.
The Sting Operation was to defume her and ruin her carger. The Competent
Aathority halds, on the perusal of the transeript, that at no oceasion she had
asked Yor any geatificavion. The Sting Operation had all-e;nci_\" brought public

disgrace 1 her, therefore, *Censure’ was not calfed for,

(i) While it is wue, that the Councillor did not soitially ask illegal
gratificution for herselll  However,, The transcript clearly luings out that
when 3, 5.00 laey were oflered she demanded higher anrount By making
sign of Rs, 3+2 by her hand and tingers thut {5 °7" 1o {et the Reporter/Builder
know the amount that should be puid su that the illegal consuuction work

e be done.

" The foltowing excerpts froms the wrnstript ave being produced which
belic the findings recorded by the Competent Authority, the Councillor
extols the reparter/builder o start thelr wark asswing that she would talk to
the JE Councillor is referred 10 by her name “Joghi’ in the conversation

transerint -
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“lashic Twn apna shurn kar io mai JE se boar kar fungt.

Reporwer: Hune pliv S rakt le aapke live

(toshi shuws 7 thyough her hand and two fingers)

Repovier: 7 faltl o kam kar Hiive, wapki wajult se milvane aave Ml
hhiai xahib, Aap fogo ku .

Onher: baat kare Hifive daebdr lfive.

Rueporter: dilivaave bhai salii ™

It weas seen fram the above that the Councillor was demanding Rs.

7.00 lacs instead of Ry, 3 lacs being offered, while reporter/builder implo:‘éﬂ

her to reduce the amount. She specifically sgreed to 1ake to the JE to get the

illegal construction-done, as-is apparent from the following excerpts i«

“Joshic Kal subah inai tumhe bata dungi, mai JE ke bhi bata dungi” phir

tumhe bata dungi... Tum shuru kar do kaam, mai JE se baar kar lasgi.”

(ii1) She also sought favours for a person cabled 'Chhotu’ by first
suggestiug that he could be associated” with the Reporter/Builder and then
saying that atleast construction material be bought from him. The entire
conversation as given in the transerip belies the position that she was an
innocent porson whe had never abused or misused her position . {1 shows a
peeson who is accustomed o getting iHegal gratification or unawborized

construction by the cuse with swehich she carried out the conversation.

(9 The issuanee of a *censure’ is recognized internationally as an aspect of the

right of the Ombudsman o censure an authority or public official, who has
commiited acts of misconduct or whose actions arc [ound to be erroncous or
'i:iu;mpenn The censure and its issuance and consequent publicity seeves a
useful puhlic purpose. Le. building up moral norms and values, a code of
conduct which helps others to [ollow suit and dissoades similarly placed in
public life from committing the same conduct, Besides, it also helps in

ushering in o self cleansing process and motivates Public (unctionarics to

e r——




21

10

excreise sell reseeaint before engaging in activities, which defile the inicgrity

ol the affice.
(10)  The Sting Opcrmi,_ﬂ'in these cases served an impartant public cause in
exposing the nexus between the building malie and “public functionaries’ who,
far from contatning and discouraging the menace ol unauthorized construction
in the melropolis, are breeding and supparting it for corrupi and improper
motives. 11is the duty of MCD Councillors and all public spirited citizens to .

g

cwrb the inercasing menace of legal construction rather than r:.ncov.u'laging the

people 10 breach or circumvent the law. Henee, these casces do not deserve any

leniency having regard to their conduct as revealed.

T L/;L igtwé\t\s.&‘/ Ry

Muanmohan Surin)
Lokayukta

Date: |SE Mareh, 2013
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AN NGXU RE-P-13

Substance ! s under Sub-section (7) of Section-:2 of The Delhi

Takayuktaand Upalokayulkta Act, 1995 -

In the matters of Ms, Manju Gupta angd Ms. Beena Thakuria, ex-

municipal Councillors 2 ’ l1

1. (n inquiry reports submitted in the Sting Operation cases of Ex-
Municipﬂbuncillors Ms. Manju Gupta and Ms. Beena Thakuria, Lokayukta -

held the allegations of supporting proposals of unauthorized constructions

for illegal gratification, being established against them, Further, breach and
violation of the norms of integrity and conduct was also found to be
established against them. Accordingly, it was recommended to His

Excellency, the Lt. Governor to administer a ‘censure’ to bo:E‘h the Councillors.

2. The Lt. Governor afforded opportunity of personal hearing to the
Councillors before taking a final view in the matter. Councillors professed
their innocence before the Lt. Governor and claimed to have been falsely
trapped. The Competent Authority in its order dated 24-12-2012, in the case
of Ms. Manju Gupta held that no demand for money had been made by her or
her husband in the entire conversation. Further the Councillor had spoken
very little. On no occasion, she had sought illegal gratification for herself or
anybody else. It was therefore, held that "Censure” was not called for, Not
being satisfied with tr:le above decision of the Competent Authority,
Lokayukta submitted Special Report dated 8/3/2013 in this case and dated
14% March, 2013, in the case of Ms., Beena Thakuria, where also the
Competent Authority held that "Censure” was not called for, The Competent
Authority observed that the sting operation had already served its intended
purpose and had brought disgrace to the Councillor, Further, she had not

been given a ticket for contesting Municipal Elections. Therefore, issue of

“Censure” was not called for.

3. The Counciilor Ms. Manju Gupta claims she was only hearing the
grievance of a person, who wished to construct some houses. This stands
fully belied by the transcripts which shows continued involvement and

participation directly as well as through her husband in the conversation or

negotiations.

It {s common knowledge that often concerned "Public Functionary”

does not himself or herself directly talk or participate in such negotiations.

L This is done by spouse or representatives. The only requirement is that a
" _ person representing the “Public Functionary” should be doing so with the

knowledge and consent of the Public Functionary.

_/'-.‘.' .
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4, it is considered necessary to quote some of the extrarts from the

agreed transcript which either not been noticed or brought to the attention

of the Competent Authority. 2 , g’

"Reporter: Sir se baat karni hai
Manju Gupta: Aap inhi se kar leejiye He is my husband.”

TH® above shows specific consent and authorization.

5. Conversation was commenced with the Councillors /husband and
continued with another person Inspector Sharma, who had brought the
reporter/builder and introduced them to the Councillor. Councillor's
participation is evident by her interjection, such as loca.*:éi;qn of a particular
house, i.e. “Pahariwala or no". After location is identified, she tells reporter
‘bataiyea (tell)'. During conversation Inspector Sharma points out that
reporter/builder wanted to meet and talk to the Councillor directly to which
Ms. Manju Gupta responds: “Nahi, main thora aise karungi jo yeh Arvind
he na aap kuch bhi kaho, Arvind se kaho". This shows she further wanted
to delegate the bargaining or settlement to another person named "Arvind".
Here it may be noted that when questioned by the Lokayukta as to who was
“Arvind”, she evasively replied that she did not recall knowing any "Arvind”
Similar denfal mode was adopted by her for Insp: Sharma which raises grave
doubts and suspicion. It negates her professed innocence and reflects on her
integrity and conduct. Not only this, Councillor held out a categorical
assurance to the reporter/builders, “Yahaan par koi dikkat nahi ayegi
(there will be no problem here). She further reiterates “"Nahi-Nahi, koi

dikkat nahi ayegi. Aap chinta inat keejiye, mein hunkoi dikkat nhi
aayegi”.

6. When the reporter/builder says that they have suffered in the past,
she says that “Aap...mein... kol dikkat nahi hogl... chinta mat karo...
mein aapko bata doongi bolna kya hein... theek hal mei unse baatkar

loong{”, i.e, holding out assurance of talking to the ].E.

7. Counciilor makes it clear that unauthorized constructions were under
discussion when she says “There will be no problem from MCD. However,
DDA and police will have to be tackled by you”. This is reiterated by
Councillor’s husband and Insp. Sharma that police will have to be tackled
separately by the reporter/builders. Thereafter the reporter/builders say
that they will settle with the police, and enquire how much would be the
money involved otherwise, Councillor's husband says, “whatever it is, will be

told by him (reference being to Insp. Sharma) “Jo bhi ho who yeh bata

‘@egggf.‘.ﬁl‘he reporter/builder then says that Inspector Sharma has quoted a
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very high amount, i.e. Rs. 3.60 Lac which is rather high. The following aspect

of conversation is relevant;

Reporter- 3 lakh. . 2' é

Husband of Manju Gupta-Haen
Insp. Sharma- Bata diya aapko”

T-d Insp. Sharma-Toh ab bata diya aapko kitna bata
diya ab kya baat...pehle baat huyi toh.maine aapko
bola bhi tha ki who baat karenge nahin. Apni baat
karenge hi nahin.Paise ki toh karte nahin
hein..woh mere pe dal dete hein. Toh jo karenge
main hi karta hoon.. Woh kuch karte hi nahi hein

final.” -

o
s )

8. In nutshell Inspector Sharma says that Councillor does not directly
demand it is he who settles, From the foregoing, it is clear that Councillor was
a willing party, her husband was carrying on the talk and negotiations, on her
behalf. There was another representative, insp. Sharma, who was the person,
who had brought the reporter/builders. Secondly, on a complete perusal of
the transcript, which is fairly long, it is clear that Ms. Manju Gupta, Councillor,
was a willing participant. She assured reporter/builders that there will be no
difficulty in the unauthorized construction and she would take care of the

MCD, Her husband and Insp. Sharma on her behalf had negotiated a sum of

Rs, 3.00 Lac which they were not willing to reduce.

9. The transcript of conversation leaves no doubt that this was a gross
act of misuse and abuse of power and position and depicts her clout over the

municipal staff. ~ There is not even a whisper or any claim by the

reporter/builders of the construction being pursuant to a sanctioned plan.

10.  Similarly, the plea that the area falls under DDA, where MCD may not
anything to do, further aggravates the position as it brings in an element of

‘deception’ by, projecting that the matter would fall under MCD’s jurisdiction

and of tackiing MCD, if it actually was under DDA,

11.  Finding by the Competent Authority, that Councillor did not speak
much or herself demand illegal gratification ignore the quoted extracts from
the transcript that the Councillor had herself asked the reporter to talk to
her husband who was negotiating on her behalf. Further the final
settlements at one stage was sought to be left by Councillor on her

representative ‘Arvind’. Even though, she specifically desired that everything

~ should be told to Arvind, She later retracted and even denied Rnowing

‘Arvind’, as In the case of Insp, Sharma who had brought and introduced her

ol
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to the reporters. Her husband and Inspt. Sharma settle the amount of illegal
gratification on her behalf. The assurances of there being ro problem and
handling JE and MCD are given by personally by the Councillor for

unauthorized construction.

Re: Smt. Beena Thakuria, Municipal Councillor

12, . Mﬂeena Thakuria, pleaded before the Competent Authority is that
she was a first time elected Councillor. Many people used to come to her with
their grievances. She used to help them to the extent possible within the
given legal and administrative framework. She claimed that she had been
falsely trapped because of her simplicity and innocence.  The Competent
Authority observed that sting operation had already setved its intended
purpose and had brought disgrace to _the Councillor. She had not been given

a ticket for contesting Municipal Elections. He therefore held that issue of

“Censure” was not called for in this case.

13.  Itis pertinent to notice that findings of allegation of demanding illegal

gratification for unauthorized constriction are not disputed.

14.  Some extracts from the transcript reflecting negotiations for iilegal

gratification, brazen manner/demand etc. are being produced.

“Beena : Agar aapko kaam mil raha hai toh woh batao
mufhay, kahan kahan aapko kaam mil rahe hain. Uskay
liye jaise hielp hogi main karungee. Theek hai na.”

“Beena : JE toh kher hamari sehmati key bina kuch
nahin kar sakta hain. Lekin ye hain ki matlab JE bhi
hamarey kehnay se chalega. Adhiktar toh JE ko itna
time nahi hota hein jitna (Beldar) ko time hota hain....
woh kutay ki tarah ghumta hai jaisay kutay ko haddi
nahi milti.”

Beena: Merl sehmati se aayaga JE to .......... Mal uskay
saath discuss kar lungee mal bethkarke, Dekho uska
bhi moonh band karna padayga aur uska bhi moonh
band karna padayga. Lay bhaiya yeh hal aur chutti

karo.”
“Reporter: Fir bhi...JE se kam rakhe aapka ya Jyada?

Beena : Ha ha sambhalun mai, bhugtu mai...saari
cheezo ko cooperate karke chalun mai..aur mufhe hi
tum fatte laga rahe ho.” (I manage, 1 suffer and
coordinate everything and you want to take me for a

ride),

The aforesaid extracts completely negate the claim of simplicity and
her innocence. In fact, her action was so brazen that she vehemently

. protested to ensure that she does not get less than JE. She also made it clear
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that elections were not fought without money and she need money, Here is a

worldly-wise Councillor, who is negotiating with impunity illegal

gratification for herself.

15.  High level of sincerity, integrity and honesty by rising above personal -

interests, favouritism, nepotism and by avoiding any pecuniary or other
benefits \ th are not due, are expected from Public Functionaries, jsuch as
Councillors, who have inter-action with-the members of the public. Public
functionary has to set an example of good governance, being the holder of
public trust. Here are the Councillors who not only support illegal activity but

also agree to take gratification in lieu of such support.

16.  Regarding the observations by the Competent Aut;};i_qfi.ty that hav;iné
suffered public disgrace and not having received party ticket, therefore, the
administration of 'Censure’ was uncalled for, it is respectfully submitted that
apart from violation of norms of integrity and conduct expected of 'Public
Functionary’, the record of transcripts in both the cases disclose offences
under Section 8 and 9 of The Prevention of Corruption Act, in as much as, the
Councillors assure to exercise personal influence over the }E for getting
unauthorized construction done. They agree to accept illegal gratification. It
is further submittedlthat the case would also fall under Section 13(d)(ii) of
The Prevention of Corruption Act, whereby a Public Servant or “Public
Functionary” by abusing his position “obtains for himself or for any other
person any valuable things or pecuniary advantage”. It is thus not necessary
for the Public Functionary to obtain any illegal gratification or advantage for
himself or herself. It would suffice if by abuse of position or illegal means,
advantage is obtained for any other person, say a contractor, Such conduct
would fall within the offence of "criminal misconduct” under Section 13{d)

{ii) of The Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988.

Processing of Report by the Competent Authority:

17. It is also submitted that the processing of the reports by the
Competent Authority has not been in accordance with law. The Delhi
Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act, 1995 does not provide for “further inquiry”
or hearing as has been done by the Competent Authority in the instant cases.
Lokayukta conducts a comprehensive inquiry wherein all the parties are
heard and given opportunity to have their say. The statute requires the
Competent Authority to examine the report and intimate the action proposed

to be taken as per the recomimendations within 90 days “on the basis of the

5 ‘-‘3‘;}':.) 0'- v
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report”. The Act does not contemplatz either a further enquiry or hearing to

be granted to the indicted person.

Without prejudice to the above contention if at all the Competent
Authority was to embark upon the course of hearing the indicted persons
then the Amicus Curiae, who acted as a friend of the Court, should also have
been gwel?dotlce to bring to the attention of His Excellency the relevant

facts; the incriminating parts of the conversation and salient aspects,

justifying the recommendation of censure.

18.  The issuance of a ‘Censure’ is recognized internationally as a aspect of
the right of the Ombudsman to censure an authority or public official, who
has committed acts of misconduct or whose actions have,.l;t)g'en found to;be'
erroneous or improper. The censure and its issuance Jand consequent
adv‘erse publicity serves a useful public purpose i.e to build up moral norms
and values, a Code of Conduct, which helps others to follow suit and
dissuades similarly placed people in public life from committing the same
misconduct. Besides, it also helps in ushering in a self cleansing process and

motivates Public Functionaries to exercise self restraint before engaging in

activities, which defile the integrity of the office.

19,  Moreover for maintaining probity in public life, it is essential that the
constituents are also made aware of the misconduct of their respective
representatives which is in consonance with their right to receive
information about the deeds of public representatives. Not fighting an
election does not mean retirement from politics or public life. Rather
experience has shown, such people coming back with vengeance. Large scale
of rampant corruption among public representatives tends to weaken the
polity and damage the supreme importance of law governing the society.

There is need for rejuvenation of value based society

20.  As noticed earlier, the purpose of ‘censure’ is to make clear that the

society denounces these types of misconduct and to deter other persons from

committing similar misconduct,

21, Itis therefore submitted that such course of brazen misconduct does
not deserve any lenfency or sympathy by observing that a denial of ticket in
the election and the disgrace faced served the purpose of “Sting Operation”,
s0 as to negate the recommendation of ‘Censure’. Such mis;conduct in fact
deserved that the constituents and electorate of the concerned ‘public
functioharies' are fully informed about their misconduct and indictment S0

that the elected representatives are chosen and elected from those who do

Mot hayg such degradation or depravation,

-y '
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‘:‘#‘ i
s, .y
o Page 7 of 7




-

A;Nékuﬁé—!’-f?a |
| 221

s 13
Subsmné‘i‘: of case under Sub Scetion 7 of Sceetion 12 of the Delbi

Loluvulita & Upalokayukin Act, 1995 (herein after relerred (v as

the Act)in the tter of inquiry condicted u/s 7 read with Section

2 () of the .f\.ct_ in respect of the conduet af Smt, ' Juishree

Pansvar, Ex-Muunicipal Councilloy and former NMavor of _Delhi

wherein a Special Report hag Deen sulunitted ufs Sulby Section 3 of

Section 12 of the Act to.His Excellengy. the Lt Governor, Delli .

(1) Aninquiry was conducted ws 7 read with Section 2 (b) of the
Acl into the conduct of Smit. Jaishree  Pamear, lEx-ML:I'nicipiﬁu:'
Councillor and former Mavor of Dethi. She was caught in a Sting
Operation, with two Reporters who approached her posing as Builders

far help in carrying out unauthorized construction.

(2)  TFull opportunity was given to the parties to have their say.
Recordings done during the Sting Operations were played and
objections thereto [rom the Respondent, were heard and decided 11l

an agreed Transcript of the entire conversation emerged.

(3)  Lokayukta found Respondent  willingly  agreed  with
Reporier/Builders o act as-a Gweilitator with the Jumor Engineer,
MCE Tor carrving ot mauthorized  construction u.pnn proanised
illegal gratification,  lLokayukta taking note ol the menage of the
wanthorized  construgion in the Metropolis of Delhi, with the
complicity of municipﬁl sl and involvement of ety fathers in it
held, tie canduct of the Councillor 1o be in breach of her public duty
to discourage and stop unauthorized construction, rather then to

encourage it.

(4)  Considering the exiracts of the admitted conversuiion of the
Respondent Councillor with the Reporter/Builders, the following

position clearly emerged :-

(i) The propused consiruction project of the Reporter/Builders

was for unauthorized construction without a sanctioned plan.

(ii}  Respondent Councitlor expressed the difficulties in carrying
ouwt unawhorized construction on account of the posting of a

strict  Executive Engineer. who was not allowing any
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unauthorized constructions in the arca and many demotlitions

had taken place.

(i1} RH n'ilding on demolished unauwthorized construction had

not comnmenced,

(iv)  Respondent Councitlor advises Reporter/13uilders 1o wait till
waork would start on the demolished sites before taking up

their new project for unawhorized construction,

(v)  Reporter/Builders want the Councillor to handle everydtiing
JE, afl municipal stalf, police cte. and want to know the
amaunt required therefar. Ajay Properties had quoted an
amount of Rs, 8.00 o 10.00 lacs and Reporter/Builders
wamted 0 know i that much would be required.  the
reporters then say that they have been told that Rs. 5.00 Lacs
would be her share Le of Respondent, to which she answers
in a manner so as to suggest that she does not seek much for

herselland she would see about it.

Further, that the builders were from her own native place Baraut,
UP a bonding and therefore, a kind of reassurance flows regarding
reasonableness of amount, Here, she emphasizes that let the work
start and her main objective is that unless the work starls and goes

on, what svas the poin: of talking?

(vi} Respondent Councillor only wants them to construct when
she is sure there would be no demolition laier. Clear

confirmation of construction being unuuthorized.

{vii) Respondent Councillor is more than eager and willing (o
facilitate the unnuthorized construction, through a willing
JEL due 1o the self professed closeness on account of both

belonging to Baraut i.e from LLP.

(5)  In the entire tronserips, Respondent does not decline the offer of
money, but does not want 1o commit to any amount and leaves it to bhe
settled. This is because of not knowing amount required for JE. It

indicates her confidence that once the construction begins the
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Reporter/Builders cannot defv her, Heace there was no need {or a
prior conmnilinent. Being in control over the vonsiruciion in the area
trough ()L Her clout 1s indicated by hey saving that (here was no

nead to talk w anvone else and they should jalk ondy 1o ner and thely

terests would be well protecied.

The above position is clearty borne out from the exuacts of

conversation being praduced for reference,

(6)  The wanscript of the conversation nceds to be read as a“whole,
The Competent Authority appears to have proceeded on the promise
thai query of amount required was in the context of cost of starting
construction on demolished sites rather than the amount ol illegal
gratification required to be paid to the JE, municipal staff, police and

the share of the Respondent Councillor, {or unauthorized construction.

7. The Competent Authority has observed “In response to a query
as to what would be the total amount required for starting construction
on the demolished sites, the Respondent Councillor said that it would
depend upon the site and whether the area Junior Engineer would
permit such work being sturted. To another searching query as to what
would be her share in the total demand, she said that ‘let the work
start first.  If the work siarts well and good. What is the point-in

tatking if the work does not siart.”

8. The [Fon'bte Lt Governor  further abserved that  the
“Respondent Councillor did nat ask for any personal gratification lor
any such work.  She had politely, cowreoustly and diplomatically
assured the reporters posing as builders o facilitale their work with
the arca Junior Engineer.” llowever, what appears to be over looked
is that the assurance being given by the Respondent was in respect of

unauthorized construction being facilitated through JE.

{9) It is clear from thz transcript that the Respondent Councillor
repeaicdly says ihat she would not fike a situation where after building
the consuruction gets demolished. Once she takes a responsibility, she
would leel very bad if it is later demolished. She also explains that
she has got rid of the lawyer problent i.e the difficulties being caused

where  lawyer was  lodging  complainls  against  unawthorized

¢ mbaa——
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construction and making it difficult to construct. She also recognizes
that at times some of JEs do ‘loot’. Hence, yeference is clearty 1o

unnulhorize#ﬁnslruction.

10, The reference w commencement of construction on demolished
sites in the conversation in the contexi of rvight timing for starting
wnnuthorized  construciion project and not the amount required.
Moreover, once the Hon'ble Lt Governor reaches the conclusion thit
she politely, courteously and diplomatically assured the reparers
posing as builders to fucilitate their work with the area .'l.ﬁimm'
Engineer. undoubtedly the work in question is carrving out of
unasitharized construction. The courteous and diplomat assurances or
facititating unauthorized construction itsetf amounts ta the breach of

norms of conduct and integrity expecied of a Public Functionary and

lack of Mithfuiness. .

(14) (i} To put the mater beyond any pale ol doubt some of the

extracts in vernacular, are being reproduced -

“"Reporier- Hunt log site shuru karna chal rahe the, Aapko kv
lagta hein, ki shuru ki juayen, ya nahin?

Councillor- Dekho abhi to mein hilkul mana karoongi, kvo ki ¢k
1ol Ex, Engineer aisa aagaya hein. Aur bhi yeh sari jagah rok
rahe hein. Nahi, palale dekho, mein mana nahi karti kyo ki ab
Jo building ot wel bhi nahi hogi stort. Agar whe siore hogi
tolt mein aapko kaly doongi. han bheiya ab aap bhi kare.
Reporier- (Referving to Ajay Propertics) 1¥oh 8- 10 Lac kua
kharchea bata rahe ihe. Hum roh dar gave. Hun ne kaha Bhai
koi fimmeder cadi ho tolt nse mila javen,

Cowneillor- He toh kei aisi clifsta ki baat sahin hein, Agar
matlah meve s¢ bucn karte rahue. deise hi kaam shuru hoga toh
hin kel denge aupko. Kisi ko keline ki huat karne ki jaroorar

nahi hein,

(if)  This shows the readiness and willingness of the Respondent
Councillor 1o faciliiate unauthorized consintetion by saying that they

should tatk only o her and they chould infarm them when the wark

begin,

Ha R LTS PRI
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“Bhat JI ka mghe pata nahin. Tab tak mein kaya batain, Agar
mnein kal ko moan loongi awr agar woh JL. depend kargea.. JE
hi iWhara apna iheek aagya, Ion kahenge tumara bana sakte

hein, toh mein haan kaloongi ™,

This shows her willingness to start and  arange  the
unauthorized constructivng again o speak and contact the concerned

JE at the opportune time. )

et

(12) The Campetent Authority observed thal “there is no recording
of any demuand for illegal gratification by the Councillor despite
reported efforts of the Reporter/Builders 1o put words in her mouth

during the Sting Operation.”

The above overlooks thal for offences to be made vut under
Section?, 8 & 9 ol the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988, is noi
reguired to be made u specific demand for itlegal gratification by the
accused. It s not the requirement af law that actual demand should be
made or actual consideration should pass. A mere promise to pay in
future for an act to be done would come within the ambit of the
offence.

(13) The reporter/builders are  offeriig 1o pay oamounts  for
facilitating unauthorzed construction. The exact amount 1o be paid
has not been seitled becavse of not knowing the umeunt required for
the JE and the kind of JE who would come, The Respondent
accordingly says that fet the work first began and she would then
decide about her share as they belong to the same proavinee and are

vlose to her,

The above, analysis makes out o clear case tor the
recommendation of the ‘Censure’ as also reference ol the evidence to
the "Appropriate Authority, for consideration and evaluation since
prima facie, ingredients of Section 7, 8 & 9 of the Prevention of

Corruption Act, 1988, appear 1o be substantiaily satisfied,

14. It may also be noted that the misconduct does not come to an
end with ceasing to be in office. The issuance of “censure” for the act

of misconduct serves uscful public purpose in building up moral




norms and values helping others to follow suit. Even the officacy of
censureship doés not recede by the Councillor ceasing lolbe in office,
Censure scrvcsﬁivin purpose; {irstly it makes the Councillor aware
that this type of conduet would not be countenanced, sccondly pulilic
may become aware of the c(;nducl ol their rcprescnlauivés. Ii 1s
possible i public fife that !{('.Spohdcm may be an aspirant tor highcf
positions, Mbroovcr, ooy view  the  processings o ihe
recommendation has not been in accordance with ithe prnvisinns. of the'
Act, in as much as the Competent Authority is required o take" %"
decision on e recommendation in terms of sub Scation 2 of Section
12 only “on the basis of the report™ submitted. There is no further
enquity or hearing contemplated under the Acl. The Report of the
Luknyul-;t:{ based on the enguitry report includes pleadings, evidende

recorded, legal submissions, analvsis and the reconimendations.

tn the fight of the forcgoing, o prayer has been made (o iis

Excellency, the LL Governor to reconsider and review the, order dated;

17" July, 2012 and accept the recommendations made in para 15 and
16 of the Repqrt dated 25.7.2012 and in casc he is of the view that the
order dated 17" July, 2012 does warrant any reconsideration then thic
Special Report with an explanatory note be laid before the Legislative |
Assembly in térms of section 12 of Delhi Lokayukia and

Upalakayukia Act, 1995,

Qua s
(.l!lj.hcc Mianmohan Sarin)

Lokayukta

l)ntc:qfﬁ August, 2012

Ll
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Substance of cases, under Sub-section 7 of Section 12 of the Delhi

Lokayukta and Upalokayukta Act, 1995, in the matter of Sh, Ajit

Singh Tokas and Sh. Ravi Prakash Sharma, Ex. Councillors.

I In two Inquiry reports, submitted in the sting,o‘pération cases of
Ex-Municipai Councillors Sh. Ajit Singh Tokas and“Sh. Ravi Prakash
Sharma, Delhi Lokayukta held the allegations to be established and

recommended a “Caution” (o be administered to the former and a

“Reprimand” to the latter.

2. In case of Ajit Singh Tokas, Lokayukta found that though there
was no demand for illegal gratification by or promise of payment of
consideration to the Councillor, he nevertheiess went into a detailed
discussion and evaluation of the proposed project and its profitability,
knowing that the construction was unauthorized and without &
sanctioned plan. He discussed, inter alia, strategy of getting a building
declared dangerous, having it demolished and raising new desired
construction, bribes being asked by Police etc. It was, therefore,
recommended to His Excellency, the Lt, Governor, that an "Advisory”
be issued, cautioning him not to entertain any request for unauthorized

construction or to hold out any assurance of help, reminding him of

his public duty to act against unauthorized construction.

3. fn the case of Ravi Prakash Sharma, the Councillor was found
to have offered to act as a lacilitator to carry out unauthorized
construction, promising to handle the JE. of the MCD. The
Councillor had assured a reasonable deal 1o the builders/reporters for
consideration to be agreed and paid later, knowing fully well that
constructing a building without sanctioned plan was in contravention

of the provisions of Delhi Municipal Corporation Act,

4, Detailed inquiries were held with full opportunity to the panies
to lead evidence and have their say. [nquiry reports give reasons for
the findings given and recommendations made. The inquiry reports
were sent to the Competent Authority for processing and further

action. L.okayukta maintains that the Competent Authority, under the

statute, is only required to take a decision “on the basis of the report”
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amphasis suppiied) and nothing more, 1.e. without any further inquiry or
* hearing by the Competent Authority, under Sub Sec.2 of Sec. (2 of

the Deihi Lokayukta & Upalokayukla Act, 1995.

5. However, the Competent Authority has been issuing notices to
the public functionaries, granting them hearing and calling for their
comments or the concerned Govermmment Department and then teking,
a decision on the recomimendations made. The above difference’ in
perspectives and interpretation of the provisions of the Act regarding
processing of reports and reconunendations would ultimately require

iudicial resolution und determination.

6. Bolh the recommendations of the Lokayukta were sent (o the

Competent Authority, in this case, the Hon'ble Li. Governor, for

consideration, The Hon'ble Li. Govemor did not express any
disogreement with the findings or conclusions reached in both the

above cases.

7. However, as regards the Advisory to be issued in the case of

Ajit Singh Tokas, the Competent Authority vbserved:-

“Issuing of such Advisory ar present would be inconsequential,
since the defaulting Public official is no longer a Municipal

Councillor.”

Similarly, in the case of Ravi Prakash. Sharma, the Competent
Authority observed:-

“Issuing of such reprimand at present would be

inconsequential since the respondent is no longer a Municipal

Councillor”

8. In both the above cases, the Competent Authority has not acted
on the recommendations only because the Public Functionaries have

ceased 1o hold office. This raises a seminal issue of importance,

nemely, “Is a public functionary not to be proceeded against despite
being found guilty of misconduct because he has ceased to hoid
Office?”. The decision of the Hon'ble Lt. Govemor in the above cases

appears 0 be answering the above issue in affirmative.

e i i e m e et e e e

______ g
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9.  Administering caution, censure  or  reprimand by the

Ombudsman, to an authority or public functionary who has committed

———

misconduct or whose actions have been found to be improper or
erroneous, is internationally recognized. Caution, cepsure or

reprimand and its issuance and consequent publicity, serves a usetul

"-'vu" ” j

public purpose of building up core moral values and norms to be
followed. It also dissuades others similarly placed in public life from

committing misconduct.

10.  Besides, non-acceptance of recominendations in such cases,
simpty on the ground that the public functionary guilty of misconduct

has ceased to hold office, may give a misleading impression regarding

B R T

the will and commitment to bring in good governance and probity 1o

eradicate corruption.

L S

It also helps in ushering in a self-cleansing process and
, motivates public functionaries to exercise self-restraint before
4: indulging in activities which defile the integrity of their office. The
efficacy of censure, reprimand or caution does not recede by the
incumbent ceasing to be in office. It serves a twin purposc: Firstly, it
‘ sends a message that this conduct would not be tolerated or
: countenanced in future, Secondly, the constituents are niade aware of
the conduct and activities of their representatives, thereby fulfilling
their legitimate aspiration of the “right to know" about the actions and

conduct of those holding positions of public trust, Ceasing to be a

Councillor does not imply renunciation of public or paolitical life or
that the person is now of no consequence. The political and public

life, with its vicissitudes, has often shown such persons to have
aspirations for even higher positions.

11, The non- administering of caution/censure on the sole ground
af the person ceasing to hold office also militates against statutory
provision, namely, seciion 8(b) of the Act which provides that an
inquiry for misconduct can be initiated up to 5 years from the date of

M,g the nlleged misconduct. As a fortiori, when action for misconduct can
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nge inquired up to § years from the date of misconduct, the related
inquiry and punishment may even come much later. In the instant

case, inquirics were completed in 3-4months and the misconduct is

fresh in public memory.

2. The sting operations served a public purpose in exposing the
nexus between Building malia, City [athers, Municipal officials and
Police in the menace of unauthorized cunstructioﬁ'.‘%ccep'tancc of the
recommendations  would cantribute to the abave exposure and

containing the menace of unauthorized construction.

13, Moreaver, Ravi Prakash Sharma had been earlier proceeded
against for misconduct for sealing and focking, denying ingress and
egress 1o the office of the Municipal Deputy Commissioner in case
No, C-304/1ok/2010.  In that case, Councillor had expressed his
regrel for his actions and given assurance for future conduct, The
present case has shown that the carlier regret had not had the desired

effect. Consequently, it would nat be in public interest if he is let off

without even a “reprimand”.

14, The acceptance of recommendations would only contribute to

good governance, probity and ushering in corruption free public life.

15.  The Lokayukta has submitted the Special Reports under section
12(6) of the Act, praying to the Hon'ble Lt, Govemnor to reconsider
his decision of not acting on the recommendations, failing which the
Special Reports with explanatory memorandum have been requested

to be laid belore the Legislative Assembly, as per the statute.

Q)J-%O'lﬂ-ﬂv LA
Dated: /T July, 2012 (J%ice Manniohan Sarin)

s L7
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF DELHI AT NEW DELH|
EXTRA ORDINARY CIVIL WRIT JURISDICTION

CIVIL MISC. APPLICATION NO OF 2013
IN
WRIT PETITION (CIVIL) NO. OF 2013

IN THE MAT.ROF:

Common Cause ...Petitioner
VERSUS

Shri Subhash Jain, Ex- Councillor & Ors. ...Respondents

A5

APPLICATION UNDER SECTION 151 OF THE CIVIL PROCEDURE
FOR STAY/EX-PARTE INTERIM ORDER DIRECTING STAY OF
THE ORDERS PASSED BY THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR AND -
A DIRECTION THAT THE RECORD OF THE CASES BE SENT TO
THE POLICE COMMISSIONER, DELH! FOR IMMEDIATE

FURTHER ACTION

TO

THE HON'BLE CHIEF JUSTICE

AND HIS COMPANION JUSTICES OF THE

HON'BLE HIGH COURT OF DELHI AT NEW DELHI
The humble petition of the Petitioner above named

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH:

1. The Petitioners have filed the accompanying Writ Petition under
Article 226 of the Constitution of India seeking setting aside of
the orders passed by the Lieutenant Governor being the
Competent Authority under the Delhi Lokayukta -and
Upalokayukta Act. in the cases of Shri'éubhash Jain (dated
January 18, 2013), Ms. Anita Koli (dated November 9, 2012),
Ms. Shateshwari Joshi (dated October 26, 2012), Ms. Manju
Gupta(dated December 24, 2012), Ms. Beena Thakuria(March

4, 2013 ) Ms. Jaishree Panwar (dated July 18, 2012) Shri Ajit
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Singh Tokas (dated June 26, 2012) & Shri Ravi Prakash
Sharma (dated July 11, 2012)rejecting the recommendations
contained in the reports of the Hon'ble Lokayukta dated of Shri
Subhash ﬁa‘in (dated August 27, 2012), Ms. Anita Koli (dated
June 29, 2012), Ms. Shateshwari Joshi (dated June 29, 2012),
Ms, Manju Gupta (dated July 10, 2012), Ms. Beena Thakuria
(August 3, 2013 ) Ms. Jaishree Panwar (dated May 25, 2012)
Shri Ajit Singh Tokas (dated March 26, 2012Y"& Shri Ravi
Prakash Sharma (dated March 22, 2012)are illegal, null, void

and ultra vires the Constitution of India

The Petitioners submit that on account of the impugned orders
passed by the Lieutenant Governor, the direction issued by the
Hon’b;‘e Lokayukta directing that the entire record pertaining to
the cases of the Respondent Municipal Councillors be
forwarded to the Commissioner of Police for consideration,

evaluation and further action in accordance with law has been

set aside.

The Petitioners submit that the finding of the Hon'ble Lokayukta
is that prima facie offences under infer alia the Prevention of
Corruption Act are made out in the cases of the Respondent
Municipal Councillors. However, on account of the impugned
order passed by the Hon'ble Lokayukta, ﬁo further action has
been taken in this case. It is submitted that on account of the

same, prejudice is being occasioned to the public at large as
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the process of investigation of the crimes committed is being

unconscionably delayed,

It is submitted that no prejudice will be occasioned to the
Respondgr:f Municipal Councillors by staying of the order of the
Lieutenant Governor to the extent it prevents forwarding of the
record of the cases to the Commissioner of Police, New Delhi
and the same will in fact enable speedy .:'Sc‘;nclusion iof
investigation by the competent authorities into the criminal

misconduct of the Respondent Municipal Councillors.

The Petitioners submit that they have a strong prima facie case.

The present application is made bonafide and in the interest of

"justice.

PRAYER

It is, therefore, most respectfully prayed that this Hon'ble Court may
be pleased to:

a)

T ey

pass an ex-parte ad-interim/interim order staying the direction
in the impugned orders to the extent they, restrain forwarding of
the entire record pertaining to the cases of the Respondent

Municipal Councillors to the Commissioner of Police for
consideration, evaluation and further action in accordance with

lfaw.

direct that pending a final order in the instant case the entire

‘record entire record pertaining to the cases of the Respondent

Municipal Councillors to the Commissioner of Police for
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consideration, evaluation and further action in accordance with

law

C)  pass any such other further order/orders which -this Hon'ble

Court maﬂeem fit and proper in the interest of justice.

FILED BY

(MAHESH AGARWAL)/ (RISHI AGRAWALA)/
(NEEHA NAGPAL)
ADVOCATE FOR THE PETITIONER.
AGARWAL LAW ASSOCIATES

19, BABAR ROAD, BENGALI MARKET,

NEW DELH! ~110001

PH.: 011 -42200000

NEW DELH!
FILED ON:
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF DELHI AT NEW DELHI
PUBLIC INTEREST LITIGATION

C.M. APPLN. NO OF 2013
IN

WRIT PETITION (CIVIL) NO. OF 2013

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMMON CAUSE
THROUGH ITS DIRECTOR,
MR. KAMAL KANT JASWAL

5, INSTITUTIONAL AREA, NELSON MANDELA MARG

VASANT KUNJ, NEW DELH! 110070 .. THE PETITIONER

VERSUS

1. SHRI SUBHASH JAIN, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR
2. MS. ANITA KOLI, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR

3. SMT. SHATESHWAR! JOSHI EX- MUNICIPAL
© COUNCILLOR

4. SMT. MANJU GUPTA, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR
5. SMT. BEENA THAKURIA, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR
8. SMT. JAISHREE PANWAR, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR

7. SHRI RAVI PRAKASH SHARMA, EX- MUNICIPAL
COUNCILLOR

S RPRTIT SINGH TOKAS, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR
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9 LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR OF DELH!I
10. GNCTD THROUGH ITS CHIEF SECRETARY
11. NORTH DELHI MUNICIPAL CORPORATION
12. SO!ﬁH DELHI MUNICI'PAL CORPORATION

13. EAST DELH! MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

14, POLICE COMMISSIONER, DELHI

THE RESPONDENTS
AFFIDAVIT

|, Kamal Kant Jaswal, aged about 68 years, S/o Sh. Ambica Prasad
Jasvaul, resident of B-34, Ground Floor, Geetanjali Enclave, New

Dethi, do hereby take oath and state as under:-

1y That | am the Authorized Representative of the Petitioner
organization in the above case and well conversant with the facts of
the case and am duly authorized to depose to this affidavit.

2) | have read and understood the contents of the accompanying
_application for ad-interim / interim relief and the same are true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief, no part thereof is

false and nothing material has been concealed therefrom. ‘ J
s
DEPONENT
Kamat Kant Jaswsd
VERIFICATION: Direcans, 23 OM CAUSE
3, Instutivaay rel,

Nelson Mandels Rowd, Vasulit RURM
l, the above named Deponent, do hereby venfy ntied!ithd

. contents of the above affidavit are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief, no part of it is false and nothing material has

been concealed therefrom.

Verified at New Delhi on this day of ; 2013. .
"U‘"’-{J N - A ’/./

DEPONENT
. vl
Lo A
Mabsan Viogeor doot, nadsaf Ape
Wom fgihe Ll 7

.

O
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF DELHI AT NEW DELHI
EXTRAORDINARY WRIT JURISDICTION

CMA NO. OF 2013
WRIT PETITION (C) I\:g OF 2013
IN THE MATTER OF:
Common Causg ...Petitioner
Versus
Shri Subhash Jain, Ex- Councillor & Ors. ...Respondents

AN APPLICATION UNDER SECTION 151 OF CPC FOR EXEMPTION
FROM FILING CERTIFIED/ORIGINAL AND TYPED/ DIM COPY OF

THE ANNEXURES

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH:

1. The Present Petitioner is a public interest organization of long
standing, which has been campaigning for the establishment of
avcredible institutional framework for combating corruption in
public life. The Petitioner has been at t'he forefront of civil
society campaigns for increased transparency in public
administration and has often had the occasion to bring matters
of public interest to this Hon'ble Court and the Hon'ble Supreme
Court leading to issuance of directions by the Hon’ble Court
that have had the effect of strengthening institutional responses
to corruption and maladministration in furtherance of the
constitutional guarantees to citizens under Part Il of the
Constitution of india.

2. The petitioner submits that the certified/original copies of the

annexures annexed to the writ petition are readily not available
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with the petitioner. However, the petitioner undertakes to file the

same if so required by this Hon’ble Court.

3. The petitioner submits that annexures annexed to the Writ Petition
are !egible“‘&pies and no inconvenience would be caused to their
Lordships while going through the same. However, the Petitioner
undertakes to file the typed copy of the annexures as and when

required by this Hon'ble Court.

4, The petitioner is good prima facie case on merits. |t is in the
interest of justice equity and good conscience that the present

petition may be allowed. The balance of convenience lies in
favour of the petitioner.
PRAYER
It is, therefore, most respectfully prayed that this Hon'ble Court may
graciously be pleased to:
(a) exempt the petitioner from filing typed copies of the Annexures
annexed with the Writ Petition;
(b) pass such other and further orders as this Hon’ble Court may

deem fit and proper in the circumstances of the case.

FILED BY

- NEW DELH!

FILED ON:

(MAHESH AGARWALY)/ (RISHI AGRAWALA)/
(NEEHA NAGPAL)

ADVOCATES FOR THE PETITIONER
AGARWAL LAW ASSOCIATES

19, BABAR ROAD, BENGAL! MARKET
NEW DELHI-110 001
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF DELHI AT NEW DELHI
y‘F’UBLIC INTEREST LITIGATION
C.M. APPLN. NO OF 2013
IN

WRIT PETITION (CIVIL) NO. OF 2013

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMMON CAUSE

THROUGH ITS DIRECTOR,

MR, KAMAL KANT JASWAL

5, INSTITUTIONAL AREA, NELSON MANDELA MARG

VASANT KUNJ, NEW DELHI 110070 ..THE PETITIONER

VERSUS

1. SHRI SUBHASH JAIN, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR

2. MS. ANITA KOLI, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR

3. SMT. SHATESHWAR| JOSHI, EX- MUNICIPAL
COUNCILLOR

4. SMT. MANJU GUPTA, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR
5. SMT. BEENA THAKURIA, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR
6. SMT. JAISHREE PANWAR, EX- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR

7. SHRI RAVI PRAKASH SHARMA, EX- MUNICIPAL
COUNGILLOR

s
SR
e




LY
8. SHRI AJIT SINGH TOKAS, EX~- MUNICIPAL COUNCILLOR

9. LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR OF DELHI

10. GNCTD THROUGH ITS CHIEF SECRETARY
11. NORTH DELHI MUNICIPAL CORPORATION
12. SOUTH DELHI MUNICIPAL CORPORATION
13. EAST DELHI MUNICIPAL CORPORATION,,.
14. POLICE COMMISSIONER, DELH]

THE RESPONDENTS

AFFIDAVIT

|, Kamal Kant Jaswal, aged about 68 years. S/o Sh. Ambica Prasad
Jasvaul, resident of B-34, Ground Floor, Geetanjali Enclave, New

Deihi, do hereby take oath and state as under:-

1)  That | am the Authorized Representative of the Petitioner
organization in the above case and well conversant with the facts of

the case and am duly authorized to depose to this affidavit.

2) | have read and understood the contents of the accompanying
application for exemption from filing certified/dim copies of the

annexures and the same are true and correct to the best of my

'khdwledge and belief, no part thereof is false and nothing material
has been concealed therefrom. | WN\/Q
DEPGNENT' ***

fL ’H
"l"t EEENEY N

VERIFICATION: o | ¢
{, the above named Deponent. do hereby verlfymthat thaﬁuﬂm” "

contents of the above affidavit are true and correct to the best of my

knowledge and belief, no part of it is false and nothing material has

been concealed therefrom.

.-t‘}

"’ﬁa\”"\/’eﬁ‘ﬁ'ed at New Delhi onthis ____ day of . 2013,
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